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Td; Date: 05" September, 2024 
The Manager - Corporate Service Dept. 
BSE Limited, 

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 

Dalal Street, Fort, 
Mumbai - 400 001. 

Dear Sir/ Madam, 

Scrip Code : 519477, SCRIP 1D: CLANAGRO 

Sub: Submission Annual af Company. 

Pursuant to regulation 34(1) of Securities and exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’) please find enclosed 

herewith Notice convening 37" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company and Annual 

Report of the Company for the Financial year 2023-24, which is being sent to the members of the 

Company by e-mails, 

The AGM will be held on Monday, 30% September, 2024 at 11:30 am. through Video 
Conferencing ("VC')/ Other Audio Visual Means ('OAVM’) means. 

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 91 of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 42 of 

the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing 

Regulations’), the Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain 

closed from Monday, 23% September, 2024 to Monday, 30" September, 2024 (both days 

inclusive) for the purpose of AGM. Intimation of book closure is already communicated. 

Kindly take the above on your record. 

Thanking you, 

Yours faithfully, 

adh 
Madhubala Dave 

Company Secretary & Ct 
Mem No; F12218 

Encl: a/a 
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MESSAGE FROM THE MANAGING DIRECTOR'S DESK 

Dear Shareholders, 

itis my privilege to present lo you CLAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Limiled’s 37th Annual Report for the Financial 

Year 2023-24. 

CLAN is a part of the Fast-Moving Consumer Goods (FMCG) industry which ts a fourth-largest sector in the Indian 

economy, one of the biggest long-term sustainable business opportunities that our country offers. FMCG's primary 

growth drivers are income growth, lifestyle changes, increased awareness, and easier access. 

india remains a bright spot in the revival of global economy. India’s growth continued to be resilient and India’s GDP is 

estimated to grow by 8.2% in the Financial Year 2023-24 as compared to the growth rate of 7.0% in the Financial Year 

2022-23. This exceptional performanceis a testament to India's robust economic momentum and resilience. 

We have navigated economic challenges and with the support of our team members during the Financial Year 2023-24, 

we have achieved the total tumover of Rs. 17070.94 Lakhs aggregating from Agro Division amounted to Rs. 15,045.99 

Lakhs, from Infrastructure division amounted to Rs. 1,771.22 Lakhs and from Health and Personal Care Division to the 

tune of Rs. 253.73 Lakhs. The EBITDAof FY24 was al Rs. 3085.43 Lakhs, compared to Rs. 2687.16 Lakhs in previous 

year. 

Further to our expansion of Infrastructure business activity of your Company, CIAN has parlicipaled in the Resolution 

plan process for acquinng Mis. Swapnil Promoters and Developers Private Limited under the provision of Insolvency & 

Bankrupicy Code (IBC), 2016 and successfully acquired M/s. Swapnil Promoters and Developers Private Limited after 

the closure of FY 24 the said corporate is engaged in the activilies of Real Estate Development and the acquisilion of the 

same will provide us for extended support to the Infrastructure division of the Company. Our actions are governed by 

robust corporate governance standards that uphold integrity in all facets of our operations, ensuring transparency and 

accountability, 

As we look ahead and beyond the near term, we see strong growth opportunities in our existing sectors and we are 

excited about the opportunities that lie ahead and are conficentin our ability lo navigate any challenges thal come our 

way. 

l extend my heartfelt gratitude and confident thal these initiatives will position your Company for continued success in 

the coming years and express my sincere appreciation lo all colleagues, customers, investors, bankers, business 

partners, our Shareholders and all the bankers and governments, for their continued trust, support, and confidence in 

CIAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Limited, 

Nikhil Gadkari 

Managing Director
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CHAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Lid. O08 

NOTICE is hereby given that the (37th) Thirty-Seventh Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the members af 

CIAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Limited will be held on Monday, September 30, 2024 at 11.30 A.M. 

through Video Conferencing(‘VC')/Other AudioVisual Means (‘OAVM') to transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. 

b. The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended 

31st March, 2024 together with the Reports of the Auditors thereon; 

Z. To appointa Director in place of Mr. Ravindra Vidyadhar Boratkar (DIN: 00299351), who retires by 

rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

3. RATIFICATION OF THE REMUNERATION OF COST AUDITOR OF THE COMPANY FOR F.-Y 

Toe consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following Resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of 

the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Auditand Auditors) Rules, 20714 

(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), M/s. Jyotsna 

Rajpal, Cost Accountants, Nagpur (Membership No.:-14520) re-appointed as the Cost Auditor of the 

Company by the Board of Directors, for conducting the audit of the cost records of the Company for the 

financial year 2024-25, be paid a remuneration of Rs. 60,000/- (Rupees Sixty Thousand only) Including 

out of pocket expenses and GST as.applicable. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to do 

all such acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this 

resolution.” 

Place : Nagpur By Order of the Board of Director 
Date : 30th August, 2024 For CIAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Limited 

Registered Office: 
Madhubala Dave 

4th Floor, Gupta Tower, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
Science College Road, Civil Lines M. No.: FCS 12218 

Nagpur - 440007 

Maharashtra 

ClIAN ——— 

NOTICE 

To receive, consider and adopt; 

The Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st 

March, 2024 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors’ and the Auditors thereon; and 

2024-25:- 

ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024 
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1) 

2) 

3) 

4) 

5) 

6) 

7) 

ClIAN —— 

NOTES 

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA”) has, vide its General Circular dated September 25, 2023, read together 

with:circular nos. 14/7020 and 17/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and April 13, 2020 May 5, 2020, January 13, 2021, 

December 6, 20271, December 14, 2021, May 5, 2022 and December 28, 2022 (collectively referred to as “MCA 

Circulars"), permitted convening the Annual General Meeting ("AGM* / “Meeting") through Video Conferencing 

(VC*) or Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM"), without physical presence of the members ala common venue. In 

acconmance with the MGA Circulars and applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 20173 (Act*) read with Rules 

made theraunder and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2075 ("Listing Regulations"), the AGM of the Company is being held through VC / 

OAVM, The deemed venue forthe AGM shall be the registered office of the Company. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA General Circular dated September 25, 2023, 

together with circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of 

rémolte &-voling fo its Members in respect of the business to be transacted al the AGM. For this purpose, the 

Company has entered into an agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (COSL) for facilitating 

voting through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voling's agency. The facility of casting voles by a member 

using remote e-voting as wall as the e-voting system on the date of the EGM/AGM wil be provided by CDSL. 

Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April (4, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to-attend and cast vote for 

the members is nol avaiable for this AGM hence the Proxy Form and Altendance Slip including Roule Map are not 

annexed to this Nolice, However, in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, 

representatives of the members such as the President of india or the Govemor of a State or body corporale can 

attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and cast theirvotes through e-voting. 

The Company has appointed Mr. Kaustubh Onkar Moghe (FCS No. 10603) Practising Company Secretary, Nagpur 

as the scrutinizer for conducting the process of e-voting and voting through VC/OAVM and poll papers atthe AGMin 

a fairand transparent manner. 

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the 

commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notices. The facility of participation at 

the AGM through VC/OAVM will ba made available to alleast 1000 members on first come first served basis. This 

will nat include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional 

Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons. of the Audit Committee, Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the 

AGM without restriction on accountoffirst come first served basis. 

The attendance of tha Members attending tha AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of 

ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 ofthe Companies Act, 2013. 

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholdings, maintained under Section 170 

and Register of Contracts or Amangements in which Directors are interested maintained under Section 189 of the 

‘Companies Act, 20173 will be open for inspection for the members during [he AGM. 

An Explanatory Statement required under Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the Special 

Businesses to be transacted at the meeting is annexed hereto. 

ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024 
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8) 

9) 

10) 

11) 

12) 

13) 

ClIAN —— 

Brief resume of the Directors proposed to be appointed/re-appointed al lhe ensuing AGM in terms of Regulation 

36(3) of the SEB (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2075 (Listing Regulations) and 

Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (55-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI 

is annexed to the Notices. The Company is in receiptof relevant disclosureas/consent fram the Directors periaining to 

their appointment/re-appainiment. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 42 of SEBI (Listing Obligations 

& Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the 

Company will remain closed from Monday, 23rd September, 2024 to Monday, 30th September, 2024 (both days 

inclusive). 

In terms of SEB! Circular No. SEBUAO/MIRSODOPTCIRIP201 8/73 dated 20th April, 2018 read with SEBI press 

release PR No.; 51/2018 daled 3rd December, 2018, effective from 1st April, 2019, Company's shares can be 

transfered in demateralized form only. Hence members, who hold shares in physical form, are requested to 

dematenalize their shares, so they can transfer their shares in future, ifso desire. 

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to address all their cormespondences including change of 

address, mandates etc. to the Registrar and Transfer Agents (RTA) viz. M/s. Bigshare Services Pvt Ltd, office at 
Office No. S62, 6th Floor, Pinnacle Business Park, next to Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri East, 

Mumbai 400093, Maharashtra and the Members holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to approach 

their respective Depository Participants for the same. 

Since shares of the Company are traded on the Stock Exchanges compulsorily in demat mode, shareholders 

holding shares in physical mode are strictly advised to. gat their shares dematerializad., 

Members holding shares in identical order of names in one or more follo are requested lo write to the Company's 

RTA, viz. M/s. Bigshare Services Pvt. Lid., enclosing their share certificale(s) to enable the Company to consolidate 

their holding into one folio for betterservices. 

The shareholders who are holding shares in demat form and have not yel registered their e-mail Ds, are requested 

to register their e-mail [Ds with their Depository Participant al the earliest, [lo enable the Company to use lhe same 

for serving documents to them electronically. Shareholders holding shares in physical form may kindly register their 

-mail IDs lo the RTA by sending an e-mail at investors@bigshareonline.com. The Annual Report of the Company 

and other documents proposed to be sent through e-mail will also be made available on the Company's website i.e. 

wwew.clanindusines.com. Members holding shares in single name and in piysical form are advised to make a 

nomination in respect of their shareholding in the Company and those Members who hold shares singly in 

demateralized form are advised to make a nomination through their Depository Participants. The nomination form 

canbe downloaded from the Company's website www.canindustries.com 

SEB! has mandated the submission of Permanent Accoun! Number (PAN) by every parlicipant in the securities 

market, Members holding shares in electronic fon are therefore requested to submit their respective PAN details 

jotheir respective Depository Participants with whom they have their DEMAT account(s), Members holding shares 

in physical form can submil their PAN details io the RTA of ihe Company- M/s. Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd. 

Non Resident Indian members are requested to inform the Company's RTA immediately of any change in their 

residential status on retum to india for permanent settlement, their bank account maintained in India with complete 

name, branch, account type, account number and address of the bank with pin code, IFSC and MICR Code, as 

applicable if such details were not fumished earlier. 

ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024 
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14) 

15) 

16) 

17) 

18) 

49) 

ClIAN —— 

To comply wilh the provisions of Section 68 of the Companies Act, 27013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rule 2014, the Company is required tp update its database by incorporating 

some additional details of its member in its records. 

Members are therefore requested to submit their e-mail ID and other details vide the e-mail updation form attached 

in this Annual Report. The same could be done by filling up and signing at the appropriate place in the said form and 

reluming lhe same by postemail/by submitling the same atthe time of AGM. 

The E-mail ID provided shall be updated subject lo suncessful verification of signalures as per record available with 

ithe RTA of the Company. 

The Notice of the 37thAnnual General Meeting and instructions for remote e-voling are being sent by electronic 

mode to all members whose email addresses are regislarad with ha Company! Depository Participant(s), 

In fine with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the 

AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.cianindusties.com. The Notice can also be 

accessed from the website of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limilad al www. bseindia_com. The AGM Nolice is also 

disseminated on the website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) ie. 

wwew.evolingindia.com. 

In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2023-24 is being 

sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose. email addresses are registered with the Company or 

CDSL/ NSDL (‘Deposilories"), Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2023-24 will also be available 

on the Company's website www.clanindusties.com websites of the Stock Exchange i-e. BSE Limited at www. 

bseindia.com. 

The AGM has been convened through VG/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with MCA. General Circulardated September 25, 2023, together with circulars dated 14/2020 dated April 

8, 2020, MCA Circular No, 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, MCA 

Circular No, 02/2071 dated January 13,2021 and the latest being 2/2022 dated May 05th, 2022. 

E-Voting: 

In compliance with the provisions.of Section 106 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management! 

and Administration) Amended Rules, 2015, Reguiation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (55-2) issued by the 

ICS!, the Company is pleased to provide remote e-voting facility to its members to cast their voles 

electronically on the resolutions mentioned in the Notice of the 37th AGM of the Company dated 

S0thAugust, 2024, 

The voting period begins on 27th September, 2024 at 09.00 a.m. and ends on 29th September, 2024 al 

05.00 p.m. During this period shareholders of the Company, as on cut-off dale ie. 22nd September, 2024, 

may cast their votes electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL thereafier. Once the 

vote.on resolutions is cast by the shareholder, he shall nol be allowed to change il subsequently. 

Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on the date of 

the Meating, Le. 30th September, 2024. 

ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024 
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ClIAN —— 

WW. Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBVHO/CFD/CMD/CIRIP/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 

44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remole e-voting facility to its shareholders, in 

respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation by the public 

non-institutional shareholders/retad shareholdersis al a negligible level. 

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in 

India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords 

by the shareholders. 

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has bean 

decided to enable e-voting to all the damataccount holders, by way ofa single login credential, through their 

demat accounts! websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able 

to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating saamless 

authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process. 

Vv. However, the Members who have exercised their right to vote by remote e-voling may attend the AGM but 

shall not be entitled to vole at the AGM, 

vi. Voting rights of the member! beneficial owners (for remote &-voling and voting al AGM) shall be reckoned on 

shares registered in the name of the member! beneficial owners as on the cut-off date Le. 22nd September, 

2024. A person who is nota Member on the cut-off date shall treat this notice for information purposes only. 

vil. Tha Company has engaged the services of Central Depository Services Limited ("CDSL") as the Agency to 

provide e-voting facility. 

vii, The Board of Directors has appointed Mr, Kaustubh Onkar Moghe (FCS No. 10603) Practicing Company 

Secretary, Nagpur as the Senutinizer for conducting the process of ramote e-voting and voting through poll 

paper at the AGM in a fair and transparent manner and he have communicated his willingness to be 

appointed forthe said purpose. 

i. The Sonutinizer-after scnulinizing the voles cast at the meeting and through remote e-voling, not later than 

forty eight hours-of conclusion of the Meeting, will make a consolidated scnulinizers’ report and submit the 

same to the Chairman/a person duly authorised by the Chairman in this regards, who shall declare the 

resulls, The results declared along with the consolidated scrulinizers’ report shall be placed on the website 

of the Company viz. www.cianindusties.com and on the website of COSL vie. www.clslindia.com. The 

results shall simultaneously be communicated to the Stock Exchanges. 

Step 1: Access through Depositories COSLNSDL e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders holding 

shares in demat mode. 

x. In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBUMO/CFDICMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on o-Voling 

facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding secunties in demat mode are 

allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositones and Depository Participants. 

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to 

access e-Voling facility. 

ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024
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Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual 

shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below: 

ClIAN —— 

Type of shareholders Login Method 

Individual Shareholders 1) 

holding secunties in Damal 

mode with COSL Depositary 

3) 

4) 

Users who have opted for COSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their 

existing user id and password, Option will be made available to reach e-Voling 

page without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi/ 

Easiestare requested to visit: www_cdslindia.cam and click on Login icon and 

select New System Myeasi. 

2) After successiul login the Easi | Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting 

option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the 

information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will 

be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your 

vole during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 

during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the 

system of all Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the &-Voling 

service providers websile directly. 

Hihe user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register ts available al 

ois! website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi tab 

option and than click on registration option. 

Altematively, the user can directly access e-Voling page by providing Demat 

Account Number and PAN No, from a e-Voting link available on 

www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by 

sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. 

After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option 

where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of 

all e-Voting Service Providers. 

Individual Shareholders 1) 

holding securities in Dema 

mode with NSDL Depository 

2) 

Wf you are already registered for NSDL !DeAS facility, please visil the 

e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

hilps:feservices.nedl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial 

Owner ioon under “Login” which is available under 'IDeAS' section, A new 

acroen will open, You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After 

successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on 

“Access to e-Voling” under e-Voting services and you will be able ip see e- 

Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and 

you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your 

vote during the remote e-Voting penod or joining virtual meeting & voting 

during the meeting. 

ithe userisnot registered for /DeAS e-Services, option to register is available 

al hitps:eserices.nedl.com. Select “Register Online for [De AS “Portal or click 

al hitps-//eservices.nsal.com/SecureWeb/ideasDirectReg jsp 
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ClIAN —— 

3) = Visit the e-Voling website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 

https:/www-.evoling.nsdl.com/ elther ona Personal Computer or on a mobile, 

Once the home page of e-Voling system is jaunched, click on the ican “Login” 

which is available under “Sharcholder/Member’ saction. A new screen will 

open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demal account 

numberhold with NSOL), Password/OTP and a Venfication Code as shown on 

the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 

Depository sile wherein you can see e-Voling page. Click on company name 

or e-Voling service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voling 

service provider websile for casting your vole during the remote ¢-Voling 

period orjoining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

Individual Shareholders You can also login using the login credentials of your demal account through 

(holding securities indemat your Depository Participant registered with NSOL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. 

made) login through their Afler Successiy! login, you will be able lo sea e-Voting option. Once you click 

Depository Participants on 6-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository sila afer 

successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voling feature, Click on 

company name or a-Voting service provider name. and you will be redirected to 

@-Voting service provider wobsite for casting your vote during the remote a- 

Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

important note: Members who are unable to reteve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget 

Password option available atabovementioned website. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login 

through Depository Le. COSL and NSDL 

Login Type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding securitias im Mombers facing any technical issue in login. can 

Demat mode with GDSL contact CDOSL helpdesk by sanding a request at 

helpdesk evoting@icdslindia_com or contact al 

toll free mo. 1800 22 55.33 

Individual Shareholders holding secuntles in Members facing any technical issue in login can 

Demat mode with NSDL contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 

evotingginsdl.co.in or call at: 022-4866 7000 and 

022-7499 7000 

Step 2: Access through CDSLe-Voling system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non- 

individual shareholders in demat mode. 

xi. Login method for eVoting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than individual shareholders 

holding in Demat form & physical shareholders. 

i, The shareholders are requested to log on lo www-.evolingindia.com. 

ii. Click on Shareholders. 

iii. Now Enter your User ID 
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a. ForCDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 

b. ForNSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by & Digits Client ID, 

c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Follo Number registered with the Company. 

: Enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

Vv. If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted earlier for any 

company, lhen your existing password is to be used for log in. 

vi. Ifyou area first time user, please follow the steps given below 

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form 

PAN * Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric “PAN issued by Income Tax Department 

(Applicable for both demat sharcholders as well as physical shareholders) 

+ Shareholders who have notupdated their PAN with ihe Company/Depasitory 

Participant are requested to use the sequence number sent by Gompany/ 

RTAor contact Company RTA. 

DOB * Enter the Date of Birth (in dd/mmiyyyy format) as recorded in yourdemataccount 

orin the company records in order to login. 

* — ifboth the details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter the 

member id /fodio numberin the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction. 

After entering these details appropriately, clickon “SUBMIT tab. 

vi. Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, 

members holding shares in demal form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are requined to 

mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password isto be also used 

by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that 

the Company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. lis strongly recommended notio share your password with 

any other person and take ulmost care to keep your password confidential. 

vill, = ForMembers holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only fore-volting on the resolutions contained 

in this Notice. 

ix,  lfimembers are holding shares in DEMAT form and logged on to www.evotingindia.com and casted vote aarliarfor 

EVSN of any company then the existing login id and password are to be used, 

x. Click on the EVSN for ‘CLIANAGRO INDUSTRIES & INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED 

ML (On the voting page, you willsee "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION and against the same the option "YES/NO" for 

voting. Select the option VES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option 

NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 

xii, Click onthe "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish Io view the entire Resolution details. 

xii, = After selecting lhe resolution you have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT". A.confinmation box will be displayed. If 

you wish to confirm your vole, click on "OK", else fo change your vole, click on “CANCEL* and accordingly modify 

your vote. 

xiv, «= Once you "CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vole. 
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You can also take a print of the voles cast by clicking on "Click here to print" option on the Voting page. 

if'ademat account holderhas forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID.and the image verification code 

and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system. 

xvi, There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POAI any uploaded, which will be made available to scrutinizer for 

verification. 

xvill. Additional Facility for Non— Individual Shareholders and Custodians-For Ramote Voting only. 

. Non-individual shareholders (ie. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to log on to 

wwwevotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates. 

- A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the siamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to 

helpdesk evoting@edslindia.com. 

* Alter receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The 

Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to voteon. 

- Thelist of accounts linked in the login wil be mapped automatically & can be delink in case of any wrong mapping. 

. it is Mandatory thal, a scanned copy of the Board Resoluthon and Power of Atlomey (POA) which they have issued 

in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be-uploaded in POF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the 

same. 

* Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the relevant Board Resolution) Authority 

letter etc. logether with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vate, to 

the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; info@cianindustries.com , if they have voted from 

individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voling system for the scrutinizer to venfy the same. 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 

1. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voling on the day of the AGM/ EGM is same as the instructions mentioned 

above fore-voling 

2. ‘The link for VC/OAVM to attend mesiing will be available where the EVSN of Company will be displayed after 

successful login as per the instructions mentioned above fore-voting. 

3. Shareholders who have voted through Remotee-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. However, they will not 

be eligible to vole al the AGM/EGM. 

4, Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / |Pads: for better experience. 

5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Intamet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance 

during the meeting. 

6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laplop connecting via Mobile 

Hoispol may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their maspective network. It is therefore 

recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches 

T: Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves asa 

Speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account 

numberfolio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). The shareholders who do nol wish to speak 

during the AGM bul have quenes may send thelr queries in advance 7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, 

demat account numberfolio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). These queres will be replied 

to by the company suitably by email. 
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6. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask 

questions during the meating. 

9. Only those shareholders, who are presentin the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on 

the Resolutions through remote e-Volng and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote 

through e-Voling system available during the AGM. 

10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the same 

shareholders have nol participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility. then the votes cast by such 

shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the 

shareholders attending the meeting. 

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED 

WITH THE COMPANY /DEPOSITORIES 

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of 

the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (sell atiestad 

scanned copy of Aadhar Gard) by email to Company/RTA email id. 

2. For Damalshareholders-, Please update your email id & mobile no, with your respective Depository Participant 

(DP) 

3. For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective 

Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through 

Depository. 

Hf you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voling System, you can write an 

email io helpdesk.evoting@cdsiindia.com or contact at tollfree mo. 1800 22 5533 

All grlevances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed lo Mr Rakesh Dalvi, 

SrManager, (CDSL, ) Central Deposilory Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatial Mill 

Compounds, NM Joshi Marg, Lower Panel (East), Mumbal-400013 or send an email to helpdesk .evolingiicdslindia.com 

or call toll free no. 1800 225533, 
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The following Statement sets out all material facts relating to the Special Business mentioned in the 

Notice: 

item No. 3: 

On the recommendation of the Audit Commitee, the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 12th 

August, 2024 has approved the appointment and remuneration of Mrs, Jyotsna Rajpal (Membership No.:- 

14520),Practicing Cost Accountant, Nagpur to conduct the audil of cost records of Ihe Company for the financial 

year ending March 31, 2025 al a remuneration of Rs. 60,000/- (Rupees Sixty Thousand only) Including oul of 

pocket expenses and GST as applicable in connection with the aforesaid audit. 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 144 of the Gompanies Act, 2013 and Companies (Audit and Auditors) 

Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost.Auditor has to be ratified by the members of the company. 

Accordingly, consent of the members is:sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set oul in tem No. 3 of 

accompanying Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditorfor the financial year ending on 

Mareh 31,2025. 

In view of the above, the Board recommends the resolution at Item No. 3 of this Notice for approval of the 

shareholders as an Ordinary Resolution. None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and 

their relatives is, in any way, concemed or interested, financially or otherwise, in passing the said resolution 

mentioned at Item No, 3 of this Notice, 

By Order of the Board of Director 

For CLAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Limited 

Place: Nagpur 

Date : 30th August, 2024 

Madhubala Dave 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

M. No.: FCS 12218 

Registered Office : 
4th Floor, Gupta Tower, 

Science College Road, Civil Lines 

Nagpur- 440001 

Maharashina 
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE 

In pursuance of the Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiraments) Regulations, 2015 

and Secretarial Standards 2 (SS-2) issued by the Institule of Company Secretaries of India(iCS!), details of Director 

retiring by rotation seeking re-appointment al the ensuing Annual General Meeting are as follows: 

Name ofthe Director Ravindra Vidyadhar Boratkar 

Age 58 years. 

Qualifications, Experience, brief Resume of the Mr. Ravindra Boratkar is MBA (Master of Business 

Director & Nature of Expertise. Administration). He is associated with the Company 

from past 20 years. He has wide experience of over 

25 years in the administration, Management of 

Public Institutions and having good public contacts, 

Terms and Conditions of Appointment/Reappoinimant 

along with deiails of Remuneration sought to be paid 

Non-Execulive Director, liable to retire by rotation, 

Remuneration last drawn including sitting feos, if any) NIL 

Relationship with other directors and Key Managerial 

Personnel 

Not related to any Director & Key Managerial 

Personnel of the Company. 

List of Directorship held in Other Companies 

(excluding Directorship in Private and Section 8 
Companies } 

1. Purti Power& Sugar Limited 

2. AFC India Limited 

List of Chairmanship / Membership in Other NIL 

Companies 

Number of Board Meetings attended during FY 2022-24 10 

Date of first appointment on the Board of the a5 903/002 

Company 

Shareholding in the Company as on 31.03.2024 500 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

To, 

The Members, 

The Members, 

Your Board of Directors ("Board") is pleased to present the Thirty-Seventh Annual Report of CIAN Agro Industries & 

Infrastructure Limited (“CIAN" or the Company® or “your Company"), for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 (“the 

yearunder review" ofthe year or“FY¥ 24°). 

in compliance with the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013, (including any statutory modification(s) or re- 

enactment(s) thereof, for time being in force) (the Act") and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘the SEBI Regulations”), this report covers the financial 

resulls and other developments during the financial year April 1, 2023 to March 31, 2024 and upto the date of the Board 

meeting held on August 30, 2024 to approve this report, in respect of CIAN and CIAN Consolidated comprising CLAN and 

its subsidiary companies. The consolidated entity has been referred to. as “CLAN Group" or “Your Group" or “the Group" in 

this report. 

1. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE : 

Financial results forthe year ended March 31, 2024 are presented in the table below: 

(Rs. in Lacs) 
Particular Standalone Consolidated Standalone Consolidated 

2023-24 2023-24 2022-23 2022-23 

Revenue from Operations 17070.94 17070.94 28997.45 2899946 

Other Income 1169.41 T7002 123.79 142.26 

Total Income 18,240.35 18,240.96 29,115.24 29,141.71 

Depreciation 617.56 811.91 839.76 840.07 

Interest & Financial Expenses V736.71 1736.73 1762.26 1762.35 

Total Expenses 17,688.38 17,704.17 29,039.89 29,056.97 

Profit before Exceptional items and tax 551.47 536.79 75.34 84.75 

Profit (Loss) Before Tax 551.57 536.79 34 B4.75 

Tax Expense 46.91 49.91 50.51 50.86 

Profit (Loss) After Tax 505.06 489.88 24.83 33.89 
Other comprehensive income 14.11 17.69 540.01 538.02 

Total comprehensive income 519.17 507 57 564.84 571.94 

2. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES :- 

Ason 31st March, 2024, there is One (1) wholly-owned subsidiary Company of CUAN viz. CLAN Agro Limited. However this 

company is not “material company” as per the Regulation 24 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 20715. 

During the year under review, your company has transferred iis 53 equity shareholding in INBD Express Private Limited 

to Mr. Nitin Krishnakant Mudholkar, one of the existing shareholder of INBD Express Private Limited. Accordingly INBD 

Express Private Limited ceased to be a Subsidiary company effective from 24th July, 2023. 

3. CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL STATEMENTS :- 

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 2024 are prepared in compliance with the 

applicable provisions of the Act, including Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act The audited 

Consolidated Financial Statements logetherwith the Auditors’ Report thereon form part of the Annual Report, 
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Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Act, a statement containing the salient features of the Financial 

Statements of the Company's subsidiaries in the preseribed Form AOC-1 is appended as “ANNEXURE-A" fons part of 

the consolidated financial statements. 

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Act, the financial statements of the Company, consolidated 

financial statements along with relevant documents and separate audited financial statements in respect of subsidiaries, 

are available on the Company's website on hitpa/www.cianindustries.com . 

4. OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY:- 

The Company is into the Fast-Moving Consumer Goods (FMCG) industry which continues to be one of the biggest! long- 

term sustainable business opportunities that ourcountry offers. 

The Consolidated Gross Revenue from operations for FY 2023-24 is Rs. 16,240.96 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 29,141.71 

Lakhs). The Net Profit for the year stood at 489.68 Lakhs against Rs, 33.89 Lakhs reported in the Previous Year. The 

Eamings before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation & Amortization (EBITDA) for FY 2023-24 is Rs, 3085.43 Lakhs against Rs. 

2687.16 Lakhs reported in the previous year. 

During the year under review the standalone Gross Revenue from operations for FY 2023-24 Is. Rs. 18,240.95 Lakhs 

(Previous Year Rs. 29,115.24 Lakhs). The Nel Profil for the year stood at 505.06 Lakhs againsi Rs. 24.83 Lakhs reported in 

the Previous Year. The Eamings before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation & Amortization (EBITDA) for F.¥ 2023-24 is Rs. 

3100.24 Lakhs agains! Rs. 2677.39 Lakhs reported In the previous year. 

Segment wise reviews of operations of the Company are 2s follows:- 

i} Agro Division:- 

Quring the Financial year 2023-24 under review, revenue from Agro Division of the Company is Rs. 15,045.99 Lakhs as 

compared to previous financial year of Rs, 21,648.75 Lakhs, 

ij) Health and Personal Care Division:- 

Dunng financial Year 2023-24 under review, Revenue from operation of Health & Personal care division of the Company 

boost to Rs. 253.73 Lakhs as compared to previous year of financial yearof Rs. 1,499.07 Lakhs 

fii) Infra Division:- 

During the Financial Year 2023-24 under review, Infrastructure Division has tumoverof Rs. 1,771.22 Lakhs as compared 

tothe previous year’ of Rs. 5,851.63 Lakhs. 

The largest business segment in Agro is edible oils & Spices; the management has consciously look some decisions to 

avoid the adverse impact of price volatility during the Financial Year, yel your company still managed fo sustained its 

profitability during such adverse markel conditions during the period under raview, Your Company ts focused on increasing 

the distribution reach of its products, bolh in the existing markets as well as to cover all rural towns to improve the reach 

growth drive, 

During the Financial Year 2023-24, the performance of the company could not reach to the expected targets due to the 

strong competition and adverse impact of price volatility in the market, but management's conscious efforts results into the 

increase in profitability during the period under review, Furthermore, your Company is continuing its efforts for marketing of 

Products and outlined key strategic initiatives, including expanding its Distibution coverage, further developing fast- 

growing channels forexpansion. 

The Company is moving forward with strategic decisions and we expect to increase its revenue and the profitability in 

Upcoming years. 
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5. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS: 

There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company during the period under review. 

6. SHARE CAPITAL: 

As at March, 31, 2024, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company was Rs. 44,75,00,000/-. The Company's paid-up 

Share Capital continues to stand al Rs. 27,98,58,950/- divided into 279,865,895 Equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- 

each. During the year under review, the Company has nol Issued any shares or convertible securilies, 

¥. DIVIDEND: 

tnonder to conserve the resources forfulure growth of the Company, your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the 

Year under review. 

8. TRANSFER TORESERVES: 

The Company has not transferred any amount to the Reserves for the financial yaar ended 31st March, 2024. 

9. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS: 

The details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provision of Section 166 of the Companies Act, 2013 

read with the Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 are given inthe Notes to the Financial Statements 

provided in this Annual Report 

10. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES: 

All contracts or arrangements entered into by the Company with its related parties during the financial year 2023-24 were 

in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2075. All such contracts or arrangements were on.anm's length 

basis and in the ordinary course of business, and have been approved by the Audit Commities. No maternal contracts or 

armangements with related parties were entered into during the year under review. Details thereof in the prescribed Form 

AOC-2 is appended as “ANNEXURE-8" to the Board's report, In terms of Section 134 of the Act read with Rule 8 of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2074, 

vi. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 

OUTGO. 

With respect to Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption required under the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014, a soparate statement of Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange 

Eamings and QOutgo is appended as “ANNEXURE-C" to the Board's report 

12. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP): 

a) Director's Retiring by Rotation:- 

in accordance with the. provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 read wih Companies (Management & 

Administration) Rules, 2074 and Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Ravindra Vidyadhar Boratkar 

(DIN: 00299351 ), will retire by rotation al the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, has offered himself for re 

appoiniment. 
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The Board recommends the re-appointment of aforesaid Director. 

b) Appeiniment/Re-appoiniments of Directors:- 

During the year under review, the Board of Directors, on recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration and Audit 

Committee, approved by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting held on 30th September, 2023 had appointed 

the following: 

i} Mr. Ramesh Dinkarrao Himbe (DIN: 00234754), Mrs. Vrushall Jitendra Pradhan (DIN: 07594297) and Mr. Atul Vijay 

Mandlekar (DIN: 10254967) as an Independent, Non-Executive of the Company in accordance to the provisions Section 

149, 150, 152 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2073 (‘Act’) read with the Companies 

(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and the Listing Regulations and Articles of Association of the 

Company. 

c) Resignation of Directors / Key Managerial Personnel: 

During the year under review, Mr. Anandrao Raul. and Mrs. Gouri Chandrayan, Independent Directors of the company was 

ceased from the Board of Directors upon expiration of their two tenms of Independent Directors of the: company. 

The Board of Directors, on recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration and Audit Commitiee, had appointed the 

following Key Managerial Personnal'’s: 

om the Board of Directors: 

1} Mrs. Madhubala Dave as Company Secretary & Compliance Officer with effect from 20.04 2023, 

i) Mr, Naku! Bhat as Chief Financial Officer with effect from 20.04.2023; 

Further, after the financial yearended 31st March, 2024 the following Key Managerial Personnel’s has been resigned from 

the Board of Directors: 

!) Mr. Suneet Pande, Chief Executive Officer has resigned with effect from 27 06.2024; 

d) Independent Directors: 

The Company's Independent Directors have submitted requisite declarations confirming thal they continue to meet the 

criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of tha Act and Requiation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations. 

The Independent Directors have also confirmed that they have complied with Schedule IV of the Act and the Company's 

Code of Conduct. There has been no change in the circumstances affecting their status as Independent Directors of the 

Company. 

e) Key Managerial Personnel: 

Pursuant to the Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Parsonnel) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions and rules of the Companies Act, 2073, the following 

existing execulives of lhe Company were designated as the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company by the Board in 

ten of 2(51) of the Compantes Act 2013. 

Mr. Nikhil Gadkarn, Managing Director 

Mr. Suneet Pande, Chief Executive Officer (Upto 27.06.2024) 

Mrs. Madhubala Dave, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer (w.e.f. 20.04.2023) 

Mr. Nakul Bhat, Chief Financial Officer (wet. 20.04.2023) 

13. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS : 

In terms of the provisions of Reg. 34 of the SEB! (LODR) Reguiations 2015, the Management's discussion and analysis is 
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setoulinthis Annual Report isappendedas “Annexure -D" to the Board's report. 

14, EVALUATION OF BOARD'S PERFORMANCE : 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2073 and Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligalions and Disclosures 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015; the Board has cared oul Annual Performance Evaluation of its own performance, the 

Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of iis various Committees. 

The performance of the Boar) was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the Directors on the basis of the 

cileria such as the Board Composilion and Structure, Effectiveness of Board Processes, Information and Functioning, 

etc. The perfonnance of the committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the committees members on 

the basis of the critoria such as ihe Composition of Committees, Effectiveness of Committes Meetings, atc. 

The Board in consultation with the Nomination and Remuneration Committes reviewed the performance of the Individual 

Directors on the basis of the criteria such as the contribution of the Individual Director to the Board and Committee 

Meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in 

meetings, etc. In addition, the Chainnan was also evaluated on the key aspects of his mle. In a separate meeling of 

Independent! Directors, performance of Nonindependent Directors, performance. of the Board as a whole and 

performance of the Chairman was evaluated, taking into account the views of Executive Directors and Non-Executive 

Directors, The same was discussed in the Board Meeting thal followed the Meeting of the Independent Directors, al which 

the performance of the Board, its Committees and Individual Directors was also discussed. Perfonmance evaluation of 

Independent Directors was done by the entire Board, excluding the Independent Director being avaluated. 

15. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT : 

The Directors’ Responsibility Statement referred to in clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 

2013, shall state that:- 

a) ss In the preparaltion.of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with 

proper explanation relating to matenal departures: 

b) = The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company 

at the end of the financial year and of the profitof the company for that period; 

ec) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accomance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and 

detecting fraud and other inegularities; 

dq) = The directors had prepared the annual accounts ona going concem basis and; 

e) The directors had faid down intemal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such intemal 

financial controls are adequate and were operating effectivaly; 

f) The directors had devised proper systems lo ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 

thal such systems were adequate and operating eflectively; 

16. BOARD MEETINGS: 

The Board meets at requiar intervals to discuss and decide on Company! Business policy and strategy apart from other 

Board business. During the year under review, 10 (Ten) Board Meetings were held and the intervening gap between the 

meetings did not xeceed the period prescnibed under the Act, the details of which are given in the Corporate Govemance 

Report, which forms an integral partof this report. 
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The notice of Board/Committes meeting is given well in advance to all the Directors. Usually, meetings of the Board are 

held in Nagpur. The Agenda ol the Board/Commilttee Meetings is sel by the Company Secretary in consultation with the 

Chairman, the Managing Director and CEO of the Company. 

17. MATERIAL CHANGES & COMMIMTMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION BETWEEN THE END OF THE 

FINANCIAL YEAR & DATE OF REPORT: 

i. The acquisition process of Varron Aluminumm Private Limited ("Varron”), have been completed and has became Wholly 

owned Subsidiary Company of our company and we have complied with Ihe necessary compllances of all the applicable 

acts and regulations as on date. Further, Varron is alneady into its commercial operatians. 

ii. CIAN has participated in the process of Insolvency and Bankruptcy of Swapnil Promoters and Developers Private 

Limited with the intension to expand its Industrial Infrastructure business on 06th January, 2024. Further, CLAN has 

submitted the Resolution Plan on 07th March, 2024 under section 30(6) read with Section 31 of Insolvency and Bankruptoy 

Code, 2016 to the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) Mumbai, which was later approved on 12th July, 2024 by the 

Hon'ble NCLT Mumbal Bench. The company is complying wilh all the requirement stated under the Order of NCLT and 

implementation of Resolution Plan, 

ii, The company has invested in Equity share of Manas Power Ventures Private Limited resulting to 5.5% of the 

shareholding. The said company is engaged in the business of generation, accumulation, distribution and supply of and to 

generally dealin thermal Energy, Power Generation. 

iv. The company has invested in Equity share of Avenzer Electricals & Infrastructure Pvt Ltd resulting to 1.065% of the 

shareholding. The said company is engaged in the business of drip irrigation, Infrastructure and power Generation etc. 

There are no ofher maternal changes & commitments affects the financial position of the company during the year and on 

the date of this report, 

14. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDER PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS: 

There has been no significant and material orders passed by the Requlators/ Courts/ Tribunals which would impact the 

going concems status of the Company and its future operations. 

19. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY: 

intemal Financial Control of the Company has been designed to provide reasonable assurance with regard to recording 

and providing reliable Financial and operational information, complying with applicable Accounting Standards. Company 

periodically conducts physical verification of inventory, fixed Assets, and cash on hand and matches them with the Books 

of Accounts. Explanations are sought tor any vanances noticed from the respective functional heads. 

The Company's intemal control systems with reference to the financial statements are adequate and commensurate with 

the nature of its business and the size and complexily of its operations and ensure that all its assets are safeguarded and 

protected against losses. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the 

Board of Directors of the Company, appointed M/s T_ P_Dable & Co, Chartered Accountants, as the Internal Auditor of the 

Company to conducts the audit on regular basis, the checks & controls to prevent, detect and correct any irraguiarities in 

the operations have been laid down by the Company. The Internal Auditor directly reports to the Audit Committee for 

functional matters. The findings of the Internal Auditor are discussed on an on-going basis in the meatings of the Audit 

Committee and various sleps have been taken to implement the suggestions of the said intemal Auditor. The Company 

undertakes comective action in the respective areas and strengthens the levels of Intemal Financial and other operational 

controls. The Audit Committee in its quarterly meetings periodically reviews the intemal audit and controls reports. 
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20. COMMITTEES 

The Company has total four Commitices namely Audit Committee, Stakeholders Relationship cum Share transfer 

Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. The details of 

which are given in the Corporate Govemance Report, which forms an integral part of this report. 

21. REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE : 

Your Company is committed lo achieve the highest! standards of Corporate Governance. Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) 

read with Schedule V of Listing Regulations, Reporl on Corporate Govemance have been made a part of the Annual 

Reporl— Annexure -E. 

Auditor's Certificate regarding compliance with conditions of Corporate Governance are attached along with this report. 

22, PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES & REMUNERATION : 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment! and 

Remuneration of Managenal Personnel) Rules, 2014, details of remuneration paid to all the Directors/Employees and the 

details of the ratio. of remuneration of each Director to the median employee's remuneration is provided in “Annexure F™. 

Further, the information as required as per the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) 

and Rule 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is appended to 

this reportas “Annexure G". 

23. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY: 

Your Company has been implemented Enterprises Resource Planning (ERP) Systemin all plants, depols, and head office 

of the Company enabling alignment of strategies and operations, better supply chain control al operational level and 

access to consolidated data ofthe Company through integrated system. 

24. HUMAN RESOURCES: 

Engaged Employees are critical lo the success of your Company. In P24 your Company successtully achieved an 

Engagement Score of 73%. The continuing strong momentum in the Company driven by solld growth and Innovation has 

helped toachieve this level, 

Your Company will continue to ensure thal we have a highly engaged and productive organization to deliver against our 

vision of being amongst the bes! Companies in Central India. 

25. OBLIGATION OF COMPANY UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 

(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: 

The Company has established a comprehensive policy for the Prevention and Redressal of Sexual Harassment under the 

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Aci, 2013 ("POSH Act") and Rules 

framed thereunder. 

The Company has constituted an internal Complaints Committee (ICC) for Redressal of the complaints received regarding 

sexual harassment al workplace. All employees, including trainees are covered under this policy. The commiltess operate 

wilh transparency, impartiality, and adherence to. clear timelines, ensuring a fair and unbiased investigation process. 

During the year under review, no complaints wore received or disposed off during the year under the stated Act and no 

complaints were pending either atthe beginning of atthe end ofthe year. 
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26. EXTRACT OF ANNUALRETURN: 

As required pursuant to Section 92/3) read with Section 143(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of annual retum in Form MGT-9 is available on the 

website of the Company viz. www.cianindusties.com. 

27, VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY FOR THE DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES: 

The Company has formulated Vigil Mechanism for Directors and employees of the Company to provide adequate 

safeguards against victimization of persons who use such mechanism and to report genuine concems about unethical 

behavior, actual or suspected fraud ofr violation of the Company's code. of conduct or ethics policy in terms of provisions of 

Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under and pursuant to Clause 22 of SEB! (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements}, Regulations, 2015. The said policy is available on Company's website le. 

www. clanindustres.com 

We affirm that during the financial year 2023-24, no employee or director or any other person was denied access to the 

Audit Commitiees. 

28. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY AND REPORT : 

The Company recognizes thal risk is. an integral part of business and is commitied to managing the nsks ina proactive and 

efficient manner. The Company periodically assesses risks in the intemal and extemal environment, along with the cost of 

treating risks and incorporates risk treatment plans inits strategy, business and operational plans. The Company through 

its risk management process strives to contain impact and likelihood of the risks wilhin the risk appetite as agreed from 

fime to time with the Board of Directors. 

The Commitiee reports to the Board of Directors of lhe Company. Al plants / units level, Internal Commiltiees have been 

formed, headed by plants / units heads of respective plants / units and functional departmental heads. Such Committees 

report to the Risk Management Commitles from time to time. The Board of Directors has developed and implemented Risk 

Management Policy forthe Company. There are no risks which In the opinion of the Board threaten the existence of the 

Company. However, some of the risks which may pose challenges are set oul in the Management Discussion and Analysis 

Report, which forms part of this report 

29. AUDIT & AUDITOR REPORT: 

a) Statutory Audit :- 

Mis. P.G. Joshi & Company, Chartered Accountants, Nagpur (FRN: 104416) were appointed with your approval as the 

Statutory Auditors of the Company fora period of 5 years in the 34th Annual General Meating (‘AGH’) of the Company held 

in the year 2021 to hold office from the conclusion of 34th AGM fill the conclusion of 39th AGM. 

Members are infonmed that the provision relaling to ratification of appointment of the Auditors as per Companies 

(Amendment) Act, 2077 which was notifed on 7ih May, 2018 has been obliterated. As such, no requirement of 

ralification‘continmation shall henceforth be necessary for ihe appointment of the Auditors for their remainder period of 

appointment. Accordingly, no resolution is being proposed for ratification of appointment of statutory auditors at the 

ensuing AGM, 

The Auditors have issued an unmodified opinion on the Financial Statements, both standalone and consolidated for the 

financial year ended 31st March, 2024. The said Auditors’ Report(s) for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 forms 

part of this Annual Report does nol contain any qualification, reservalion, adverse remark or disclaimer. The observations 

made inthe Audiior's Report are séel-explanalory and therefore do not call for any furihercommants. 
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b) Cost Audit:- 

The Company is required to maintain the cost reconis as specified by the Central Government under Section 148 (1) ofthe 

Companies Act 2013 and accordingly such accounts and reconis are made and maintained by the Company. An Audil of 

the Cost Accounts maintained by the Company ts also conducted bya Cost Auditor appointed by the Company. 

The Board of Director on recommendation of the Audit Committee approved remuneration of Rs. 60,000/- (Rupees Sixty 

Thousand only) including out-of-pocket expenses and GST as applicable subject to the ratification of the said fees by the 

shareholders atthe ensuing 37th Annual General Meeting. 

Aresolulion regarding nalilication of remuneration payable to Mrs, Jyotsna Rajpal, Practicing Cost Accountants, Nagpur 

forms part ofthe Notice convening the 37th Annual General Meeting of the Company. 

¢) Secretarial Audit : 

The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed Mr. Kaustubh Moghe, Practicing Company Secretary (Certificate of 

Practice No. 12486), as the Secretarial Auditor to conduct an awdil of the secretarial records for the financial year 2023-24. 

The Company has received consent from Mr. Kaustubh Moghe to act as the Secretarial Auditor for conducting audit of the 

seorelanal records for the financial year ending 31st March, 2024. 

The Secretanal Audit Report in Form MR-3 for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 under the Act, read with Rules 

made thereunder and Reguiation 274A. of the Listing Regulations, is set out in the “Annexure-H" to this report. 

Reply to the Observations made in the Secretarial Auditor's Report: 

1. The Company has advised [he Promoter and Promoter Group shareholders to demalenalise the shares and 

the process has been initiated and the dematenalization is in process. 

02 The said delay in fing of Form and payment of ALF was inadvertent and unintentional in nature and was 

caused due to procedural aspects involved in the said process. 

The management of the company has taken all the necessary steps and actions to do proper and timely compliances. It 

assures todo timely compliance in future under various applicable acts & regulations. 

30. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY : 

CLAN understands its responsibility towards the society in which il operates and is initiating small bul significant steps in 

bringing posifive changes in the environment for sustainable development taking into the consideration the interest of 

various stakeholders, With the rapidly changing corporate environment, more funcional aulonomy, operational freedom 

éic., CIAN has adopted CSR policy asa strategic tool for sustainable growth. For Company in the present context, CSR 

policy adopted is not just tool of investment of funds for Social Activity butalso efforts to integrate Business processes wilh 

Social processes, 

The CSR Committee of our Board provides oversight of CSR Policy and monitors execution of various activities to meet 

the sel of CSR objectives. 

The Members of the CSR Committees are: 

1.Mrs. Vrushali Jitendra Pradhan- independent Director (Chairman of this committes) (w.e.f 30.09.2023) 

2. Mr. Atul Vijay Mandlekar- Indepandent Director (w.o.T 30.09.2023) 

3. Mr. Ravindra Boratkar—Non-Executive Director 

4. Mr. Ramesh Himie - independent Director 

5. Mrs. Gouri Chandrayan - Independent Director (Chainman of this Committee) (upto 30.09.2023) 

6. Mr. Anandrao Raut— Independent Director (upto 30.09.2023) 
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The Company has constituted CSR Committee and CSR Policy is duly adopted by the Gompany as per the regulatory 

nanms. CLAN considers social responsibilily as an integral part of its business activities and endeavors to utilize allocable 

CSR budget for the benefitof society. 

We believe that society isan important pillar which supports business activities and creates the canvas of opportunitios. 

CSR initiatives are on the focus areas approved by the Board benefitting the communily. 

During the year under review, CLAN has contributed in Promotion of Edumation in Ramtek and Enadicaling hunger, poverty 

& malnutrition in Nagpur, Vidharbha region of Maharashtra. 

During the year under review, the Company has spent more on the CSR activities as compared to the proportion 

prescnbed under the Companies Act, 2013_As per the Companies Act, 2013, the Company was required to spend Rs. 6.52 

Lakhs/- during the F'Y 2023-24, whereas the Company has spent Rs, 20.236 Lakha/- during the period under review. 

The Company's annual report on the CSR activilies undertaken during the financial year ended Jisl March, 2024, in 

accordance with Section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 

(including any statutory modification(s) or re-anactment(s) for the time being in force) is set out in Annexure Ito this report. 

31. THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND 

BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR ALONG WITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF 

THE FINANCIAL YEAR 

During the year under review, Gompany has not made any application under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 

(31 of 2016). 

32. THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE-TIME 

SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OF FINANCIAL 

INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF 

The requirement lo disclose the detalls of differance between amount of the valuation done al the lime of onetime 

settiament and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions along with the reasons thereat 

is not applicable. 

33, OTHER DISCLOSURES: 

a) During the yearunder review, the Company has notaccepted any deposit within the meaning of Sections 73, 74 

and 76 of the Gompanies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (Including 

any Statutory Modification(s}or re- enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force); 

b) The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of india 

(NCSI) on Meetings of the Board of Directors and General Meetings; 

c) The Managing Director and CEO of the Company has not received any remuneration or commission from any of 

subsidianes of the Company as specified under section 197(14) of the Companies Act, 2013; 

dq) None of the Auditors of the Company have reported any fraud as specified under the second proviso of section 

14312) of the Companies Act, 2012 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereol for the 

time being in force. ); 

e) During Financial year under review, there has been no revision of financial statement in the relevant financial 

year. 

f) The Company does nol have any scheme or provision of money for the purchase of its own shares by 

employees/ Directors or trustee for the benefit employees Directors; and 

g) The Company has notissued Equity Shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise. 
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34. APPRECIATION & ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 

Your Directors would like to place on record their gratitude for all the support and co-operation received from its 

shareholders, customers, suppliers as well as vendors, banks, business associates and other government and regulatory 

agencies. Your Directors would also like to take this opportunity to express their appreciation for the hard work, solidarity, 

co-operation and dedicated efforts putin by the employees and look forward to their continued contribution and support. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Jaykumar Varma 

Chairperson 

DIN: OO4aoTS2 

Place : Nagpur 

Date: 30th August2024 
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ANNEXURE A - Form AOC-1 

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2074) 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidianes/associate companies/oint ventures 

Part “A”: Subsidiaries 

Sr. No, 4 

Name of the Subsidiary Cian Agro Limited - LLC 

Date since when Subsidiary was acquired/incorporated 13-08-2020 
Financial Year ending on 34/09/2024 

Reporting Gurrancy Russian Rubels 

Exchange Rate on the last day of the financial year 1 Rub=0.9005 INR* 

Share Capital 6,20,000 
Reserves & Surplus - 

Total Assets 135,404 88 

Total Equity &Liahilities 135,404.58 

Invesiments (excluding Investments made insubsidiaries) |- 
Tumover = 

Profil/(Loss) before lax (1,445,412.35) 

Prowrsttr for fein : 

Profi/(Loss) afer tax (1,445 ,412.35) 
Proposed Dividend = 

% of shareholding 100% 

“hitpsiwew.exchangerates.ong.uk/RUBINR-d1_03_2024-exchange-rale-history. html 

Part “B": Associates and Joint Ventures 

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of ihe Companies Act, 2013 related to Associale Companies and Joint Ventures 

Sr.No. NLA. 

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures NLA. 

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date NA. 
2. Shares of Associates /Joint Ventures held by the company on the yearend NLA. 

No. NLA. 

Amountof investmentin Associates! Joint Ventures NA. 

Extend of Holding % NLA. 
3. Description of how there is significantinfluence NA. 
4, Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated NA. 

§. Net worth aliributable to Shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet NLA. 

6. Profit/(Loss) forthe year NA. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

CIAN Agro Industries & infrastructure Limited 

Nikhil Gadkari Ramesh Himte 
Managing Direchor Director 
DIN: 00234754 DIN: 02112732 

Nakul Bhat Madhubala Dave 
CFO Company 

PAN: BGSPB6379N Mem. No. F12218 
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Annexure - € 

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 

(Information as required under Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of tha Companies: 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Resource efficiency fonms an integral partof our environmental strategy. Through our continuous efforts, we strive to meet 

the needs of our customers. In doing so, we optimize our resource management approach to efficiently utilize raw 

materials and minimize material waste. To ensure the availability of raw materials required for our business operations, we 
make optimum use of our resources and adopl ways to reuse and reintroduce excess material in our production process 

without compromising the quality of our products and solutions. 

a) Conservation of Energy: - 

Your Company operates in a safe and environmentally responsible manner for the long-term benefit of all 

slakeholders. Company ensures that the manufacturing operations are conducted in Ihe mannerwhereby opliimum 

Ulilization and maximum possible savings of energy is achieved. 

The Company works towards minimizing the impact of its operations on the environment and is committed to take 

effective measures to conserve energy, promote the use of renewable energy and drive anergy efficiency in its 

operations, During the year under review, several steps were taken for conservation of energy, some of which are 

listed below: 

. Reuse of Treated effluent. 

. Re-circulation of cooling tower water. 

* Use of energy efficient CFL and LED lamps bn all plants. 

. Thermal energy (steam) was purchased from olher power generation units al lower cost thereby reducing 

usage of coal to-s0me extent in its own boilers.& helped in reducing carbon foot print. 

. Process improvements to enhance productivity and reduce specific energy consumption acmss Businesses. 

Your Company is putting all the efforts to increase the share of Renewable Enengy. 

b) Technology Absorption: - 

. The Company is continuously focusing on upgrading its products and manufacturing technology as well as 

acquiring new and advanced technology to meet Ihe emerging expectations of the customers. The activities 

are in full consonance with the Company's objective of ulilizing the most advanced energy efficient solutions at 

Minimum cost. 

. The Company has carried out R&D work for devaloping new products and for improvement in the quality of the 

exisling products of the company. 

“ The continuous improvement through R&D activilies in the process to manufacture different products has 

helped the Company to launchils new products and expand its marke. 

* Expenditure incurred on research and development are charged under primary heads of accounts and not 
allocated separately. 

. New process and product technologies on personal hygiene, skin care are developed through in-howse 

Research & Development inthe Personal Care Products of the company. 

. The Company has tried to make maximum utilisation of waste! byproducts for the purpose of conservation of 

natural resources and cost reduction. 

c) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo: - 

Forthe Yoar F.¥. 2023-24 F. ¥. 2022-23, 

Foreign Exchange outgo NIL 3,22, 11,579.00 

Foreign Exchange eamed 25,62545.00 10,42,220.00 

Place ; Nagpur 

Date : 30th August, 2024 For and on behalf of board 

Jaykumar Varma 

Chairperson 

DIN-OO48g7S2 
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Annexure D 

Management Discussion & Analysis Report 

Global Economy 

The global economy demonstrated resilience in CY 2023, registering a growth rate of 3.2%. This growth was propelled by 

pent-up consumer demand, accumulated savings, and tight labor markets. However, the economy faced significant 

challenges like supply chain disruptions, geopolitical tensions, and the lingering impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic, pulling 

its resilience to the test. Global inflation rose to 6.8%, although it bagan to moderate later in the year, 

The global economy remains remarkably resilient, with growth holding steady as inflation returns to fargel. The journey 

has been eventful, starting with supply-chain disruptions in the aftermath of the pandemic, a Russian-initiated war on 

Ukraine that tiggered a global energy and food crisis, and a considerable surge in inflation, followed by a globally 

synchronized monetary policy lightening. 

However, defying these odds, the perfonmance of the US economy has been stronger-than-anticipated, Global headline 

inflation foracas! while Emerging Markets and Developing Economies (EMDEs) have also maintained a sleady growth 

momentum throughout CY2024. Further, Europe and Asia have witnessed greater domestic demand and are on track fora 

gradual economic recovery. 

On a year-over-year basis, global growth bottomed out atthe end of 2022, at 2.3 percent, shortly after median headline 

inflation peaked al 9.4 percenL According to our latest projections, growth for 2024 and 2025 will hold steady around 3.2 

percent, with median headline inflation declining from 2.8 percent atthe end of 2024 to 2.4 percentatthe and of 2025, 

Indian economy 

The Indian economy has demonstrated marked resilience in the face of geopolitical headwinds imparting supply chain 

pressures, According lo the economic activity index (EAI), activity rebounded in Aprl and early estimales suggest! that 

GDP growth for 01:2024-25 Is likely to remain close to 7.5 per cent. This robust performance has propelled the Indian 

economy to-a milestone of USD 3.5 Trillion, setting a strong foundation for achieving the ambitious USD 5-Trilion target in 

the coming years. 

Fortunately, the Indian economy today is the fastest growing amongst the major economies of the world. However, for this 

growth to be inclusive, ilis imperative thatwe have a financial system thal works forall, This objective stands al the heart of 

all the efforts being made by the RBI towards financial inclusion. 

Outlook 

Global growth, estimated al 3.2 percent in 2023, is projected to continue at the same pace in 2024 and 2025 (Table 1.1). 

The projection for 2024 is revised up by 0.1 percentage pointirom the January 2024 WEO Update, and by 0.3 percentage 

point with respect to the October 2023 WEO forecast. Nevertheless, the projection for global growth in 2024 and 2025 is 

below the historical (2000—19) annual average of 3.8 percent, reflecting restrictive monetary policies and withdrawal of 

fiscal support, as wall as low underlying productivity growth..Advanced economies are expected to see growth rise slightly, 

with the increase mainly reflecting a recovery in the euro area from low growth in 2023, whereas emerging market and 

developing economies are expected to experence stable growth through 2024 and 2025, with regional differences, 

Growth in emerging and developing Asia is expected to fall from an estimated 5.6 percent in 2023 to 5.2 percent in 2024 

and 4.9 percent in 2025, a slight upward revision compared with the January 2024 WEO Update. Growth in China is 

projected to slow from 5.2 percent in 2023 to 4.6 percent in 2024 and 4.1 percent in 2025 as the positive effects of one-off 

factors—inciuding the post pandemic boost to consumption and fiscal stimulus—ease and weakness in the property 

sector persists. Growth In India is projected lo remain strong al 6.8 percent in 2024 and 6.5 percent in 2025, wilh the 

robusiness reflecting continuing strangth in domestic demand and a rising working-age population. 
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industry structure and developments 

A) FMCG Sector— 

Fast-moving consumer goods (FMCG) Is the fourthdangest sector in the Indian economy. There are three main segments 

the sector food and beverages, which accounts for 19% of the sector; healthcare, which accounts for 31% of the share; and 

household and personal care, which accounts for the remaining 50% share. The urban segment contributes to about 65% 

of the revenue share, while the rural segment! accounts for 35. The rise in rural consumption will drive the FMCG market. 

The Indian processed food market is projected to expand ip US$ 470 billion by 2025. 

The FMCG sector in India expanded due to consumeririven growth and higher product prices, especially for essential 

goods, FMCG's primary growth drivers are income growth, lifestylo changes, increased awareness, and easier access. 

The total revenue of fhe FMCG market is expected lo grow ala CAGR of 27.9% from 202 1-27, reaching nearly US$ 615.87 

billion, In 2022, the urban segment contributed 65% whereas rural India contributed more than 35% to the overall annual 

FMCG sales. Good harvest, government spending expected to.aid rural demand recovery in FY 24. 

Union Budget 2023-24 has allocated US$ 976 million for PLI schemes that aim to reduce import costs, improve the cost 

competitiveness of domestically produced goods, increase domestic capacity, and promote exports. Union budget 2023- 

24 focuses on reviving rural demand by boosting disposable income, allocation to farms and higher fund allocation on rural 

infrastructure, connectivity, arid mobility to create long-term jobs: 

The total revenue of the FMCG market ts expected to grow al a CAGR of 27.9% from 2021 bo 2027, reaching nearly US$ 

615.87 billion, The Indian healih-tach market is expected to grow ata CAGR of 39% and touch US$ 50 billion by 2033, 

India’s beauty and personal care markel, presently valued at US$ 16.8 billion, is poised to grow ats compound annual rate 

of 11%, with cosmetics and perfumes categories growing at a faster clip. 

India’s economy continues to grow al the highest rate in the world, oulpacing thal of emerging and developing Asia and 

economic expectations for China. India has been ranked as the fifthtargest economy in terms of exchange rate and the 

third4argest economy in terms of purchasing power panty. In the fiscal year 2023, the Indian economy is expected to grow 

al 6.5% against 7% in 2022 and 6.7% in 2021. India's GDP growth was projected in a range of 6-6.8% for the fiscal year 

2023-24. 

The FMCG sector has received good investments and support from the Goverment in the recent past Union Budget 

2023-24 has allocated USS 976 million for PLI schames that aims to reduce import costs, improve the cost 

competitiveness of domestically produced goods, increase domestic capacity, and promote exports. In 2021-22, the 

goverment approved the Production Linked Incentive Scheme for Food Processing industry (PLISFPI) with an outlay of 

Rs. 10,900 crore (US$ 1.4 billion) to help Indian brands of food products in the intemational markets. 

B) Agro industry - 

This industry is at the confluence of three of the greatest challenges of the 21st century — sustaining food and nutrition 

seourily, adaptation and miligation of climate change, and sustainable use of critical resources such as wales, energy, and 

land, highlights the Survey. The Survey notes that although agriculture and allied sectors hold significant potential for 
gainful employment, India is yet to fully exploit the potential of agriculture to contribute to economic growth and 

employment generation. The agricultural sector requires a serious structural transformation due to challenges posed by 

water scarcity and climate change adds the Survey. 

The surge in agricultural employment in COVID years due ip reverse migration, the decline in the growth fale of value 

addition in agriculture in F¥24, and an extramaly hot summer in the Northwestom and central regions of the country in the 

summer of 2024 with rising water stress and energy consumption make a serious and honest stock-taking of India's farm 

sactor policies imperative, concludes the Survey. 

The shares ‘of this sector in overall GVA at current prices were 17.7 per cent, in FY24. GVA in the agriculture sector 

continued lo grow, albeit ala slower pace, as the erratic wealher pattems during the year and an uneven spatial distribution 

ofthe monsoon in 2023 impacted overall outpul 
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Apart from meeting domestic requirements, India has also rapidly emerged as the net exporter of agricultural products in 

recent years. 

Rapid population expansion in India is the main factor driving the industry. The rising income levels in rural and urban 

areas, which have contributed to an increase in the demand for agricultural products across the nation, provide additional 

support for this. in accordance with this, the market is being stimulated by the growing adoption of cutting-edge techniques 

including blockchain, arlificial intelligence (Al), geographic information systems (GIS), drones, and remole sensing 

technologies, as wellas the release of various e-farming applications. 

in FY 2029-24, the Indian edible ofl market reached a value of USD 99,966.6 Million, and is projected to reach USD 

47 631.5 Million by FY 2025-26, registering a CAGR of 7.92% during the forecast period. India holds the title of the world's 

largest importer of edible oils, with imports constitufing approximately 65% 68% of the country's total annual consumption 

of 24-25 Million Tons. The market reached a size of 24.7 Million Tons in FY¥ 2023-24 and is expected to clock ina CAGR of 

1.35% to 27.9 Million Tons by 2032. Furthermore, tha govamment has proposed the National Mission on Edible Oils to 

boost domestic production and reduce import dependency. Moreover, edible oil prices, which are currently low, may 

remain range bound +/- 7% due to prospects of lower global oulpul, economic issues, and key producers diverting oils for 

biofuel amid supply constraints 

The global market for edible oils reached USD 161,693.9 Million in 2023 and is projected to reach USD 183,507.4 Million 

by 2025, registering a CAGR of 5.38% during the 2020-2025 period. This growth is driven by increasing consumer 

demand, changing dietary pattems, and changing government requiations 

C) Aluminium Sector— 

Aluminium is the second largest metal market in the world, jus! behind iron and steel. Demonstrating a robusi growth of 

2.23%, the global aluminium industry reached approximately 70,581 thousand metric tonnes in C'Y 2023. The significant 

growth of the market can be attributed to the critical role of aluminium across various sectors. Furlbermore, the growth also 

highlights the industry's resilience and adaptability amide! fluctuating market demands and geopolitical challenges. 

itis expected that with the rising demand for aluminium across different industries, global aluminium consumption will grow 

al 5.655 CAGR between years 2024 and 2032. Key regions such as China, Europe and North America remain al the 

forefront of both production and consumption. China alone accounts for 41,666 thousand metric tonnes of aluminium of 

the global output. Owing to rapid indusirialization and urbanisation, the Asia-Pacific region, led by India, has emerged as a 
significant contributor to global aluminium demande. On the olher hand, Europe and North America, with their advanced 

automotive and construction sectors, also contribute significantly to the global demard 

india is the second largest aluminium producer and third biggest consumer in the world, with demand anticipated to 

increase two-fold in the coming decade, The Indian aluminium industry has witnessed ramarkable growth in the recent 

years. 

As of F¥ 2024, India's primary aluminium production raached an impressive 41.59 Lakhs motric tons, marking 2.1% 

increase from the previous year. This robust performance reflects the industry's resilience and its pivotal role in driving 

economic growlh across various sectors. With substantial reserves of bauxite and other minerals, India is poised to 

become a key player in the global aluminium market. Various governmental initiatives such as the National Mineral Policy, 

2019 and the Mines and Minerals (Development and Regulation) Amendment Act, 2021 are bolstering production and 

altracting investment. 

Business performance 

During the Financial year 2023-24 under review, revenue from Agro Division of the Company is Rs. 15,045.99 Lakhs as 

compared to previous financial year of Rs. 21,648.85 Lakhs. 

During financial Year 2023-24 under review, Revenue from operation of Health & Personal care division of the Company 

boost to Rs. 253.73 Lakhs as compared to previous year of financial year of Rs. 1499.07 Lakhs. 

ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024



@ 
CI4N Agro Industries & Infrastructure Lid. 

ClIAN —— 

During the Financial Year 2023-24 under review, Infrastructure Division has turnover of Rs, 1,771.22 Lakhs as compared 

to the previous year of Rs. 5951.63 Lakhs. 

D) Significant Changes In Key Financial Ratios: 

Particulars F¥ 2023.24 | FY 2022.23 SL aan 

Current Ratio 1.05 1.16 

Debt Equity Rata 1.20 1.62 The change in the ratio is primarily due to 

increased profits (retained earnings) 

Debt Service 0.38 1.19 Higher loan repayments caused the 
Coverage Ratio ratio to change. 

Net Profit Ratio (%) 2.87 0.12% The change in the ratio is due to increased 

profit aller tax due to gain on fair valuation 

of Loan. 

Retum on Equity 5.49% 0.41% The change in the ratio is due to increased 

profit after tax due to gain on fair Ratio 

valuation of Loan.(%) 

Retum on Capital 11% 8% The change is due to increase in Eamings 

employed before interest and tax. 

Invesiment(%) 7% 6.07% - 
Trade Receivables 4.04 5.72 The change is due to decrease in sales 

tumover ratio during the year. 

Inventory lumover ratio 0.53 1.91 The change is due-to decrease in sales 

during the year. 

Trade payables 1.63 3.51 The change is due to a significant decrease 

‘tumover ratio in the purchase of matenals consumed. 

Net capital 10.65 6.30 The change is due to propotionately higher 

tumover ratio decrease in working capital. 

E) Audit and Internal Controls - 

CIAN has well-established processes and clearly-defined roles and responsibilities for people al various levels. This, 

coupled with adequate intemal information systems embedded in business automation software, ensures proper 

information flow for the decision-making process. Adherence to these processes is ensured through frequent intemal 

audits. The Executive Committees monitors business operations through regular reviews of performance vis-a-vis 

budgets..An extensive program of intemal audit conducted by the intemal audit team, reviewed by the Audit Committee, 

and requisite quidelines and procedures augment the intemal controls. The intamal control system is designed to ensure 

that financial and other records are reliable for preparing financial statements and other information. These procedures 

ensure that.all transactions are properly reported and classified in the financial records. 

F) Risk Management — 

The Company has a welldefined process in place lo ensure appmprale identification and treatment of risks. Risk 

identification exercise is interwoven with the annual planning cycle which ensures both regularity and comprehensiveness. 

The identification of risk is done al strategic, business, operatonal and process levels. While the mitigation plan and actions for 

risks belonging to strategic, business and key critical operational risks driven by senior CLAN leadership, for rest of the risks, 

operating managers drive the conception and subsequentactoning of mitigation plans. 
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The key strategic, business and operational risks which are significant in terms of their impact to the overall objectives of 

the Gompany along with status of mitigation plans are penodically presented and discussed in the Board Meetings. The 

Company, through ils risk management process, aims to contain the risks within its appetite. There are no risks which in 

opinion of the Board threaten the operations and existence of the Company. 

G) Human Assets- 

The Company continued to make significant progress on strengthening HR Processes. and Practices to build organization 

for current as well as future sustainability during the year. The Company focuses on providing individual development and 

growth in a professional work culture that ensures high performance. The Company has concentrated on enhancing 

capability of employees that ullimately helps achieving better standards of operations. The Company organizes various 

Seminars for the upgradation of Employees working skills and management of workload. 

H) Forward Looking Statement- 

Cautionary Statement Forward-looking statements in the ‘Management Discussion and Analysis’ section are based on 

certain assumplions/ expectations of future events and are stated as required by applicable laws and regulations. Actual 

resulls could differ maternally from ihose expressed or implied. Major faciors thal could make the difference. to the 

Company's operations could be agro-climatic conditions, government policy, domestic & intemational market conditions 

and such other factors, which are beyond control of the management. 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Jaykumar Varma 

Place : Nagpur Chainperson 

Date : 30th Augusl, 2024 DIN: 00489792 
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ANNEXURE E 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

(Pursuant to Reg. 34 of the SEB! (LODR) Regulations 2015) 

1. Company's Philosophy on Code of Governance: 

The vision and mission statement of the Company is to be a world class Agro Industry. Sound Corporate Governance is 

critical for enhancing and retaining investor trust. Your corporation believes thal Corporate Governance is a key clamentin 

improving the economic efficiency of a firm. Good Corporate Governance also helps to ensure that organization take into 

account the interests ofa wide range of constituencies, as well as communibes. Your Company abide by transparency and 

full accountability of Management on varous issues pertaining to the Company's business thereby protecting the interest 

of the shareholders. Your Company believes that sound ethical practices, transparency in operations and timely 

disclosures go a long way in enhancing long-term shareholders value while safeguarding the interest of all the 

stakeholders. Good governance enables the Company to operate in an ethical manner, meet business expectations and 

fulfill its social responsibilities, 

As per the requirements of Reguiation 34 read with Chapter lV and Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred as ‘Listing Requilations’), the Directors thereby present the Report 

on Corporate Governance forthe year ended 31st March, 2024. 

2. Board of Directors : 

CLAN Board has an optimum mix of Executive and Non-Executive Directors in line with the applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the Listing Regulations. The Board of Directors of the Company consists of 

Professionals and Technically qualified Individuals. The Board works through its various commillees constituted to 

oversee specific operational areas. There are four (4) committees constituted by the Board of Directors namely Audit 

Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Commillee and Corponite Social 

Responsibility Committees. The total strength of Board as on March 31, 2024 is Six (6) Directors including One (1) Promoter 

Directors, Two (2) non promoter (Non-Executive) non Independent Director and Three (3) Independent Directors including 

One (71) Women Director. 

a) Composition: The Board of Directors of the Company as of March 31, 2024 consisted of : 

Non-Executive Directors Executive Directors 

Mr. Ravindra Boratkar-Non-Promoter Director 

Mr. Jaykumar Varnes —Non-Promoter Director 

Mr. Ramesh Himte — Independent Director Mr, Nikhil Gadkeari—Managing Director 

Mr. Atul Vijay Mandlekar - Independent Director 

Mrs. Vrushali Jitendra Pradhan - Independent Woman Director 

b) Meetings of the Board of Directors : 

The Board of Directors met 10 times during the year under review on following dates: 

(i) 20th April, 2023. (ii) 29th May, 2023 (ii) 12th August, 2023 (iv) 29th August, 2023 

(v) 30th September, 2023 | (vi)O9thNovember, 2023 | (vil) 14thDecember, 2023 | (vili) 25th December, 2023 
(ix) 12th February, 2024 (x) 01st March, 2024 
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The meetings are conducted in compliance with the provisions of Secretanal Standard-1 on “Meetings of the Board of 

Directors’, issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI). As stipulated, the gap between two consecutive 

meetings did nol exceed one hundred and twenty days as the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and SS-1 

issued by the ICSI. The necessary quorum was present forall the meelings. 

The Independent Directors have submitted deciarations that they meet criteria of Independence laid down under the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") and the Listing Regulations and have confirmed that they do not hold directorship more 

than the prescribed limits under applicable regulations. The maximum tenure of independent directors is in compliance 

with the Ack The Gompany has also issued formal appointment letters to all the Independent Directors in the manner 

provided under the Act read with the Rules framed thereunder, None of the Independent Directors has any other material 

pecuniary relationship or ransaction with the Company, its Promoters, its Directors. or ils senior management personnel, 

which would affect their independence. 

The details of BOD's attendance at each Board Meeting and atthe previous Annual General Meeting (AGM) along with the 

number of Directorships and Memberships/Chainmanships held in various Committees, in olfber Public companies as on 

31st March, 2024 is given below: 

Name of the Directors No. of Boord Atiendance | Mo.of Directorships | No.ofConmmitte: | No. ofshares inter se 

Meetings atest in offer Public Posi teers fected ii convertible retaiion 

AGM" Companies other Public instruments, among, 

Companies held Directors. 

Held | Attended Chairman Member 

Mr. Nikhil Gadkari 10 9 Yes 0 0 0 0 Not 

Managing Director Related 

Mr. Ravindra Boraticar 10 10 Yes 2 0 0 500 Not 

Non-Executive Director Related 

Mr. Jaykumar Varma 10 10 Yes 1 0 0 0 Nat 

Non-Executive Director Related 

Mr. Ramesh Himte 10 10 Yes 0 0 0 0 Not 

Independent Diracior Related 

Mrs. Vrushali Pradhan- 10 tr Yes 1 0 0 0 Not 

independent Director Related 

Mr. Atul Vijay Mandlekar 10 ¥ Yes 0 0 0 0 Not 

Independent Director Related 

Mr. Anandrao Raut 10 4 Yes 0 a 0 0 Not 

Independent Director Related 

(Upto 30/09/2023) 
Mrs. Gouri Chandrayan 1 4 Yes oO 0 0 o Not 

Independent Olrector Related 

(Upto 30092023) 

* All the members of the Board of Directors atlended the fast Annual General Meeting ((AGM*) of the ~Company held 

on 30th September, 2023 through Video Conference (VC). 

1. Directorships held by Directors in respect of Private Limited companies, companies incorporated under 

Section § of the Companies Act, 20173 and foreign companies have nol been included. 

2. Position inAudit Committee and Stakeholder's Relationship Committee alone are considered for the purpose. 

3. WNoneof the Directors is a member of more than Ten Committees and Chainnan of more than Five Commitiees 

fas specified in Regulation 76 of Listing Regulations] across all the companies in which they are directors. 
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4. None of the Independent Director serves as an independent Director in more than seven listed companies [as 

specified in Reguiation 25 of Listing Requiations]. 

5. Thenecessary quorum was present for all the meetings. 

6. During the year, information as mentioned in Part Aof Schedule 1) of the SEB! Listing Regulations, has bean 

placed before the Board for its consideration. 

7. Asrequired under Regutation 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Secratarial Standard 2, particulars of 

Directors seeking appointmentre-appointment at this AGM are given in the Annexure to the Notice of this AGM. 

3.Committecs : 

With an objective of efficient and smocth operations, the Board has constituted various Commitiees. These committees 

are responsible to decide upon and execute various routine matters and such other decisions as the Board may authorize. 

The draft minutes of the proceedings of each Committee meating duly initialed by the Chairman of the respective 

Committee Meeting are circulated to tha members of the respective Committee for their comments and thereafter, 

conhnmed by the respective Committe in its next meeting. The tenms of reference of each commitiee has been approved 

by the Board. 

Currently the Company has the following Four (4) Committees of the Board: 

1) Audit Committee 

i} Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

iii)  Stakeholder's Relationship Committe 

vw) CSR Commitiee 

4, Audit Committee 

The Audit Committee of the Directors considers matiers generally specified in the SEB! (LODR) Regulations 2015 ie, 

suggesting to the Board of Directors, the accounting policies and procedures, Accounting Standards to be implemented. 

The Audit Committee held Five (5) meetings during the financial year under review on 29-05-2023, 12-08-2023, 30-09 

#029, 09-11-2023 and 12-02-2024. As stipulated, the gap between any two meetings of the commiltee did nol exceed one 

hundred and twenty days as the provisions of the Act and the necessary quorum was present forall meetings. 

The composition, meetings and attendance of members of the Committee al meetings ware as follows : 

Name of Member Status Designation) No.of Meetings 

Held Attended 

Mr. Atul Vijay Mandlekar Independent Non-Executive Director Chairman 5 ] 

(w.e.1 30/09/2023) 

Mrs. Voushali Jitendra Pradhan | Independent Non-Executive Director Member 5 3 

(wie. 30/05/2023) 

Mr. Ravindra Bonatkar Non-Independent Non-Executive Director | Member 5 5 

Mr. Ramesh Himte Independent Non-Executive Director Member 5 5 

Mr. Anandrao Raut Independent Non Executive Director Chairman 5 2 

{Upto 30/08/2023) 

Mrs. Gour Chandrayan Indapendent Non Executive Director Member 5 2 

(Upto 30/09/2023) 

The Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company acts as Secretary to the Committee. The Chairman of 

the Audit Committee was present at the previous Annual General Meating of the Company, 
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Extract of Terms of Reference: 

The Committee is constituted in terms of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of Listing Regulations 

which exercises the powers and discharges the functions as stipulated under the applicable laws. The Commitiee also 

undertakes and reviews such matters as may be delegated by the Board from time totime. 

+ Oversightoffinancial reporting process. 

* Reviewing with the management, the annual financial statements and auditors’ nmport thereon before 

submission to the Board for approval, 

* Evaluation of intemal financial controls and risk management systems 

* Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company. 

* Approve policies in relation to the implementation of the Insider Trading Code and to supervise implementation 

of the same. 

4. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

The Board of Directors has constituted a Remuneration Committee for the purpose of deciding appointment! re- 

appointment of Managing Directors! Whole Time Directors etc and remuneration and compensation payable to them. 

Quring the financial year under review there was Three (3) meeting of Nomination & Remuneration Committee held on 

20-04-2023, 12-08-2023 and 30-09-2023. The composition, meeting and attendance of members of the Committee at 

meetings were as follows: 

Name of Member Status Designation| No. ofMeetings 

Held | Attended 

Mr. Atul Vijay Mandlekar Independent Non -Execulive Director Chairman 3 1 

(wef 30/09/2023) 

Mrs. Vrushali Jitendra Pradhan | Independent Non-Executive Director Member 3 1 

(w.e.130/0W2023) 

Mr. Ravindra Boratkar Nonindependent Non-Execuliva Director | Member 3 3 

Mr. Ramesh Himle Independent Non-Executive Director Member 3 3 

Mr. Anandrao Raut Independent Non Executive Director Chairman a 2 

(Upto 30/09/2023) 

Mrs. Gouri Chandrayan Independent Non Executive Director Member 3 2 

(Upto 30/08/2023) 

The Company Secretary & Compliance Officer al the Company acts as Secretary io he Commillea. 

Extract of Terms of Reforence: 

The Committee is duly constituted as per the provisions of Section 176 of Companies Act, 2073 and Requiation 19 of the 

Listing Regulations. The Committee is empowered to formulate the Remuneration Policy which includes the criteria for 

qualifications, axpeaneance, independance and remuneration of Directors, KMP and employees and criteria for evaluation 

of Independent Directors and to recommend the appointment/re-appointment. 

* Recommend tothe Board the setup and composition of the Board and its Committees, 

* Recommend tothe Board the appointment're-appointment of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel. 

+ Support the Board and Independent Directors in evaluation of the performance of the Board, its Commiliees 

and individual Directors. 
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* Recommend to the Board the Remuneration Policy for Directors, executive team or Key Managenal Personne! 

as well as the reslof employees. 

* Oversee familiarization programs for Directors. 

Performance Evaluation Criteria for Independent Directors : 

fin terms of the requirements of the Act and the Listing Regulations, an annual peformance evaluation of the Board is 

undertaken where the Board formally assesses its own perlonmance with an aim to improve the effectiveness of the Board 

and the Committees. 

The Company has a structured assessment process for evaluation of performance of the Board, its Committees and 

individual performance of each Director including the Chairperson. The evaluations are. cared out in a confidential 

manner and the Directors provide their feedback by rating based on various metrics. The performance evaluation criteria 

for independentdirectors is determined by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

The Independent Directors al their separate meeting reviewed the performance of: Non-Independant Directors and the 

Board as a whole, the Chairman of the Company after taking into account the views of other Directors, succession 

planning, the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and the Board that 

isnecessary forthe Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties. 

Details of Ramuneration/Sitting Fees paid in Directors during the Financial Year 2027-24: 

Names Salary Perquisites | Others | SittingFees | Total 

Mr, Nikhil Gadkari $6,39,564.00 | — _ — 96,39,564.00 

Mr. Ravindra Boratkar —_ — =a = = 

Mr. Jaykumar Varma a — = = — 

Mr. Ramesh Himte — —_ = _ — 

Mr. Atul Vijay Mandlekar -- a — = _ 

Mrs. Vrushali Jitendra Pradhan — — pa = _ 

Mrs. Gouri Chandrayan — — — — — 

Mr. Anandrao Raut a — = i _ 

Total 96,39,564.00 |— — — 96,39,564.00 

The tenure of office of the Executive Director is for 5 years from the respective date of appointmentre-appointment and 

can be terminated by either party by giving reasonable period of notice in writing or as per the terms of Agreement 

in order to conserve the resources of the company to further strengthen the financial position of the Company, Directors 

have waived of their sitting fees for year 2023-24. Also presently, the Company does not have any scheme to grant stock 

options either to the Executive Directors or to Employees of the Company. 

6. Stakeholder's Relationship Committee 

This Committee is responsible for the satisfactory redressal of investors’ complaints and recommends measures for 

overall improvement in the quality of investor services. Especially it books after grievances of shareholders and investors 

Complaints like dematenalisation / rematenalisation of shares, transfer of shares, transmission of shares, non-receipt of 

share certificates and/or balance sheet, dividend(s) efc. and timely redressal of their grievance thereto. 

During the year under review, the Committee held Four (4) meetings on 20-04-2023, 30-09-2023, 09-11-2023 and 

12-02-2024 for the approval of transfer of shares, approval of requests relating to dematerialization of shares and all 

matters incidental or related thereto. The composition, meetings and attandance of members of the Committes at 

meetings were as follows : 

ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024



CI4N Agro Industries & Infrastructure Lid. 

Name of Member Status Designation No. of Meetings 

Held | Attended 

Mrs. Vrushali Jitendra Pradhan | Independent Non-Executive Director Chairperson 4 2 

(wef 30/09/2023) 

Mr. Atul Vijay Mandlekar Independent Non-Executive Director Member 4 2 

(wie. 30/08/2023) 

Mr. Ravindra Boratkar Non-Independent Non-Executive Director | Member 4 4 

ir. Ramesh Himte Independent Non-Executive Director Mamber 4 4 

Mrs. Gouri Ghandrayan Independent Non Executive Director Chairperson 4 1 

(Upto 30/08/2023) 

Mr. Anandrao Raut Independent Non Executive Director Member 4 1 

(Upto 30/09/2023) 

The Company Secretary & Compliance Officerofthe Company acts as Secretary to the Committee. 

Extract of Terms of Reference : 

The Committee is duly constituted as per the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of 

Listing Regulations. 

* Consider and resolve the gnevances of security holders. 

* Ensure proper controls al Registrar and Share Transfer Agents; 

*  Revwew movement in shareholdings profile. 

* Approve transfers, ransmissions, dematenalization of shares, issue-of duplicate certificates, change of names 

ate. and lode all such acts, deeds, matiers and things as connected therewilh., 

¥.Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

This Committee is responsible for formulation and recommends to the Board, a Comorate Social Responsibility Policy 

which shall indicate the projects/activities to be undertaken by the Company in areas or subject, as specified in Schedule 

VIL. Reviewing with the CSR management and recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on CSR 

propects/activities undertaken. 

During the financial year under review there was Two (2) meetings of Corporale Social Responsibilities Committee held on 

30-09-2023 and 01.03.2024, The composition, meeting and altendance of members of the Committee at meetings were 

as follows: 

Name of Member Status Designation| No.of Meetings 

Held | Attended 

Mrs. Vrushali Jitendra Pradhan | Independent Non-Executive Director Chairperson 2 2 

(w.e.F 30/09/2023) 

Mr. Atul Vijay Mandlekar Independent Non-Executive Director Member 2 2 

(w.e.f 30/09/2023) 

Mr. Ravindra Boratkar Non-Independent Non-Executive Director | Member 2 z 

Mr. Ramesh Himte Independent Non-Executive Director Mamber 2 2 

Mrs. Gouri Chandrayan Independent Non Executive Director Chairperson 2 0 

(Upto 30/09/2023) 

Mr. Anandrao Raut Independent Non Executive Director Member 2 q 

(Upto 30/09/2023) 
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The Committee is duly constituted as per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 to oversee and give 

direction to the Company's CSR activities. 

* Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities; 

* Monitor implementation and adherence to the CSR Policy of the Company from time to time; 

* Prepare a transparent moniloring mechanism for ensuring implementation of the projects/ 

programmes/activities proposed to be undertaken by the Company, 

* fo review CSR projects wilh a view to ensure thal they are in line with the CSR objectives and the CSR and 

Sustainability Policy ofthe Company and are aligned with Schedule Vil of the Ack 

*  torevdew the annual CSR budget and recommend the sare to he Board of Directors for approval: 

* providing guidance in the manner in which the CSR projects undertaken by the Company could make an 

impactful intervention across the communities inwhich the Company operates; and 

* Such other activities as the Board of Directors may determine from time to time. 

8. Status of Investors’ Complaints (As on 31st March, 2024): 

Atthe beginning of the year Received during the year | Resolved during the year Pending al the End of the year 

0 0 0 a 

9, Separate Meeting of Independent Directors 

As stipulated by the Code of Independent Directors under Schedule IV of the Act and Regulation 25(3) of Listing 

Regulations, a separate meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was held on 13th August, 2023 lo review the 

performance of Nor-independent Directors (including the Chairman) and the Board as whole and to ensure the system 

devised for checking the Tow of information between the Board and the Management is operating effectively and vice 

VETSa. 

10. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS: 

i)The details of location & time of last three Annual General Meetings of the Company are as follows: 

Year Venue Mode Date Time 

2022-23 | The venue of the meeting was deemed to Video Conference | 30th September, 2023 | 11:30AM. 

be the Registered Office of the Company at | / OtherAudio- 

4th Floor, Gupta Tower, Science College Visual means 

Road, Civil Lines Nagpur-440001 

2021-22 | Thevenue of the meeting was deemed to Video Conference | 30th September, 2022 | 11:30,A.M. 

be the Registered Office of the Company al | / OtherAudio- 
4th Floor, Gupta Tower, Science College Visual means 

Road, Civil Lines Nagour-440001 

2020-21 | Thevenue of the meeting was deemed to Video Conference | 30th September, 2021) 12.00 P.M. 

be the Registered Office of the Company al | /OtherAudio- 

4th Floor, Gupla Tower, Science College Visual means 

Road, ClvilLines Nagpur-440001 
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ii Details of Special Resolutions passed in the previous three Annual General Meetings are as under: 

Date Purpose of Special Resolution 

30th September, 2023 i, Appointmentof Shi Ramesh Dinkarrao Himie as an independent 

Director of the Company. 

i. Appoiniment of Smit Vrushali Jitendra Pradhan as an Independant 

Director of the Company. 

iii, Appointment of Shri Atul Vijay Mandlekar as an Independent 

Director of the Company 

30th September, 2022 Re-appointment of Mr. Nikhil Gadkari as Managing Director of the Company. 

30th September, 2071 No Special Resolution was proposed or passed. 

iii) Postal BallotfEGM conducted during the year : 

No Special Resolution was proposed through Postal Ballot during the financial year 2023-24. None of the businesses 

proposed to be transacted in the ensuing Annual General Meeting require passing a Special Resolution through Postal 

ballot. No Extra-ordinary General Meeting was held during the financial year 2023-24. 

11. Certificate by CEO/CFO: 

As required under Regulation 17 (8) of Listing Reguistions, a certificate from the CEO and CFO of the company certifying 

thal the financial stalements do nol contain any materially uninue slatement and these statements represent a tnie and fair 

view ofthe Company's affairs. The said certificate is Annexed to and forms part of the Annual Report. The said certificaieis 

enclosed as an Annexure to this Report 

12. Certificate from Company Secretary in Practice: 

As required under Part C of Schedule V of the SEB! (Listing Obligations and Disciosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

as amended from tine to time, a certificate has been received from Kaustubh Moghe, Practising Company Secretaries, 

that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company has bean debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 

continuing as Directors of Companies by the Secunties and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any 

such statutory authority, The certificate is enclosed as an Annexure to this Report, 

13. Recommendation by Committee : 

The Board has accepted all recommendations from all the committees of the Board, which is mandatorily required, during 

the financial year under review. 

14, Disclosure with respect to Demat Suspense Account/Unclaimed Suspense Account: 

The Company does not have any of its securities lying in demalfunclaimed suspense account ansing oul of publicibonus 

fright issues as at 31st March, 2024. Hence, the particulars relating to aggregate number of shareholders and the 

oulstanding securities in suspense account and other related matlers does nolarise, 

7145. Details of Total Fees paid to Statutory Auditors : 

Mis. PG Joshi & Co., Chartered Accountants, Nagpur (Firm Registration No. 104476W) has been appointed as the 

Statutory Auditor of the Company. The particular of payment of Statutory Auditors fees, on consolidated basis is given below: 

(Rs. in Lakh) 

Particulars. Amount 

Services.as statutory auditors (including quarterlyaudits) | 14.05 _ 
Tax Audit = 

Reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses - 

Total - 14.05 
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16.Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal) Act, 2013: 

@. WNumberof complaints Filed during the financial year-Wil 

6b. Number of complaints Disposed off during the financial year-NA 

6. Numberof complaints Pending as on end of the financial year- Nil 

47. Directors Familiarization Programme : 

Over the years, the Company has developed a robust familiarisation process for the newly appointed Directors with 

respect to their roles and responsibilities, way ahead of the prescription of the regulatory provisions. The process has been 

aligned with the requirements under the Act and other related regulations. A formal induction programme for new Directors 

and an on-going familiarisation process with respect to the business/working of the Company, the Company's business 

model for all Directors is a major contributor to familiarise the Directors with the dynamics of the cement indusiry to 

facilitate thelr engagement in meaningful deliberations and in taking informed decisions. 

Pursuant to Regulations 25(7) and 46 of the Listing Regulations, Details of familiarization program imparted to 

Independent Directors are available on the Company's website, 

18. Confirmation on independent Directors : 

in the opinion of the Board, the independent directors of the Company fulfill the conditions specified in the Listing 

Regulations and are independent of the management of the Company. 

19. Detalled reasons for the Resignation of an Independent Director: 

During the year under review, no Independent directors wore resigned. However, there was cessation of Mr. Anandrao 

Rautand Mrs. Gouri Chandrayan due to expiration of their two term of Appointmenton 30th September, 2023. 

20. DISCLOSURE : 

A. Related Party Transactions : 

The Company has formulated a Policy on Related Party Transactions and on dealing with Related Party Transactions, in 

accordance with relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the provisions of Regulation 23 of the SEB! 

Listing Regulations. 

The related party transactions during the financial year 2023-24 were on Arm's Length Basis and in Ordinary course of 

Business. The transactions with the related parties, as per the requirements of the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind-AS) 

24, are disclosed in the Notes on Accounts, forming part of the Annual Report. There are no materially significant related 

party (ransactions that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large. 

Audit Committee had identified the related parties with whom transactions which are of frequent! requiar/ repetitive nature 

are transacted in normal course of business of the Company. Audit Committee have grated standing pre-approval’ 

omnibus approval for ransactions with such related parties to be entered during the year under review. Transactions 

entered with related parties during the year under review under the said pre-approval! omnibus approval were reviewed by 

the Audit Committee. Weblink of our Company's policy on dealing with related party transactions is 

(htip:/fcianindusties.com/pdfipolicy-on-dealing-with-related-parly-transaction.pdf) 

B, Subsidiary Companies 

The Company does nol have any material nonisted Indian Subsidiary companies, whose tumover or nel worth (paid up 

capital and free reserves) exceeds 20% ofthe consolidated tumover or net worth respectively, ofthe Company, 

The requirements with respect to subsidiaries in terms of Regulation 24 of the Listing Regulations have been complied with 

by the Company. The major updates about the unlisted subsidiary companies are regularly presented to the Audit 

Committee and the Board in addition to the key points which are taken up in the audit committee! board meeting of 

subsidiaries. 
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C. Disclosure of Accounting Standards - 

Pursuant to SEB! Circular dated Sth July, 2016, the Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS*) and 

accordingly the financial slatemenis have been prepared in accordance with recognition and measurement principles laid 

down in the Ind AS 34 Interim Financial Reporting preserbed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2073 read with 

relevant rules issued thereunder and olher accounting principles generally accepted in India. 

D. Statutory Compliance, Penatties and Strictures related to Capital Market : 

There were no instances of material non-compliance and no strictures or penalties were imposed on the Company either 

by SEB, Stock Exchanges orany statutory authorilies on any matter related to capital markets during the last three years, 

E. Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory requirements: 

The Company has complied with all other Corporale Govemance requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and 

clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation 2 of Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations and necessary disclosures thereof have 

been made in this report. 

The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements laid down by Listing Regulathons. The Company has also 

complied with the requirements of Parl C (Corporate Governance Report) of sub-paras (2) to (10) of Schedule V of the 

Listing Regulations. 

The Company has also complied with some of the non mandatory requirements such as Separate posts of Chairman and 

Managing Director, Reporting of intemal Auditor directly to the Audit Gommitiee. 

The Auditors Certificate on Compliance with provisions related to Corporate Governance as stipulated in Schedule V (E) of 

Listing Regulations by the Company is also annexed to this report. 

F. Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy : 

The Company promotes ethical behaviour in all ils business activities and hence formulated a Whistle Blower Policy to 

establish a vigil mechanism for Directors and employees of the Company to reporl concerns about unethical behavior, 

actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's code of conduct or ethics policy, This will ensure fraud-free work & 

elhical environment. 

We affirm thal during the financial year 2023-24, no employee or director was denied access to the Audit Committee. 

21. Means of Communication : 

Your Company disseminates timely information about its operations, business and financial performance to stock 

exchanges, sharcholders and society at large. The quarterty/half yearhy/yeanry Financial Results are sent to BSE Limited 

immediately after they are approved by the Board in theirmecting. Financial Results are generally published in the national 

Daily newspaper “Indian Express” in English and Local Marathi Daily “Loksalta", which are widely circulated. The 

Company does not fumish the information to each shareholder individually. The results are posted on Campany's website 

and BSE Limited ive. www. bseindia.com. 

The Company's website hitpvwww.cianindusiries.com/ is updated periodically to include information on new 

developments, The Company has not made any presentations / press release to Institutional Investors or to the Analysts 

during the year underreviaw, 

22. Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement as 

specified under regulation 32 (7a) : 

During the financial year 2023-24, the Company has nol raised any funds through preferential allotment or qualified 

institutions placement. 
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23. General Shareholders’ information: 

a) Annual General Meeting: 

Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on 30th day, September, 2024 al 11.30 a.m., through Video 

conferencing (VCWOther Audio Visual means (AVM). 

b) Financial Year : 1stApnil to 31st March 

c}) Financial Calendar (Tentative) : 

Results for Quarter ended on June 2024 : {2th August 2024 

Annual General Meeting : 30th September 2024 

Results forthe Quarter ending on September 2024 : Second Week of November 2024 

Results forthe Quaner ending an December 2024 : Second Week of February 2025 

Results for the quarter ending on March 2025 : Forth Week of May 2025 

d) Date of Book Closure: 

Monday, 23rd September 2024 to Monday, 30th September 2024 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual 

General Meeting. 

e) Listing on Stock Exchange: 

The Company's Shares have been listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, Mumbai under Scrip Code No. 519477. 

The Company has paid listing fees to the stock exchanges and annual custodial fees to the depositories for the financial 

year 2023-24. 

f) Dematerialisation of Securities : 

The Company is registered with both NSDL & CDSL for Dematerialization of tts shares and have obtained ISIN 

INE052V01019 forits equity shares listed on BSE Limited. 

9} Share Transfer System: 

At present, Majority of the shares of the Company are in Demat mode and activities relating to transfer of shares are 

handled by Big Share Services Private Limited our RTA‘Le. Registrar & Transfer Agent On receipt of the transfer request, 

our RTA, venfies the request & documents received. If the transfer deeds along with Share certificates in physical form are 

found in order, it is submitted to Share Transfer Committee of the Directors for its consideration. Upon approval by the 

commiltes, necessary comection is made in Members’ Register and then the Share Certificates are dispatched {o the 

transferees by our RTA. For this purpose, nearaboul 15 days period is taken for completion of the transfer. For this purpose 

the SEB! Guidelines, provisions of SEB! (LODR) Regulation 2015 and of Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association 

ofthe Company are generally followed. The Company obtains froma Company Secretary in Practice hall yearly certificate 

of compliance with the share transfer formalilies as required under Regulation 40(9) of the Listing Regulations, and files a 

copy of the same with the Stock Exchange. 

However, as per SEBI Notification No. SEBULAD-NRO/GN/2018/24 dated June 8, 2018 and further amendment vide 

Notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/48 dated November 30, 2018, requests for effecting transfer of securities 

(excep! in case of transmission or transposition of securities) shall not be processed from Apnl 7, 2079 unless the 

securities are held in the demateralised form with the depositories. Therefore, Sharehokiers are requested to take action 

to dematenalize Ihe Equity Shares of the Company, prompily. 
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h) Shareholding Pattern : 

i. Categories of Shareholding as on March 341, 2024: 

CIA 

Ason3ist March 2024 

Category No. of tot No.ofShares | “of Share 

Shareholders | Shareholder held holding 

Promoters 16 0.23 1,89,38,121 67.67 

Mutual Funds, Fl, Fils, PPIs 5 0.07 54,800 0.20 

Individual Shareholders 6474 93.79 77,98,596 27.88 

Bodies Corporate 36 0.52 425,534 1.52 

NRIs & Overseas Corporate Bodies 342 4.95 6,23,020 223 

Public Others (Clearing Members, HUF) 30 0.44 1,45,824 0.52 

Total 6903 400 2,79,85,895 100 

ii. Distribution of Shareholding (in Rs.)asion 31st March, 2024 was as follows. 

Shareholding of Nominal Numberof | Percentageof | Share | Percentageof 
Rs. to Rs. From | Shareholders |TotalNo. Shares; Amount Total Amount 

1 &000 6152 BE.6328 8128090 2.9044 

5001 10000 393 5.6620 3440950 1.2295 

10001 20000 173 2.4924 2688590 0.9607 

70001 20000 66 0.9508 1647020 0.5885 

30001 40000 29 0.4178 1017640 0.3636 

40001 50000 a2 0.3170 1037790 0.3708 

$0001 100000 28 0.4034 2165600 0.7738 

100001 SOHgS999o9 78 1.1238 | 259734270 92.8086 
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i) Market Price Data: High! low, Number of shares traded during each month in the year 2023-24: 

Month Open Price High Price LowPrice | Close Price| Traded Quantity 

April-24 34.42 45.9 34.42 45.00 1885 

May-23 45.00 46.5 37.06 40.32 28,279 

dun-24 42.00 42.00 35.61 38.3 39,726 

dul-23 38.51 42.14 32.7 41.96 66,229 

Aug-23 41.00 56.24 37.95 50.35 69,729 

Sep-23 47.84 49.93 39.35 43.49 39924 

Oct-23 44.00 45.65 34.94 38.82 44,651 

Nov-23 39.79 43.45 34.5 37.7 59,296 

Dac-23 37.5 42.00 34.66 37.3 48,413 

Jan-24 35.25 41.69 35.00 38.99 80,301 

Feb-24 42.7 49.75 39.83 42.74 2,67,872 

Mar-24 42.73 42.85 36.1 38.00 38,902 

"Note: Indicates monthly prices & volume. Source—Websiles: BSE Ltd. (www beeindia.com) 

Performance of the Share Price of tha Company in comparison to the BSE Sonsax : 

INDEX COMPARISON 

SO 

7048 Se 
ae 

GO) 

SOIR) 

O00 

TMG) 

oO 

TOM 
45:9 465 43 09-14-5694 09.99 45.65 43.45 4? ables 49,75 42:85 

“a ca © . + © = + + + 1] 

eo ro Po fp ob - 
ee oT KF ee oS LF eS oS 

——COAN ——SENSER 

j) Registrar and Share Transfer Agent :- 

M/s. Bigshare Services Private Limited, is acting as the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents for the shares. of the 

Company beld in both physical and electronic modes. All comespondence with regard to share transfers and matters 

related therewith may directy be addressed to the Shara Registrar and Transfer Agents al the address given below:- 

Bigshare Services Private Limited New Address :Office No, S6-2, 6th Floor, Pinnacle Business Park, Next to Ahura Centre, 

Mahakall Caves Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai—400093 Maharashtra India. 
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kK)ADRs! GDRs: As on 31sl March, 2024, the Company has not issued any GDR/ADR/Warrants or any convertible 

inshuments/secunties. 

I) Works (Plant Location): 

* The Solvent Extraction Plant and Vegetable Ol Refinery of the Company are located al Kolari Road, near 

Village Bhuyar Kolari, Taluka Chimur, Dist. Ghandrapur-442903, MH, India 

* Spices & Detergent plant at Sonapar, Post -Dhapewada, Taluka - Kalmeshwar, Nagpur-441501, MH, India. 

* Aluminum Hol Rolling Mill Installed at Plot No. A-1/1, MIDC Kalmeshwar, Dist Nagpur-441501, MH, India 

* AtPost-Selu, Gondkairi-Kalmeshwar Highway, Dist-Nagpur-44 1501, MH, India 

+  Alphanso Mango Processing Unit at Devgad Taluka, Amba Utpadak Sahkan Sanstha, Jamsande, Sindhudurg 

District, Devgad-4 166171, MH, India 

*  Varron Aluminiumm Pvt Lid. (Proposed Wholly-owned subsidiary), plant located al Plot No. D-68, D-71 & D-72 

of Mirjole MIDC, Ratnagiri, MH, India 

m) Service of documents through electronic mode : 

Asa part of Green Initiative, the members who wish to receive the notica/docunents through e-mail, may kindly intimate 

their e-mail address to the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, Bigshare Services Pvt Ltd. or to the 

Company al 'infogtcianindusines..cony or fill up the Email Updation Form and send to the Company. 

23. Matrix/Chart setting out the core skills/oxpertise/competence of the Board of Directors of the Company 

The Board comprises of qualified members who possess required skills, expertise, experience and competencies that 

allow them to make effective contributions to the Board and its Committees. The Members of the Board are committed to 

ensuring that the Board is in compliance with the highest standards of Corporate Govemance. The table below 

summarizes the skills, expertise, competencies and attributes which have been identified for the effective functioning of 

the Company and are currently available with the Board: 

Areas of Skills! Expertise/ Competence/Experience 

Name of Director(s) |Leadership | General | Operations/| Tecghnical| Finance | Corporate | Government 

Manage- Sales & | /Professi- | Corporate | Governance, /Regulat- 

ment Marketing jonal ory 

' Strategy Skills Affairs 

Mr. Nikhil Gadkari v ¥ v 4 v v ¥ 
Mr. Ravindra Boratkar q W v 4 ¥ v v 
Mr. Jaykumar Varma Y 4 v 4 x 4 ¥ 
Mr. Ramesh Himte ¥ ¥ v ¥ x ¥ ¥ 
Mr. Atul Mandiekar ¥ ¥ a ¥ ¥ v ¥ 

Mrs. Vrushali Pradhan ¥ 4 x qv x of y 

24. Address for Correspondence/ Compliance Officer: 

Mrs. Madhubala Dave 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

Registered Office: 4th Floor, Gupta Tower, Science College Road, Civil Lines, Nagpur-440001 

Ph. No. 07 12-22200271177, Website: www.cianindusines.com 

E-mail: infogtclanindustries.com. 

For and on behaif of the Board 

Jaykumar Varma 
Place : Nagpur Chalrparson 

Date : 30th August, 2024 DIN: 00489792 
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Part of Annexure E 

CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

[Under Regulation 17(&) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2075] 

The Board of Directors 

CIAN AGRO INDUSTRIES & INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED 

We hereby certify that for the financial year 2023-24 annual accounts, we have reviewed the financial 

statements and the cash flow and that to the best of my knowledge and belief: 

1. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 

contain statements that might be misleading; 

These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in 

compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

There are, to the best of our Knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company 

during the year 2023-24 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative. 

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controts for financial reporting 

and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the company 

pertaining to financial reporting and have not noticed any deficiency that need to be rectified or 

disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee 

We further certify that : 

a. there have been no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the 

year; 

b. there are no significant changes in accounting policies during the year : and 

c. there have been no instances of significant fraud, of which we have become aware, 

involving management or an employee having significant role in the Company's internal 

control systems. 

Date : 29th May 2024 Suneet Pande Nakul Bhat 

Place : Nagpur Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEB! (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2075) 

To, 
The Members, 

CIAN AGRO INDUSTRIES & INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED 

CIN : L15742MH1985PLC037493 

Reg Add: 4th Floor, Gupta Tower, Science College Road, 

Civil Lines, Nagpur - 440001 

Ihave examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of CLAN AGRO 

INDUSTRIES & INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED having CIN L15742MH1985PLC037493 and having registered office al 

4th Floor, Gupta Tower, Science College Road, Civil Lines, Nagpur-440001 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), 
produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read 

with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 

In my opinion and to the best of our information and aceording lo the verifications (including Directors Identification 

Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca_gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations fumished to us by the 

Company & its officers. 

| hereby certify thal none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 

31st March, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority 

Sr.No. | Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in Company 

a Mr Nikhil Nitin Gadkari M2 1/01/2017 

02 Mr Javkumar Ramesh Varma OMBIT92 21/03/2021 

03 Mr Ravindra Vidyadharboratkar 20551 25/03/2002 

(4 Mr Ramesh Himte O21] 2732 14/02/2025 

05 Mr Atul Vijay Mandlekar 1024967 12/08/2024 

Oo Mrs. Vrushali litendra Pradhan | 07594297 12/08/2023 

“The Date of Appoinimentis as per MCAPorial 

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment | continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 

management of the Company, Our responsibilily is lo express an opinion on these based on our venfication, 

This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with 

which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For Kaustubh Moghe and Associates 

Practicing Company Secretaries 

Date : 28th August 2024 ne Sibppeitloe 
Place : Nagpur 

FGS.No106034.CoP No 12486 

UDIN: FO10603F001067175 

Peer Review No: 3241/2023 

Unique Code: S2022MH849200 
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Part of Annexure E 

Certificate on Corporate Governance 

To, 

The Members, 

CIAN AGRO INDUSTRIES & INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED 

CIN: L15142MH 1985PLC037493 

Reg Add: 4th Floor, Gupta Tower, 
Science College Road, 

Civil Lines, Nagpur-440001 . 

| have examined all relevant records of CLAN Agro industries & Infrastructure Limited (“Company”) for the purpose of 

cerlifying compliance of the condition of Corporate Governance as prescribed the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015 (“the Listing Regulations") for the financial year ended on 3ist March 2024. 

lhave obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of my knowledge and belief were necessary for the 

purpose of certification. 

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Govemance fs the responsibility of the management. My examination was 

limited to the procedure and implementation thereof. 

On the basis of my examination of the records procedure, explanations and information fumished, | certify that the 

Company has complied with all the mandatory conditions of the Gonorate Govemance, as stipulated in Regulation 17 to 

27 and clause (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and Paragraphs C, D & E of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations during the 

yearanded 31st March 2024. 

This Certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness wilh 

whinh the management has conducted the affairs of he Company. 

For Kaustubh Moghe and Associates 

Practicing Company Secretaries 

Date : 28th August 2024 Kaustubh Moghe 
Place : Nagpur Proprietor 

FS.Not06034CoP No 12486 

UDIN: F010603F001067208 

Peer Review No: 3241/2023 

Unique Code: S2022MH849200 
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ANNEXURE - F 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

The information required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with mule 5(1) of the Gompanies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given below: 

a. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the amployees of the Company for the 

financial year 3 ist March, 2024: 

Name ofthe Directors | Designation Ratio to Median Remuneration of the employees of the 

Company 

Mir. Nikhil Gadkari Managing Director | 457.00 

The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, 

Company Secretary in the financial year: 

StNo. | NameofDirector(Execulivey/KMP | Designation % of increase in remuneration 

1 Mr. Nikhil Gadkari Managing Director Nil 

2 Mr. Suneet Pande Chief Executive Officer 5% 

3 Mr. Nakul Bhat Chief Financial Officer 5% 

4 Mrs. Madhubala Dave Company Secretary Nil 

The percantage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 

During the financial year Company continued to be on revival curve and company has continued to increase its 

amployee strength. Therefore although there is considerable increase in the Company's performance it cannot be 

compared with increase in remuneration of its employees as number of employees in employment of the Company 

continues to change during the year. 

The Company has 83 permanent Employees.on the roll of the Company as on 31st March, 2024 

Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the 

last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification 

thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumsiances for increase in the managenal remuneration: 

During the financial year Company continued to be on revival curve and company has continued to increase its 

employee sirenglh. Therefore although there Is considerable increase in the Company's performance il cannot be 

compared with increase in remuneration of its employoaos as number of employecs in employment of the Company 

continues to change during the year and there was no change in the salary of Directors: Increase in the salaries of 

Key Managerial personnelisin correlation with the improved performance of the Company. 

Affirmation thatthe remuneration is as per the remuneration policy ofthe Company: 

The Company affinms thal the remuneration is a8 per the remuneration policy of the Company. 
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ANNEXURE -H 

Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personne!) Rules, 2014] 

Ta, 

The Members, 

CIAN AGRO INDUSTRIES & INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED 

CIN: L15142MH1985PLC037493 

Reg Add: 4th Floor, Gupta Tower, Science College Road, 

Civil Lines, Nagpur 440001. 

(have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherance to good 

corporale practices by Clan Agro industries & Infrastructure Limited (hereinafier called “the Gompany"), The 

Secretarial Awdit was conducted in a manner thal provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 

conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion theraan. 

Based on my verification of the company's books, papers, minule books, forms and retums filed and other records 

maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, ils officers, agents and authorized 

representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the 

audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 ("Audit Period’) generally complied with the statutory 

provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Boarnd-processes and compliance-mechanism in place 

tothe extent, in the mannerand subject tothe reporting made hereinafter: 

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and retums filed and olher records maintained by the Company 

for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 according to the provisions of 

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder, 

Te The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the niles made thereunder; 

ii. The Depositones ct, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye4aws framed thereunder; 

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the niles and requilations made there under to the extent of Foreign 

Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and Extemal Commercial Borrowings (applicable to the company 

during the audit period); 

Vv. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 

(SES) Act)- 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 

2011 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Reguiations, 2018 

(Not applicable to the company during the audit period); 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014; - 

(Not applicable to the company during the audit period). 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 

52 
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(Not applicable to the company during the audit period) 

f The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 

1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; - (Not applicable to the company during the 

audit period) 
q) The Securiies and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; - (Not 

applicable to the company during the audit period) 

h} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;- (Mot applicable to 

the company during the audit period), and 

i) The Securittes and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, 

We further report thal the company has complied with the following Sector specific laws which are specifically applicable to 

the Company. 

a) Agriculture Produce Marketing Regulation Act (APMC), 201 7and Rules made there under as amended fram 

lime to time. 

b) The Agricultural and Processed Food Products Export Development Authority Acl(APEDA), 1985and Rules 

made there uncer as amended from time to time. 

c) The Spices Board Act 1986 and Spices Board Rules 198/made there under as amended from time to time. 

di) Food Safety and Standanis (FSS) Act, 2006 and Rules made there under a8 amended [rom lime totime. 

e) Drugs and Foods Under the 1938 Act and Rules made there under as amended from time to time. 

fy The Prevention of Food AdulteralionAct, 1954 and Rules made there under as amended from time to time. 

g) The Factories Act, 1948 and Rules made there under as amended from lime to time. 

h) The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1991 and Rules made there underas amended from time to 

time. 

i) The Fertilizer (Control) Onder (FCO), 1957 and Rules made there under as amended [rom lime to time. 

{have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following 

a) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and notified by Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs. 

b) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchanges and The SE@I (Listing Obligations 

And Disclosure Requiramants) Regulations, 2015. 

During the period under review, the Gompany has complied with the provisions of the Aci, Rules, Regulations, 

Sr. Compliance Requirement Deviations 

No (Regulations! circulars/ guidelines 
including specific clause) 

of Regulation 31(2) of SEBI Listing | Company 100% promoter holding not in Demat 
Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) | form. 

Regulation 20175 requires 100% of | Out of total 1,89,38,171 Equity shares of Promoter 

Promoter and Promoters Group to be | 1,88,20,321 Equity shares are in Demat form as on 

demalerialised fonm. 31st March 2024. 

O2 SEBI (Listing Obligalions and | The Company has paid Annual Listing fees (ALF) for 

Discosure Requirements) Regulations, | FY 2023-24 on O6th September 2023 with delay of 

2015 129 days. 

03 Sec 9? (4) of companies act 2013 Annual return is filed with the Registrar with delay of 

38 days. 
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wi. further report that, 

a) The Board of Directors of the Comparny is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non- 

Executive Directors and Independent Directors as on 31.03.2024. 

b) As per the Information provided by the management, adequate notices were given to all directors to schedule the 

Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda wore sent al least seven days in advance anda 

system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the 

meeting and for meaningful participation atthe meeting. 

¢) All the decisions in the board meetings were camed through by majority while there were no dissenting member's 

views and hence not captured and recorded as part of the minutes. 

d) Alldecisions of the Board and Committees were carried with requisite majority. 

vi U have relied on the information and representation made by the Company and its Officers for systems and 

mechanism formed by the Company forcompliances under other applicable Acts, Laws, and 

Regulations to the Company, 

Vili. further report that compliance of applicable financial laws inchiding Direct and Indirect Tax laws by the Company 

has nol been reviewed in this Audil since the same has been subject to review by the Statutory Auditors 

and other designated professionals. 

ix. | further report that based on the information received and records maintained there are adequate systems and 

processes: in tha Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor 

and ensure compliance with applicable laws, nules, regulations and guidelines. 

x. I further report that, during the audit period the Company had no specific events/actions having a major bearing on 

the Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, regulations, guidelines, standards-atc. 

For KaustubhMoghe and Associates 

Practicing Company Secretaries 

Date: 29th August 2024 

Place : Nagpur 

Kausiubh Moghe 

Proprietor 

FCS.No106034CoP No 12486 

UDIN : FOTO603F 001077460 

Peer Review No: 3244/2023 

Unique Code: S2022MH849200 

This Report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure - {and fonms.an integral part of this 

report. 
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ANNEXURE -1 

(to the Secretarial Audit Report) 

To, 
The Members, 

CIAN AGRO INDUSTRIES & INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED 

CIN: L15142MH1985PLC037493 

Reg Add: 4th Floor, Gupta Tower, Science College Read, 

Civil Lines, 

Nagpur 440001 

Based on audil, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance wilh the applicable laws and 

maintenance of records by [he Company. We conducted our audit in accordance with (he audiling slandanis CSAS 7 

to CSAS 4 ("CSAS") prescribed by tha Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI). These standards require that 

the auditor complies with statutory and regulatory requiraments and plans and performs the audit to obtain reasonable 

assurance about compliance with applicable laws and maintenance of records. 

Owe to the inherent limitations of an audit including intemal, financial and operaling controls, there is an unavoidable risk 

that some misstalements or material non-compliances may notbe detected, even though the audit is properly planned and 

performed in accordance with the GSAS. Ourreportof even date is to be read along with this letter 

1) Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. My responsibility is to 

express an opinion on these Secretarial Records based on my audit. 

2) | have followed the audil practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance aboul the 

comeciness of the contents of the Secretarial reconds. The Verification was done on lest! basis to ensure thal correct 

facts are reflected in the Secrelarial records. | believe thal the processes and practices, | followed provide a 

reasonable basis formy opinion, 

3) Uhave nol verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company. 

4) Wherever required, | have obtained the Management! representation about the compliance of Laws, Rules and 

Regulations and happening of evants etc, 

5) The compliance of the provisions of Gorporate and other applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations, Standards is the 

responsibility of the Management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on tast basis. 

6) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

For KaustubhMoghe and Associates 

Practicing Company Secretaries 

Kausiubh Moghe 

Proprietor 
FCS.No10603&CoP No 12486 

UDIN : FOT0603F00107 7460 

Date : 29th August 2024. Peer Review No: 3241/2023 

Piace: Nagpur Unigue Code : S2022MH849200 

55 
ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024 



CI4N Agro Industries & Infrastructure Lid. cO} 

ClIAN —— 

Annexure | 

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities 
(Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2073, read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsihility 

Policy) Rules, 2074 [including any statutory modification(s) or re-enaciment(s) for the time being in force) 

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company : The policy lays down the crileria to be followed during 

selection and planning of a CSR activity and while choosing the area of implementation of CSR projects.Our 

CSR Poley aims to provide a dedicaled approach to community development in the areas of improving 

healthcare infrastructure, supporting primary education, rehabilitating the destitule, abandoned women and 

children, preserving Indian art and culture, removing malnutrition, rural development, and contribute to the 

Suslainable development of society and environment, and to make our planel a betier place for fulure 

generations. 

2: Composition of CSR Committee : The Committee is duly constituted as per the provisions of Section 135 of 

the Companies Act, 20173 to oversee and give direction to the Company's CSR activilies. 

Name of Director Designation! Nature of Number of meetings | Numberof meetings 

Directorship of CSR Committee of CSR Committes 

held during the year | held during the year 

Mirs. Viushali Jitendra Pradhan | Chairperson -Independent 2 2 

(wee fF 30/08/2023) Non Executive Director 

Mr. Atul Vijay Mandlekar Member - Independent 2 2 

(w.e.f 30/09/2023) Non Executive Director 

Mr. Ravindra Boratkar Member -Non-Independent 2 2 

Non Executive Director 

Mr. Ramesh Himte Member - independent 2 2 

Non- Executive Director 

Mrs, Gouri Chandrayan Chainman-Independent 2 0 

(Upte 30/08/2023) Non- Execulive Director 

Mr. Anandrao Raut Member - Independent 2 i] 

(Upto 30/09/2023) Non- Executive Director 

a. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR commitiea, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the 

board are disclosed on the website of the Company - hitpss/hwww.Ganindustries. com/compliance. 

A, Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects caried out in pursuance of Rule 8(3) of the 

Companies (Corporale Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report) - Not 

Applicable 

fi. Details. of the amount available for set-off in pursuance of Rule 7(3) of the Companies (Corporate Social 

Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, If any-NotApplicabla 

6. Average Net Profitof the Company as per Section 135{5) of the Companies Act, 2013 - Rs. 325.96 Lakhs 

7. Sr.No. Particulars. Amount (Fs.in Lakhs) 

a Two percent of average nel profitof the company as per Section 135(5) 6.52 

ofthe Companies Act, 2013 

b. Surplus arising out ofthe CSR projects or programmes or activities Nil 

of the previous financial years 

G. Amount required to be setoff for the financial year, if any- Nil 

d. Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c) - 6.52 
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(a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 

Total Amount AMOUNT UNSPENT (IN RS.) 
spent for the 

Wee li Label Total Amount transferred Amount transferred to any fund specified 
to Unspent CSR Account under Schedule Vil as per second 

as per Secion 135 (6) provision to Section 135 (5) 

Amount Date of transfer Mame of the Fund Amount Date of transfer 

20.236 Nil ALA ALA Nil NLA 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Nil 

(c) Details of CSR amount spent other than ongoing projects for the financial year: Nil 

Sr. | Mame of ttem from Local Location of the Amount | Mode of | Mode of 

No. | the the list of areas project Spent |ofimple | implementation - 

Project activities: (Yes! for the | menta Through | 

in Schedule | No.) Project | tion - mplementing 

Vil to the {in Rs.) | Direct agency. 

Act (Yes/No). 

State. District Name | CSR 

registration 

number 

1 | Promoting (i) to (xii) Yes | Maharashtra | Nagpur) 9.236 Yes ALA NLA 

Education 

2 | Eradicating (i) to (xii) Yes | Maharashtra | Nagpur) 11.00 Yes NLA ALA 
hunger, 

poverty & 

malnutrition 

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: “NIL 

(2) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable 

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8@b+8c+8d4+fe): 20.236 Lakhs 

(g) Excess amount for sel off, any: 

Sr. No. Particulars Amount (Rs. in Lakhs) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 6.52 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 20.236 

(ili) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(i}-(I)] 13.716 

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activitios of the 

previous financial years, if any : 

iv) Amount available for set off in succeading financial years [(ili)-(iv}] T3716 

9. (a) Details of Unspant CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NotApplicable 
(b} Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year forongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s): Not 

Applicable 

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details netating to the asset.so created or acquired through 

CSR spentin the financial year (asset wise details): Nol Applicable 

11. Specify the reason(s), ifthe company has falled to spend two per cent of the average net profitas per Section 135(5) of 

the Companies Act, 2013: NotApplicable 

For and on behalf of the CSR Committee 

Mrs. Vrushali Jitendra Pradhan 

Chairperson 

CSR Committee 
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To, 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

The Members 

CIAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Limited 

Opinion 

1. 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of CLAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Limited (“the 

Company") which comprise of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss 

{including other comprehensive income), Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and Standalone 

Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the standalone financial statement, including 

matenal accounting policies and olher explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “Financial 

Statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 

Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the 

manner so required and give a true and fair view, in conformity with the accounting principles generally 

accepted In India, of the state of affairs of the Company as al 31siMarch 2024, and its profil and other 

comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year ended on thal date. 

Basis for Opinion 

3: We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of 

the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further descnbed in the Auditor's 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Stalements section of our report. We are independent 

of the Company in accordance with the Gode of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

together with the ethical requirements thal are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements 

under thea provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe thatthe audit 

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone 

financial statements. 

Emphasis of Matter 

4, Wedraw attention lo 

a. Note No. 4 ‘Non-Current Investments’ where the Company has valued investment in equily shares of 

bankatecost 

b. Note No. $'Current Investments’ where the Investee Company has determined the number of shares 

that can be issued against the Optionally Convertible Debentures (OCDs), based on the latest 

valuation raport of the Invesles company Management is of the opinion thal such valuation represents 

the fair value of investment in OCDs of the Investes Company. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above. 
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Key Audit Matters 

5. Key audit matters KAM’) are those matters thal, In our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 

audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matlers were addressed in the context 

of our audit of ihe standalone financial statements: as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do 

not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

CIAN —— 

reclassification of the 
performance security 
previously received from Khare 
Tarkunde Pvt. Lid. This 
reclassification was executed in 
accordance with the most 
recent agreement between the 
parties, and the amount was 
transferred to the category of 
loan payable. 
As per Ind AS 109 this liability 
needs to be fair valued and 
since determination of fair value 
is based on a high degree of 
judgement and input that is not 
directly observable in the 
market. Accordingly, ithas been 
considered as a key audit 
matter. 

Key Audit Matters (KAM) 

Sr No.| Description of Key Why the matter was considered | How the matter was 

Audit Matter to be one of most significance addressed in our audit 

in the audit 

A The Company We identified revanue * Assessed the objectivily 

engages in recognition of Infrastructure and competence of the 

Infrastructure contracts where the percentage Company's internal 
contracts, of completion is used as a key specialist involved in 

wherein, revenue audit matter since: estimating work performed. 
is recognized 

using the * There is an inherent risk . 7 Os acaae ee, 

percentage of around the accuracy and using the work completion 

completion existence of revenues certificate supplied by the 

compuled as per recognised considering the internal specialist as a 
the oulpul method, customised and complex hasis. 

the percentage of nature of these contracts: 

Progress for * (Obtained work completion 
determining the * Application of revenue éerlificates and other 

amountof revenue recognition accounting documentation from intamal 
to recognize is standard (Ind AS 115, specialists. 
assessed based Revenue from Contracts : 
on surveys with customers) is complex * Tracked costs incurred 

during the construction 
conducted by and involves a number of to ensure they align 

independent key judgments and i rit jhe revenue 
surveyor of work astimates in mainly recognized. 
performed identifying performance 

obligations. 

B. Fair Valuation of During the reporting period, the * We have verified the 
financial liability company undertook a cormeciness of the events 

and reviewed the 
assumptions pertaining to 
discountrates:. 

- Examined the forecasted 
cash flows meticulously to 
ensure the accurate 

determination offair value. 

+ We have also ensured the 
compliance with the 
recognition and disclosure 
requirements of the 
applicable IndAS. 
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Other Information 

6. The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the Company's annual report, bul does not include the 

financial statements and our auditors’ report(s) thereon. The Company's Annual report is expected lo be made 

available to us after the date of this auditors report, 

Our opinion on the standalone financial slalements does nol cover the other information and we will not 

express any form of assurance conclusion hereon 

In connection with our audit of the Standalone financial statements, our responsibilily is to read the other 

information identified above when il becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other 

information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or ourknowledge obtained in the 

audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 

7, The Company's Management and Board of Directors is responsible for ilhe matians slated in Section 134(5) of 

the Gompanies Act, 2013 with respect to the proparation of these standalone financial statements that give a 

true and fair view of the state of affairs, profil! loss and olher comprehensive income, changes in equity and 

cash flows of the Company in accordance wilh the accounting principles generally accepted in india, including 

the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2074. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequale accounting 

records in acoordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 

preventing and detecting frauds and other imegularities; selection and application of appropriate 

implementation & maintenance accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that ane reasonable 

and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls, thal were 

operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of (he accounting records, relevant to the 

preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, Management and Board of Directors are responsible for 

assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 

going concem and using the going concem basis of accaunting unless management ailher intends to liquidate 

the Company orto cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the company ere responsible for overseeing the Company's financial 

reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

8. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a 

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report thal 

includes: aur opinion, Reasonable assurance ts a high level of assurance, bul is nota guarantee thal an audit 

conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when bexists, Misstatements 

can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone 

financial statements. 

As parlofan auditin accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
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a. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whelher 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audil procedures responsive to hose risks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 

material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from enor, as fraud may 

involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overnide of intemal control. 

b. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 

are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)()) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are algo 

responsible for expressing our opinion on whelber the company has adequate intennal financial 

controls with referonce to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such 

controls. 

G. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and relaled disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors. 

d, Conclude on the appropriateness of Management and Board of Directors use of the going concem 

basis of accounting In preparation of standalone financial statements and, based on the audit evidenca 

obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 

doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concem. ff we conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in 

the standalone financial stalements or, if such disclosures are Inadequale, lo modify our opinion. Our 

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, 

fulure events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue asa going concern. 

a. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent (he undertying 

transactions and events ina manner thatachieves fair presentation, 

8. We communicate with these charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intamal control thal we 

identify during our auciit. 

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related satequards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemance, we deternine those matlers thal were of 

most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the 

key audit matters, We desoribe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public 

disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determing thal a matter should nol 

be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected 

to. outweigh the public interest benefils of such communication. 

Other Matter 

10. a) The company is presently engaged in the following disputes with statutory authorities. The company 

anlicipates favorable outcomes in all of these disputes, with the exception of the damand for Rs. 3.19 

lakhs, for which an unfavorable outcome is expected. Consequently, a provision for this amount has 

been recognized in the books of accounts. 
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Nature of the Nature of dues Forum where Period to which the | Amount 7 lakhs 
statute Dispute is Pending Amount Relates 

Goods and Service Goods and Appellate Triburkal FY 17-76,178-19, 19420 130.21 
Tax Act, 2017 Service Tax 

Income Tax Income Tax Commissioner of AY 2079-20 35.67 
Act, 1961 Income Tax (Appeals) 

Income Tax Income Tax Commissioner of AY-2021-22 85.67 
Act,1961 Income Tax (Appeals) 

Income Tax income Tax Commissioner of AY-2015-16 3.16 
AcL1961 Penalty Income Tax (Appeals) 

(b) The revenue recognition on account of sales of the organic manure during this year is notably 

substantial. We have reviewed the recorded prices against the prevailing markel rates. 

ClAN —— 

Our opinion is nol modified in respect of the same. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

11. 

i 

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Onder, 2020(The Order’), issued by the Central Goverment 

of India in terms of sub-section (11).of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the 

matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, tothe extentapplicable. 

A) As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report thal: 
a. 

b. 

B) 

We have sought and obtained all he information and explanations which tothe best ofourknowedge 

and belief were necessary forthe purpose of our audit. 

in our opinion proper books of accounl as required by law have been kept by the Company so far ait 

appears from our examination of those books. 

The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss s (including other 

comprehensive income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone 

Statement of Cash Flow dealtwith by this Reportare in agreement with the books of account. 

In.our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial stalements comply with the Ind.AS specified under 

section 133 of the Act, mad with Rule 7 of the Gompanies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

On the basis of wrilten representations received from the directors as on 31s2tManrch, 2074 taken on 

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 siMMarch, 2024 fram being 

appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

With respect fo the adequacy of the intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements of 

the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controk, referto our separate Reportin 

“Annexure B". 

With respect to the olher matters to be Included in the Auditor's Report in accordance wilh Rule 11 of 

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us: 
1. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact on its financial 

position other than as mentioned in para 10(a) related to GST and Income tax. 

ii. The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including 

derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March 2024. 

ili. There were no amounts which were required to be transfered to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv, (a) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as 

disclosed in the Note 38(v) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been 

advanced or loaned or invested (either trom borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
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sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 

(intermediares”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, thal the Intermediary shall, 

whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other parsons or entities identified in any manner whatsoover by or on 

behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, securily or the like on behalf of the 

Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(b) The management has represented, thal, to the best of i's knowledge and belief, as disclosed In the Note38(vi) to the 

standalone financial statements, no funds have been receed by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), 

including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), wilh the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 

the campany shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons of entities identified in-any manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any quaraniee, security or the 

like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(c) Based on audit procedures performed thal have bean considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, 

nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) 

contain any matarial mis-statement 

v. ‘The company has nol declared or paid any dividend during the year, hence there fs no contravention of the provisions 

of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

vic The reporting under Rule 11(g) ofthe Companies (Auditand Auditors) Rules, 2014 is applicable from 1 April 2023. 

Based on our examination which included test checks, and communication done, except for the instances 

mentioned below, the Company has used accounting software for maintaining iis books of account, which has.a 

feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant 

fransactons recorded in the respective software 

* There is: no frontend facility available to disable or enable the audit bogs; this function is controlled exclusively through 

the dalabase system. 

. The system is designed wilhoul an automatic mechanism io send alerts to higher authorities regarding the disabling 

ofthe audil trail. 

Further, audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated throughout the year for the respective accounting 

software, we did not.come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with. 

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of 

section 197(16) ofthe Act, as amended: 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company 

toits directors during the current yearis in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. The remuneration 

paid to any director is notin excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
has not prescribed clher details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us. 

For P. G. Joshi & Co., 

Charlered Accountants. 

FRN : 1044716W 

CA Ashutosh Joshi 

Partner 

M. No.: 038193 

Place : Nagpur 

Date : 29-05-7024. 

UDIN : 240381 93BKCBPX9250 
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“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report of CIAN Agro 

Industries & Infrastructures Limited 

Referred to in paragraph 12 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement’ of 
our report of even date fo the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 

3istMarch, 2024: 

L Inrespect of the Company's property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets: 

a) 

b) 

c} 

d) 

®) 

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 

details and situation of Property, Plantand Equipment and relevant details of ight-ol-use assets. 

(B) The Company has maintained properrecords showing full particulars of intangible assets. 

The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased manner, designed to 

cover all the items over a period of one year, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the 

size of the company and nalure of its business. Pursuant to lhe program, the fixed asset has been 

physically verfied by the management during the year and no material discrepancies between the 

records and the physical fixed assets have bean noticed, as confirmed by tha management. 

According to the information and explanations given.to us and on the basis of our examination of the 

reconds of the Company, the tite deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable properties 

where [ha Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessee) 

disclosed in the standalone financial statements are held In the name of the Company. 

The Company has not revalued any ofits property, plantand equipment (including right of-use assets) 

and intangible assets during the year. 

There are no proceedings thal have been initialed or are pending againal the company for holding any 

bonam| property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rulas made 

thereunder. 

il. In respect of Inventory: 

a) 

b) 

c) 

Physical verification of inventory te the responsibility of the management. The siocks have bean 

physically verified during the year by the management at reasonable intervals. In our opinion, the 

frequency of verification is reasonable. The procedures of physical venficalion of inventory followed by 

the management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and nature of its 

business. 

On the basis of our examination of the inventory records of the company, we are of the opinion thal, the 

company is maintaining proper records of its inventory. As informed to us, there were no material 

discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregale for each class of inventory were noticed on physical 

verification batwoen the physical stock and the book records. Minor discrepancies wore appropriataly 

adjusted in the books. 

The Company has been sanctioned working capital limils in excess of t 5 crore, in aggregala, during 

the year, from banks or financial Institulions on the basis of security of current assets. The statements 

submitted to the Bank or financial institulions are in agreement with the books maintained by the 

company. 
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aL. The Gompany hes during the year, nol made invesiments in, provided security or granted any loans oradvances 

inthe nature of loans, secured or unsecured, lo companies, finns, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other 

parties. However, the company has provided quarantess in respect of which the requisite information is as 

below. 

a) The following table presents the particulars of financial quarantees provided by the entity: 

Particulars Balance oulstanding as on 31st March 2024 

Financial guaranioe 

Other than Subsidiaries 27.30 Lakhs* 

This represents the gross value of loan in respect of which guarantee is provided by the entity. Since the 

financial guarantee falls the recognition criteria as per Ind AS therefore the canying amount of the same in the 

books Is nilas at 3151 March 2024. 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures 

conducted by us, in our opinion the terms and conditions of the quaranlees provided are, prima facie, nol 

prejudicial to the interest of the Company. 

The Company has not granted loans. or provided any quarantees or securities to parties covered under section 

185 of the Act. The Company has complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in 

respec! of loans granted, investments made and guarantees and securities provided, as applicable. 

The Company has nol socepled any deposits from the public and hance the directives issued by the Reserve 

Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 lo 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the 

Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2075 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not 

applicable. 

The Company has maintained cost accounts & records as notified by the Central Government under sub 

section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the activities carried on by the company. 

(a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the books of 

account, and records, lhe Company is in the practice of depositing undisputed statulory dues including 

Provident Fund, & Ineome-tax after the end of the respective financial year and dives related lo Goods & 

Services Tax al the end of every month with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and 

explanations available to us, undisputed amounts of statutory dues, in arears as at 3isiMarch, 2024 fora 

penod of more than sic months, are given as follows: 

Statutory Dues Payable Amount (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Provident Furvd 6.3 

Professional Tax 0.92 

ES.1LG. 0.51 

TGS 1.64 

TDS 60.64 

Talal 70.01 

65 
ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024 

CIAN —— 



CIAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Lid. cO} 

b) According to the information and explanation given tous, there are no dues of income tax, sales tax, service tax, 

goods & service tax outstanding on account of any dispute except for those mentioned below: 

Nature of the Nature of dues Forum where Period to which the | Amount 7 lakhs 
statute Dispute is Pending Amount Relates 

Goods and Servioe Goods and Appellate Tribunal FY 17-18,18-19,19-20 130.27 
Tax Act, 2017 Sarvice Tax 

Incorne Tae income Tax Commissioner of AY 2079-20 35.67 
Act 1961 Income Tax (Appeals) 

Income Tax Income Tax Commissioner of AY-202 1-22 85.67 
Act,19641 Income Tax (Appeals) 

Income Tax income Tax Commissioner of AY-2015-16 3.19 
Act, 1961 Penalty Income Tax (Appeals) 

XL. 

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income thal have been surrendered or disclosed 

as income during the year in the tax assessments under tha Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

(f 

(a) 

(b) 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

{nour opinion, the company has nol defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment 

of interest thereon to any lender during the year. 

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 

management, the company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 

other lender. 

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 

management, the tern loans have been applied forthe purpose forwhich they were obtained. 

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short farm basis 

have, prima facie, not been used during the yeartor long-term purposes by the Company. 

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not laken any 

funds from any entity or person on accountof orto meet the obligations of its subsidiaries. 

Based upon the audi procedures performed and the Information and explanations given by the 

management, the company has nol raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held In its 

subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. 

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer orfurther public offer (including debt 

instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Orders nol applicable 

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 

convertible debantures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under dause 3(x)(b) of the Order 

is notapplicable. 

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the 

Standalone Financial Statements and according to the information and explanations given by the 

management, no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported 

during the year. 

To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 

has been filed by Gost Auditor or Secretanal Auditor and us, in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 

of Companies (Audil and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the 

date of this report. 

There were no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year (and upto the date of 

this report), and hence they were notconsidered. 
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xIK. 
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The company is nota Nidhi company and bence reporting under clause (xii) of the order is not applicable. 

In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies 

Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Stalements as required by the applicable 

accounting standards. 

(a) In our opinion, lhe company has an intemal audil systam in place bul requires strangthening to make il 

commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 

(b) We have not considered, the inlemal audit reports for the year under audil, a5 the same were awaited. 

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the management, 

the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. 

Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not 

commented upon. 

{a) In our opinion, the Company ts nol required to be registered under section 451A of the Reserve Bank of India 

Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi,a), (b) and (c) of the Orderis not applicable. 

(b) In-our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment 

Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under cause 3(xvij(d) of the Ordaris 

notapplicable. 

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by aur audit and the immediately 

preceding financial year. 

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. 

On the basis. of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of 

financial liabilites, other information accompanying the financial statements, the auditor's knowledge of the 

Board of Directors and management plans, in our opinion na material uncertainty exists as on the date of the 

audil report that company is capable of meeting its Ilabilities existing at the date of balance sheel as and when 

they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date; 

(a) In respect of sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, based upon the audit procedures 

performed and the information and explanations given by tha management, there is no such unspent amount to 

be transferred to Fund specified in Schedule Vil to the said act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xx) ofthe 

Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon, 

(b) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 

management, there & no such amount remaining unspent under sub-secton (5) of section 135 of the 

Companies Act, pursuant to any ongoing project, thal has been transferred to special account in compliance 

wilh the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act. 

For P. G. Joshi & Go., 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN > 104416W 

CAAshutosh Joshi 

Partner 

M. No.: 0387193 

Place > Nagpur 

Date - 29-05-2024 

UDIN : 24038 193BKCHPX9250 
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1. 

“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report 

Referred to in paragraph 713(funder the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement’ 

of our report of even date to the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 

SistMarch, 2024 

We have audited the intemal financial controls over financial reporting. of CLAN Agro Industries & Infrastructures 

Limited as of 31stMarch, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the 

year ended on thal date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

2. The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 

intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 

intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safequaniing of its assets, the 

prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 

timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

a. Our responsibility is lo express an opinion on (he: Company's intemal financial controls over financial reporting based 

on our audit We conducted our audil in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audil of Intemal Financial Controls 

Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICA! and deemed to be 

prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to ihe extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial 

controls, both applicable to an audit of intemal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of india. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require thal we comply with ethical requirements and 

plan and perform the audil to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whelber adequate intemal financial controls over 

financial reporling was established and maintained and ifsuch controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the intemal financial 

controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of intemal financial controls over 

financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 

offactivaness of intemal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected dopend on the auditor's 

judgment, including the assessmentof the nsks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud orermor, 

We believe lhal the excep! as given below, audil evidence wa have oblained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our audit opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls system over financial reporting: 
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propery documented processes! policies for recording of purchase, Sales, Manufacturing activity, inventory, Loans 

and Invesiment activities atc., were not available for our verification. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controts over Financial Reporting 

6. A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial sistements for extemal 

purposes in accordance wilh generally accepted accounting principles. A company's intemal financial control over 

financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 

froasonable detail, accurately and fairy reflect the transactions and dispositions:of the assets of the company; (2) 

provide reasonable assurance thal transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 

Stalements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and thal receipts and expenditures of the 

company are being made only in accordance with authonzations of management and directors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 

disposition of the company's assels that could havea maternal effect on the financial stalements. 

inherent Limitations of internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

7. Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 

collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstalements due to error or fraud may occur and 

not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 

periods are subject to the risk that the intemal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

& = In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate intemal financial controls system over 

financial reporting except far the following material weaknesses identified: 

Attention is drawn to the non-maintainences of properly documented processes/ policies for recording of 

purchase, Sales, Manufacturing activity, inventory including its valuation, Loans and Investment activilies ets. 

Tracking of processes to confirm that these controls are in line with the company’s policy was not possible in the 

absence of such documentation. 

However, our opinion in not qualified on the above matters. 

Such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operaling effectively as al 31siMarch, 2024 which however, 

need further strengthening, based on the intemal control over financial reporting crileria established by the Company 

considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intermal Financial 

Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india. 

For P. G. Joshi & Co., 

(Chartered Accountants. 

FRN : 1044416 

CA Ashutosh Joshi 

Partner 

M. No.: 038193 

Place : Nagpur 

Date : 29-05-2024 

UDIN : 24038 193BKCBPX9250 
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CIAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Ltd. 
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

As at As at 

Pancurars NoteNo. | sistMarch, 2024 | 31st March, 2023 
LL ASSETS 

: Plant and Equipment 21 10,260.71 1613 fl y = 5 : : 

Ht Work-in-Progress. cs - ison le - = 

Other Intangitie assets 3 1a? A560 
Intangible aasets under development - - 

) Financial Aguas 
=a 4 130.60 a0 

it) Loans - 
it) Other Grannal ansels 4S 1a0.07 170,08 

") Tax fusnobs: (rial) 
') Otter Nl 2800.00 2,805.64 

Total nen-cunrent aeeeta 11344244 14,977.50 

7 15,017 53 16,548,357 
i ; 

y Trawtie: 3 saa 28 2302318 a 

(Cash and cash 10 38.14 
Bank Balan than (i) above i 

i 1B 16 211,06 
Fa 16.76 10,127 

ic) Current TaxAissets (Mel) 13 108.02 BG.38. 
current assis 14 5,110.28 5,215.09 

Total current asants. 4298.22 74,497.76. 

TOTAL ASSETS: 44,710.47 aS 

i. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

1) Equity 
E share capilal 15 2,708.59 2,796.59 

ti fob 16 6157.10 5820.44 

Total equity 5,055.78 8,370,035 

f Mont current liatailities 

aie nome - IT 2010 45,021.64 
i 18 ' O55.05 

Brows 19 152.08 433 
( (Derferraecl trax ficutyditayes. ao 1,638.94 1768. 5S 

Other non current 21 ete Wied 5736.00 

Total men-current liabilities, 6,106.37 13,328.37 

Oars eumtion 
Financial labiities 
i Borrowings a TF TELAT 40,809.55 

" Toa dues of mio enterprises and seriall = O55 17a more 
enien tas - 
Total outshanging dues of creditors olfeer (han micro 1,700.43 8,775.02 

Gond Grail enienaiaes. 
& Other firsrarecicel Vieasilitieess 24 2701 a2 

fc} ar current lahiities 25 8760.82 6,428.85 
Prowse a6 150.91 A249 

Total Currant liabilities. 25,668.32 26,076.85 

Total Habilitiesn 35,774.59 00,156.22 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 44,730.47 a8 4752S: 

Format of the above statenvent has been modified to include only the heads applicable to the Company. 

Material accounting policies 1 
Notes to the financial statement BAT As per our attached report of even date 

For and on behalf of 
Fhe notes feferred bo above fer an integral pat of the friancial gtaterventi, For CAM Agro Iindustics & Infrastructure Limited 

PG. Joshi & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

FRAN LOA DEW 

Jaylumar Varma Ramesh Himte Suneet Pande Nakul Bhat Madhubala Dave Ashutosh Joshi 
Director Director (Chict Executive Officer Chie? Finance: Offoer Company Seontary Partner 

CHM : OMB O2 GINO La ya PAN: AXDPADA 256 PARBGSPE6ITON Mam Mo : Fi2218 Mem Mo : 028193 

Place : Nagpur 
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CLAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Ltd. 
Standalone Profit and Loss for the period ended 31st March, 2024 

(Rs. in Lakhs} 

As at As at 
Particulars Note No. | 31stMarch, 2024 | 31st March, 2023 

L Revenue from Operabornes a TF Oro 54 28,9201 45. 
1. Other income Pe] 1, 16G41 2a. 

GL Tote! income (li) 18,2035 28,115.24 

MM. Expenses 

Cost of Material Gonsumed P=] 1 hoot 14,346.21 
(Gansiucion matnnal consumed Bt Or tie 185,66. 
Punches of Stock in trade a 6,294,295 10,473,85: 
(OGhanges in inventory of Faushed Goods, Work im Progress and a 4001S (1,082.77) 
Stock in Trade 
Employee Genefils Expenses ES) 650.51 96.37 
Finance cosle iM 103671 1, F682 26 

Deprecialion, Depletion, Amertesa fen 2.1 B11 58 aa5.78 
Oifeer Excpesrnees Fs) 1,196.51 1,938.75: 

Total Expenses (IV) ‘7 688.35, 79,035.85. 

V. Profit/(loss) belore Exceptional liems and Tax Sia 75.34 

VL Exceptions! lem - ue 

Wil. Profitifions) before Tax 51ST 75.34 

VOL Tax capone = pa 
1. Currant Tax ae 2. 
2. Detened Tax (1208) oooh 
3. Taz Adjusimenis of previews year (25.25) - 

IX Profit/(Loss) for the period (Vil-Will} 505 240 

&. Other comprehensive income E 
(1) tbo. that will not be rockassified io proit or bean 14,11 aa 
(id) Income tax relating bo ikem thal will not be reclassified to - 17.58. 
peo or loans. 

1 540.01 

XL Total comprehensiee income for the period SistF Sih a 

Xl, Earnings por equily share af 
41, Basic 1 oe 
2. Diluted! 7.80 De 

Format of the abowe statement has been modified to include only the heads applicable to the Company. 

Significant accounting polices 1 

Notes to the financial statements. 7-46 As per our attached report of even date 

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statemonts. For and on behalf of the Board of Birectors 
For QUAN Agro Industries & infrastrocture Limited 

P.G, Joshi & Co. 

Charteted focountants 

FRM Lode ie 

Jaykumar Varma Ramesh Himte Suneet Pande Nakul Bhat Madhubala Dawe Ashutosh Joshi 
Director Director Chicf Exncutive Officer = Chief Finance Offer (Company Socretary Partner 

IN : ODOT og? DINA a2 PAR: ASIDE PBAZSG PARLEGSPH6S79N Meni Ne : FI2218 Mem No : 038194 

Place : Nagpur 

Date : 29/05/2024 
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CIAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Ltd. 
Statement of Cash flows for the period ended 31st March, 2024 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars For the period ended | For the period ended| 
31si March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

(Cash Fiow from Operating Activities 
Profil Aller Tix StoLiT 5iGd Ba 

Aakers: 
Deferred Tax Asset “12.05 82.32 
Achunel gain on employee benelils: a 25.80 

‘Taw. Saar 26.25. 
Effect of Revaluation 46223 

Depreciakon, Depletion, Amorlisadion 61156 faa.7a 
Finance coeds: LaF 176670 
Iriteres! Clervenl of Faer Valuation of Security Gepensil 40.55 -1.04 
(GalLoas From Fores: +030 a9 

Provisions made rey d027 
Interesd Income “TTA “B18 
Prepaid rent wrillen off O49 - 
Divictand icone AUTH 4S: 

Accounts Wintlan bask A oy 
(GarvLoss From Saie-of Property, Plant ane Equigenend 2a47 
(Garw Lose from Termination of Lease 4812 
(Gatvloss on Fair Waluation 4403 

Operating Profit! (Locs) before Working Capital changes 2.12520 27189 

Working capiial adjustments: 
(Increase) / Decrease in 120 4,480.70 
(inomase) | Dooname in Trade Reonnvables Tea a0 6.00 
(Incase) / Donnas: in Other financial assets a4 1657 
(Increase) / Decmase in Other meats: S675 1,452.45 

Inowase | (Decmasn) in Trade Payables feat 116.85 
lnowase | (Decrmasoa) in Other financial Katies 241 28 1504.91 
Inceaso | (Docs) in Prowesres 2S 167.50 
Incease | (Demmasn) in Other latnlitoes: a ae | 2 tte a 

(Cash genorated | (used) from operations O.SULTH 3,949.41 
Income tax (paid) / rerhuncs (ret) 

Net cash flow trom / (used in) operating activities 6,514.78 3,549.31 

(Cash Flow from investing Activities 

Adididion to Property, Plant and Equiperresrit 100.81 BAT VS 
Adkilion bo Gapilal Work in Progross - - 
Audition bo: Intangibles Ajcersta " 
Irivesinenl inaihane capilal of Subeadiaties AE 

irvesiment in share capital of olher eniihy : “26.82 
Fimeed degen] wei lft lacaruics: S203. 
Loan ! Depornill racaivend " S00 
Tints! incon = “ 

Divwebene neornes ifs O55 
Current investment in OGCO Quo 46,303.50 

Nel Cosh Flow frond (used) in investing Activities “M117 6,560.90 

(Cash Flow from Financial Activities 
Long Term Boncuings: 70.14 MLS 
‘Overdraft / OC feeaiily - 16206 
(Roeepuen yrmesrad. col Jesevses Hielility BLS 280.72 
Finance Coat 1 FZ 15784 
(Cash proceeds trem toanes and oler shorten borrowings: 241501 2,517.08 

Net Cash Flow troow{used) in Financing Activities: 503700 244,54 

Net Incresse/(Decreasa} in Cash amd Cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1005.00 3295 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year FSS 7.83 

(Cash and canh equivalents al the end of the year ALES 10.78 

Nal increase in Cash and Cash equivalants 100584 224 

72 

Ae per our atoched report of ewer date 

For and an batoalf of 
bor OAM Aero industries & ietrastructoere limes 

Jaykumar Varma Ramesh Himte Suneet Pande Nakul Bhat 
Director Chief Cxecutive Officer = Chief Finance Officer 

DIN ooaNSra2 DIN-02112732 PAN: AXDPP E4296 PANSBGSPRGS PON Mem Ne: (12218 

Place : Nagpur 
Date ; 29/05/2024 

Hegk doshi ih ho 
Chamered Accouittantm 

FAY Dea a! 

Madhubala Dave Ashutosh Joshi 
Company Secretary Partner 

Mem Ne : 098199 
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Note 1: Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements. 

Corporate Information 

CIAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Lid. refered to as “CIAN® or “The Company” was incorporalad on 13th Day of 

September 1985 under the name of Umred Agra Complex Lid. Itwas renamed to its present name in the year 2015. The 

Company is-engaged in Agriculture, Healthcare and Infrastructure Division, tt is listed on the BSE Limited in India. The 

Company is primanhy engaged in three divisions —Agro, Heallhcare and Infrastructure. 

Material Accounting Policy 

Basis for Preparation 

The Financial Statements have been prepared Inaccordance wilh Indian Accounting Standands (Ind. AS) notified under the 

Companies Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) read with section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 and presentation 

requirements: of Division Ul of schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013 (ind AS compliant Schedule III), and as other 

pronouncements of ICAI, provisions of the Companies Actand Rules and guidelines issued by SEB! as applicable. 

The Financial Statements are presented in INR (Rs.) which is-also the company's functional currency and all values.are 

rounded to the nearest lakhs, except otherwise indicated. 

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cos! basis excepl for certain assets and liabilities that are 

teasured al fairvalues, as explained in the accounting poliches below 

tn the financial statements of the currant financial year, additional disclosures were incorporatad to ensure the true and fair 

presentation of dala. Furthermore, to uphold consistency and improve comparability, figures from prior years were 

reclassified. 

L Classification of Assets and Liabilities as Currentand Non—Current 

The company present assets and fabilities in the balance sheet based on cument/ non-ourrent classification. 

Anassetis classified as current when itis expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating 

evycle of held primarily forthe purpose of trading, All olher assels are classified as non-current. 

A liabilily is classified as current when itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, it ls held primarily for the 

purpose of trading, or there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of liability for al least twelve months after the 

reporting period, or there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for al least twelve months after the 

reporting period. The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-curent asset and liabilities. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash 

equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 

i. Use of Estimates and Judgement 

The preparation of the Standalone Financial Statements requires management to make estimates, judgements and 

assumplions thal affect the reported amount of assels, liabilities, revenue, expenses and contingent liabilities and 

accompanying disclosures pertaining to the year. Actual results may differ from such estimates, 

Estimates. and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision in accounting estimates is 

recognized prospectively and material sovision, including its impact on financial statements, is reported in the notes to 

acoounts inthe year of incorporation ofrevision. 
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Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies thal have the most significant effect on the carrying 

amourits of assets and abilities and in respectof assumptions and estimates on uncertainties are as follows: - 

ML. 

Detenninalion of the estimated useful lives of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment. 

Recognition and measurament of defined benefit obligations. Present value of the gratuity and laave encashment 

obligation is determined using acluanal valuations..An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions thal 

may differ from aciual developments in the future. 

inestimating the fairvalue of financial assets and financial liabilities, 

Recognition of deferred tax assets. 

Measurement of fair values 

The Company measures certain financial instruments at fair value ateach reporting date. Fair value is the price that would 

be received fo sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants al the 

measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Company has access al 

that date. The fair value of a liability also reflects its non-performance risk. The Company regularly reviews significant 

unobservable inpuls and valuation adjustments. ifthe third-party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is 

used to measure fair values, then the Company assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the 

conclusion thal these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the bevel in the fair value hierarchy in which the 

Valuations should be classified. 

While measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair 

values are categorised into different levels ina fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation technique as 

follows: 

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2: Inpuls olher than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the assets or 

liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derved from prices) 

Level 3: Inputs.for the assets or liability thatare not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) 

Certain accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial 

assets and liabilities. When quoted price in active markei for an instrument is available, the Company measures the fair 

value of the instrument using thal price. Amarkel is raganded as active If transactions for the assel or lability take place wilh 

sufficientfrequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. 

Wf there are no quoled prices in an active markel, then the Company uses a valuation technique thal maximises the use of 

rolevant observable inputs and minimises the use of unobservable Inputs. The chosen valuation technique incomporates all 

of the factors that market participants would take into accountin pricing a transaction. 

The best estimate of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction price — ie. tha 

fair value of the consideration given or received. the Company detennines thatthe fair value on initial pecognition differs 

from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenned neither by a quoted price in an active markel for an identical asset 

or lability nor based on a valuation technique for which any unobservable inputs are judged to be insignificant in relation to 

the measurement, then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between 

the fair value on initial recognition and the transaction price. 

Subsequently thal difference is recognised in Statement of Profil and Loss, Other comprehensive income or retained 

earings @s appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by 

observable market data or the transaction is closed cut. 
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WV. Cash flow 

The statement of cash flows has been prepared under indirect method, whereby profit or loss is adjusted for the effects of 

transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and 

items of income of expense associated with investing of financing cash flows. The cash flows from operaling, investing 

and financing activiies of the Company are segregated. 

For the purpose of presentation in the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalent would include other bank balance. 

WV. Foreign Currency Transaction 

Monetary Items : Transactions in foreign currencies are inilially recorded at their respective exchange rates at the date 

the transaction first qualifies for recognilion. Monetary assets and liabilities damonised in foreign currencies al exchange 

rates al the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlementor transiation of monetary items are recognized in 

statement of profitand loss on foreign currency transaction. 

Non-Monetary ttem : Non- Monetary item thatare measured in tenms of historical costina foreign currency are translated 

using the exchange rates al (he dale of initial transaction. 

VL Summary of Material Accounting Policy 

1.‘ Property, Plantand Equipment 

a) = initial Recognition and Measurement 

Property, Plant and Equipment are recognized al Cost. Cost includes freighl, duties, taxes (olher than those recoverable 

by the entity) and other expanses directly incidental to acquisition, bringing the asset to the location and installation. Such 

costs also include borrowing costif the recognition criteria are met 

Spare parts which meat the definition of Property, Plant and Equipment are capitalized as Property, Plant and Equipment. 

in other cases, the spare parts are inventoried on procurement and charged to Statement of Profit and Loss on 

consumption. 

b) «Subsequent Expenditure 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separale assel, as appropriale, only 

when itis probable that future economic benaiits associated with the iter will flaw to tha company and the cost of the iter 

can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profil. and Loss during the 

period in which they are incurred. 

The method of subsequent measurement forall asses of assels are given as follows: 

Method of Subsequent Measurement Classes of Assets 

Cost Model Office Equipment, Computer, Electrical 

{Le cost less accumulated depreciation and Installations, Lab Equipment, Vehicles, 

impairment loss) Cylinder, Furniture & Fixture 

Revaluation Model Land, Building, Plantand Machinery 

(be. cost plus revaluation gain/(loss) less (Revaluation is done in every 3 year) 

accumulated deprecation and impainment loss) 

c) Depreciation 

Depreciation has been provided on straight ling method in tens of expected lifespan of assels as referred loin Schedule Il 

of the Companies Act, 27013. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end 

of each reporting period, wilh the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on. a prospective basis. 
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The range ol/approximate useful life of the Property, Plant and Equipment are as follows: 

Group of PPE Useful Life (in Years) 

1, Plantand machinery 6-25 

2. Computer hardwara 5 

3. Furmiture and fixtures 5-10 

4. Office equipment 5-10 

5. Building 10-44 

6. Vehicle 8 

T. Electrical Installation 10 

8. Lab equipment 10 

For PPE where the entity has chosen the revaluation model, the accumulated depreciation is offsat against the ravalued 

amournt. 

As per Ind AS 16 the amount of revaluation surplus arising on revaluation of PPE shall be transferred to retained eamings 

eithar- 

* —althe end ofeach year during the life of the asset or 

*  mey involve transferring the whole of the surplus when the assetis retired or disposed of. 

Company has opted for second option of transferring the whole of the surplus when the asset is ratired ordisposed of, 

2. = Intangible Asset 

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately ane camed at cost less accumulated amortization and 

any accumulated impairment losses, ifany. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful 

lives in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. 

The Company has intangible asset in the nature of Compulersofiware having useful life ofS years. 

3. Financial Instrument 

4A Financial Instrument is any contract that gives nse fo a financial asset of one entity and 2 financial liability or equity 

instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial labilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs 

thal are directly attributable to the acquisition of issue offinancial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial at fair 

value through profil or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as 

appropriate, on initial recognition. 

a) =- Financial Asset 

* Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through 

profit or loss, Inansacthon costs (hat are attribulable to the acquisition of tha financial asmel. Purchases or sales of financial 

assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by requiation or convention in the market placa 

(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, ie., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the 

assel, 

* §ubsequent measurement 

Subsequent measurement is determined with reference to the classification of the respective financial assets. Based on 

the business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assat, 

the Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured al amorised cost, fair value through other 

comprehensive income or fair value through profil and loss. 

1. Debtinstruments at amortised cost 

A ‘debt instrument is measured al the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met 
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The asset is held within a business model whose objective is 

- To hold assets for collecting contractual cash fiows, and 

- Contractual tennis of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows thal are solely payments of principal and 

interest (SPP) on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 

rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium and fees or costs that are 

an integral part of the EIR. The ER amortisation is included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The 

losses.ansing from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profitand Loss. 

fi, Debtinstruments at Fair value through Other Comprehensive income (FVOCI) 

A‘debtinstrument'is measured at the fair value through other comprehensive income if both the following conditions are met : 

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achiaved by both 

- Collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets 

~ Contractual terms of the assel give fise on specified dates fo cash flows that are SPPI on the principal amount 

outstanding. 

After initial measurement, these assets are subsequently measured at fair value, any changes in value of debt instrument 

are recognised through other comprehensive income. 

Balance in other comprohensive Income in relation ip fair valuation reserve will be reclassified to profit and loss on sale of 

such debt instrument. 

fi, Debtinsthaments at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) 

Fair value through profit and loss is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does nol meet ihe 

Criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVOC), is classified as al FVTPL. After inilial measurement, any fair 

Value changes including any interest income, foreign exchange gain and losses, impairment loss and other nel gains and 

losses are recognised in the Statement ol Profitand Loss. 

This instrument is either investmentin equity share of other ently ordernvative financial asset. 

investment in equity share can be shown at FVTOCI! under imevocable option (ie. can't show investment in equity at 

FVTPL In future). In case of investment in equity share shown at FVOC! under imovocable option, fair valuation reserve on 

sale of such invesiment will be transfamed to retained earning directly. 

+ impairment of Financial Asset 

Expected credit losses are recognized for all financial assels subsequent (o initial recognition other than financial assets in 

FYTPL category. For financial assets olber than trade receivables, as per Ind AS 109, the Company recognises 12 month 

expected credil losses for all originated or acquired financial assets If at the reporting date the credit risk of the financial 

assel has nol increased significantly since its inilial recognition. The expected credit losses are measured as lifetime 

expected credit losses if the credit isk on financial asset increases significantly since its initial pacognition. The Company's 

trade recelvables do not contain significant financing component and loss allowance on trade receivables is measured al 

an amount equal to life lime expected losses Le. expected cash shorifall. The impainnent losses and reversals are 

recognised in Stalement of Profitand Loss. 

* Derecognition of financial assets 

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual nights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it 

transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party or when it 

has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, bul has transferred control of the 

asset On derecognition of a financial assetin its entirety, the difference babween the assets carrying amount and the sum 

of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss thal had been recognised in other 

comprehensive income and aocumulated in equity, i recognised In statement of profit and loss if such gain or loss weubd 

have otherwise bean recognised in the statement of profit and loss on disposal of thatiinancial asset 
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b) = Financial Liability 

. Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes 4 party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of 

directly attributable transaction costs. 

* Subsequent measurement 

Financial labilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR (Elfective Interest Rate) method or are 

measured al fair value through profit and loss with changes in fair value being recognised in the Statement of Profit and 

Loss. 

i. Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised costatthe 

end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities thal are subsequently measured al 

amorlised cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is nol capitalised as part of 

costs of an assetis included in the ‘Finance costs' line item in the statement of profitand loss. The effective interest method 

is & method of calculating the amoriised cost of a financial lability and of allocating Interest expense over the relevant 

period. The effective interest rale is the rale thal exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and 

costs paid or received thal form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or 

discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying 

amounton initial recognition, 

ii. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial abilities held for trading and financial liabilities 

designated upon initial recognition as FVTPL. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if these are incurred for 

the purpose of repurchasing in the near tenm. Financial liabilities at PYTPL are slated al fair value, with any gains or losses 

arising on remeasurement recognised in statement af profit orloss. 

* Derecognition of financial liabilities 

The Gompany derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, 

cancelled or have expired. An exchange with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different tens is accounted for 

#5 an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial 

modification of the terms of an existing financial liability is accounted for as an extinguishment of the orginal financial 

liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability 

derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the statement of profil and loss: In case of 

derecognition of financial liabilities relating to promoters’ contribution, the difference between the carrying ammount of the 

financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in other equily. 

* Financial guarantee contracts 

Financial quarantee contracts issued by the Company are those:contracts thal réquire a payment to be made to reimburse 

the holder fora loss it incurs because the specified deblor fails to make a payment when dive in accordance with the terms 

of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a lability at fair value through profit or loss, 

adjusted for transaction costs thal are directly alfribulable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is 

measured al the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impainment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the 

amountrecognised less cumulative amortisation. 

4. Inventory 

Inventories comprises of raw materials, stock-in-progress, finished goods and consumable stores. Inventories are valued 

at cost or estimated net realizable whichever is lower after providing for obsolescence and other losses, where considered 

fecessary. The cost of inventories comprises of all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other cost incurred in bringing 

inventones to their present location and condition. Net realisable value represents. the estimated selling price for 

inventories less all estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 
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5. Leases 

Company recognizes a nght-of-use asset and a lease liability atthe lease commencement date. 

Right-of-use asset (ROU): 

The nght-of-use asset is inilially measured al cost. Cost compnses of the inilial amountof the lease liability adjusted forany 

lease payments made al or before the commencement date, any initial direct costs incurrad by the lessee, an estimate of 

costs to dismante and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which itis located lass 

any lease incentives received. After the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the right-ol-use assel applying cost 

model, which is Cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Right-ofsise asset is 

depreciated using straight4ine method from the commencement date to the earlier of end of the useful life of the ROU 

assel or the end of the lease lerm. 

Lease liability: 

Lease liability is initially measured al the present value of lease payments that are nol paid al the commencement dale. 

Discounting is done using the implicit interes! rate in the lease, if that rate cannoli be readily determined, then using 

company's incremental borrowing rate. Incremental borrowing rate is determined based on entity's borrowing rate 

adjusted fortenms of the lease and type of the assel leased, 

Subsequently, lease liability is measured al amortised cos! using the effective interest method. Lease liability is re- 

measured when there is a change In the lease term, a change in ils assessment of whelber il will exercise a purchase, 

extension or termination option ora revised in-substance fired lease payment, 

When the lease lability is re-measured corresponding adjustment is made to the canying amount of the right-ol-use asset. 

if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero it will be recorded in stalement of profit and loss. 

Right-of-use assel is presented 2s a separale calegory under “non-current assets" and lease liabilities are presented 

under “Financial liabilities" in the balance sheet. 

6. Investment in Subsidiaries 

Invesiments in subsidiaries and associales are caried al cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an 

indication of Impairment exdials, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its 

recoverable amount. 

7. Contract Asset/L lability: 

Contract assets are recognised when there are excess of revenues camed over billings on contracts. Contract assets are 

classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and 

only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms. Unearned and doferred revenue (“contract lability”) is 

recognised when there are billings in excess ofrevenues. 

&. Income Tax and Deferred Tax 

1. ncome-tax Assets and liabilities are measured al the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the laxation 

authorities, The tax rates and tax laws used to compule the amount are those thal are enacted or substantively 

enacted, by the end of reporting period. 

2. Current Tax items are recognized in comelation to the underlying transaction either in the Statement of Profit and 

Loss, other comprehensive income or directly in equity. 

Fe Deferred tax is provided using the Balance Sheet method on tamporary differences between the tax bases of assets 

and liabilities and their carying amounts for financial reporting purposes al the reporting dale. 

4. Deferred tax liabililies are recognized for all taxable lemporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for 

all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. 

5.  Delerred tax assets are recognized to the extent thal itis probable thal taxable profil will be available against which the 

deductible temporary diflerenoes, and the carry forward of unused lax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. The 

carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent thal itis no longer 

probable that sufficient! taxable profit will be available to.allow all or pari of the deferred tax assel to be utilized. 
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6. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it 

has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset io be recovered. 

7. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rales that are expected to apply in the yearwhen the assel 

is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have bean enacted or substantively enacted 

atthe reporting date. 

8. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax 

assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation 

authority. 

9. Cash and Cash Equivalent 

(Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other shorter highly liquid 

investment with original maturities of three months or less thal are readily convertible to know amounts of cash and which 

are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in values. 

40. Revenue Recognition 

1. “As per provision of IND AS 115 -‘Revenue from Contracts with Customer’, revenue is recognised on transfer of control 

of goods or services to a customer al an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company Is expected lo be 

entitied to in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is maasured 

at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction 

price of goods sold, and services rendered is neLofl vanable consideration on account of discounts offered by the Company 

as part of the contractual obligation. Revenue (net of variable consideration) is recognised only to the extent thatitis highly 

probable that the amount will not be subject to significant uncertainty regarding the amount of consideration that will be 

derived from the sale of gomis. The performance obligation in case of sale of goods is satisfied ata point in time |.e., when 

the material is shipped to the customer or on delivery to the customer, a5 may be specified in the contract. Sales are net of 

retums, trade discounts, rebates and sales taxes / Goods and Service Tax (GST). 

2. Construction Contract Revenue is recognised over time as the services ara provided by output method as per Ind 

AS 115, the percentage of progress for determining the amount of revenue fo recognise is assessed based on surveys 

conducted by independent surveyor of work performed. 

3. Security deposit interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR), which is the rate that discounts 

the estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial insiniments or a shorter 

period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial assets. Other Interest income is recognized as 

and wien received at actual rate. Interest income is included in other income in the Statementof Frofitand Loss. 

4. Other income have been racognized on accrual basis in the financial statements. 

41. Employee Benefits 

a) «=«s-: Short-Term Employee benefits 

Allamployee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee 

benefits. Benefits such as salaries, performance incentives, atc., aro recognimed as an expense al the undiscounted 

amountin the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year in which the employee renders the related service. 

b) PostEmployment Benefits 

* Defined Benefit Plans 

The Company's nel obligation in respect of defined benefil plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the 

amount of future benefit that employees have eared in the current and prior periods, after discounting the same. The 

catculalion of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit 

method. Re-measurament of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gaing and losses are recognized 

immediately in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). Net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) is 

computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure the nel defined liability (asset). Net interest expense and other 
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éxpenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in Stalement of Profit and Loss. When the benefits of a plan are 

changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on 

curtailment is recognized immediately in Statementof Profit and Loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses on the 

selilament of a defined benefil plan when the settlementoccurs. 

. Defined Contribution Plans 

Payments made toa defined contribution plan such as Provident Fund maintained with Regional Provident Fund Office 

ane changed as an expense in ihe Statement of Profitand Loss as they fall due. 

12. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities. 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an 

outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and when a reliable estimate of 

the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are measured al the best estimate of the expenditure required to 

settle the present obligation atthe Balance Sheet date. The expenses relating to a provision is presented in the Statement 

of Profitand Loss netof any reimbursement. 

The Company uses significant judgements to assess contingent liabilities. Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there 

is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurence or non- 

Occurence of one of More Uncertain fulure events nol wholly within the control ofthe company thal arises from pastevents 

where itis either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of 

the amount cannol be made. 

13. Earnings Per Share 

Basic Eamings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equily shareholders by the 

weighted average number of equities shares outstanding during the period, 

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the nel profil for the period attributed to equity shareholders and 

the weighted average number of shares outstanding during Ihe period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential 

equity shares: 
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Note 2.2 

Right of Use Assets 
(Rs_ th Lakhs) 

Description nem Ares 
31st March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 

A.Cost 

Opening Balance 960.51 960.51 

Additions - - 

Deletions 451.37 ; 

Closing Balance (I) 509.13 960.51 

6. Accumulated Amortisatian 

Opening Balance 4465.94 320.48 

Amortization during the year 62.20 176.46 

Closing Balance (II) 509.13 446.94 

C.Net Carrying Amount (I-I!) 513.57 

1. The lease agreements were terminated this year, resulting in the derecognition of the associated 

Right of Use assets from our financial statements, 

Note 3 

Other Intangible Assets 

(Rs. in Lakhs} 

As at As at 

sahciodd 34st March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 
A.Cast 

Opening Balance 37.33 40.71 

Additions - 

Deletions - - 

Closing Balance (I) 37.33 40,71 

B. Accumulated Amortisation 

Opening Balance 30.35 26,74 

Amortization during the year 5.12 6.82 

Disposals “ 0.17 

Closing Balance (I) 35.46 33.56 

C.Net Carrying Amount (I-II) 1.87 6.98 

1. The carrying amount of the intangible asset decreased to its residual value during the year, resulting In the 

asset being amortized only over three quarters, 
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Note 4 
Investments - Non-Current 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars a a 
31st March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 

A. Investment in Equity instruments 

(i) Subsidiaries (Valued at cost) 

(a) Cian Agro Limited (Foreign Subsidiary) 6.28 6,28 

(b) INBD Express Private Limited 0.01 0.60 

(ii) Other Unquoted Equity instruments (Valued at cost) 

(a) Yavatmal Urban Co. Op. Bank 17.50 17.50 
(b) Samruddhi Urban Co.Op. Bank 2.96 2.96 

ic) Wardha Nagari Sahakari Bank 10.00 10.00 

(d) Nagour Nagrik Sahakari Bank 2.87 2.87 

(e) Jankalyan Sahakari Bank Ltd 5.07 5.07 

(f) TISB Bank Ltd, 0.20 0.20 

(h) Shares of Akola Urban Co.Op. Bank 27.62 27.62 

(iii) Other Unquoted Equity instruments (Valued at fair 

value through OCI) 

Manas Agro Industries & Infrastucture Ltd. 5.64 5.64 

B. Investment in Preference share (Valued at fair value 

through profit or loss) 

Manas Agro Industries & Infrastucture Ltd. 102.45 264.36 

Total 180.60 343.10 

Particulars 31st March,2024 31st March, 2023 

- Aggregate book value of quoted investments 

- \zeregate market value of quoted investments 

- Agegrepate carrying value of unquoted investments 

- Ageregate amount of impairment in the value of 

investments 

180.60 343.10 

1. INBD Express Private Limited was divested from our investment pertfolio this year. 

2. The investment in unquoted equity instruments of Banks have been made for obtaining loans or 

overdraft facility as applicable, the above investments are valued at cost. 
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Note 5 

Other Non-Current Financial Assets 
(As. in Lakhs) 

. As at As at 

Pestiurts 31st March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 
A. Security Deposit 17.07 17.07 

B. Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity 

Fixed Deposits 163.01 153.01 

Total 180.07 170.08 

i, The Security Deposits are for accessing utilities and have an indefinite life, hence it is impracticable to determine 

their fair value, 

Note 6 

Other Non-Current Assets (Rs, in Lakhs) 

Particulars Asat sat 
3ist March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 

A. Capital Advances 2,800.00 2,600.00 

B. Other Advances 

Prepaid Expenses . 5.64 

Total 2,800.00 2,805.64 

1, The Capital Advance is against the acquisition of the office area, 

2 The lease agreements were terminated this year, resulting in the derecognition of the Prepaid Rent assets from our 

financial statements, 

Note 7 

Inventories (Rs. in Lakhs) 

As at As at 

Buns 31st March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 
A. Raw Materials (Including Packing Materials) 1,027.22 1,035.61 

B. Work-in-progess 2,260.99 2,018.31 

C. Finished Goods 4,517.89 3,114.52 

D. Stock-in-trade 2,274.60 5,722.58 

E. Stores and spares 5,358.02 4,734.30 

F. Others 

Consumables 78.82 323.05 

Total 15,617.53 16,948.37 

1. Valuation Technique: Inventory is valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value (NRV). Throughout the year, the 

company conducted inspections to identify any material discrepancies that could result ina significant decline in NAV. Nosuch 

discrepancies were found during the yearWhile conducting the year-end inventory valuation process the company evaluated 

the net realizable value.only for items inactive for the past three years. 

2. The Work-in-progress amount includes the cost of land and development costs with respect to the projects. 

3. Forinventory pledged as security, refer Note No. 17. 
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Note & 

Investments - Current 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

As at As at 

31st March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 
Particulars 

A. Investment in Debentures or bonds 

Optionally Convertible Debentures of Manas Power 
Ventures Pyt. Ltd. icaniae saad 

Total 6,394.03 6,393.50 

1. The Company had invested In 639.35 Lakh Optionally Convertible Debentures (OCDs) of the face value of Rs.10 each 

and carrying a coupon rate of 0.01% p.a. issued by Manas Power Ventures Pvt. Ltd. such OCDs are convertible into a 

fixed number of equity shares at the option of the company and the company expects to opt far the option during the 

upcoming financial year. 

Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, the number of shares to be issued In exchange far the Optionally Convertible 

Debentures (OCB) ls determined with reference to the issuer's mast recent valuation report. As a consequence, the 

carrying amount of this investment reflects the fair value of the instruments 

Note 9 

Trade Receivables - Current 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

As at As at 

3ist March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 
Particulars 

A. Trade Receivables - Considered Good Unsecured 

(i) Due from Related Party 1,350.31 1,272.96 

(ii) Que from Others 2,481.95 3,319.20 

Total 3,832.26 4,592.16 

The above reflected balance of debtors include debtors having outstanding balances exceeding three years. While legal 

action to collect these debts may be hindered by statutes of limitations (time-barred), the company maintains a 

positive outlook on their recoverability based on historical payment behaviour and therefore has refrained from 

recognizing any provisions for them, 

Trade ReceWwables Apeing Schedule a5 at 21st March 2024 

Thetatanding for following parteds from dus date of payment 
Particulars [More then > 

Less than Gemenths fe months - 1 year in? years 2d yearn yoarn Tatal 

Lincipuqed Trades recenakies — considered geod 581.32 485 78 1,4911,48 107.05 351.65 5,852.26 

Une pur Trade Fevables~ which hive algnlficant imcrmasa iit 

credet rink 
Unokeputed Trade Recaivahlos = ocedit inm@ained 
Dinputed Trade Rectivablie=comghergd good 
Di puted Trade Rerevable: = whech have fignifcant incre | credit 

rick 

Dit pited Trade Recesabhes = credin ienpaired 

Total S81.42 485.78) 1311.43} 102.03) 1351.65) 3832. 
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Trade Receivables Agelng Schedule as at 31st March 2023 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

articular: More than 3 

Less than Grmanths | Gmenths 1 year | 1-2 years | 2-3 yoars | years Tatal 

Lindignuted Trade receWwables = considered good 1,626.60 L4B.51) 4.87) L239) 2,552.78 | 4,592.16 
Lindisguted Trade Receivables = which hawe dgmificant iicrmase in 

credit tak 
Lindnouted Trade Recerrables — credit impaired 

[Ms puted Trade Peceivables-condered good 

Des uted Trade Repeivables — Which fave sipnificdat intreace in credit 

risk 
Disputed Trade Apceivablas— credit impaired 

Teanad 1626.60 148.51| 141.87 | 142.39 2532.78 | 4592.16 

Note 10 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars neat eat 
3ist March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 

A. Balances with Banks 

In Current Accounts 24.40 28.58 

B. Cash on hand 13.74 12.20 

Total 38.14 40.78 

Note 11 

Loans - Current 
(Rs, in Lakhs] 

Particulars feat fuged 
3ist March,2024 | 3ist March, 2023 

A. Other Loans 

(i) Loans receivables Considered Good - Unsecured 182.16 211.36 

Total 187.16 211.36 

Note 12 

Other Financial Assets - Current 
(Rs.in Lakhs] 

Particulars ae feet 
3ist March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 

A, Others 

Security Deposit Receivable 15.73 10,09 

Receivable from Subsidiary Companies 0.03 0.03 

Total 15.76 10.12 

The security deposit receivable represents the amount still receivable from parties whose lease apreaments have been 

terminated, 
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Note 13 

Current Tax Assets (Net) 
(Rscin Lakhs) 

Particulars ee ase 
31st March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 

A. Income Tax 

Tax Deducted at Source Receivable 44.98 60.28 

Tax Collected at Source Receivable 74.06 26.10 

Refund Receivable - Previous years 38.98 - 

Total 108.02 86.38 

Note 14 

Other Current Assets 

(Rs. in Lakes) 

Particulars As at a 
31st March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 

A. Advances other than Capital Advances 

(i) Advance to Suppliers 1,259.59 1,744,437 

(ii) Advance to Related Party 137.87 367.00 

(iii) Advance to Directors 169.66 : 

B. Others 

(i) Statutory Dues -8.72 28.62 

(ii) Prepaid Expenses 1,00 7.39 

(iti) Varron Aluminium Pvt. Ltd. 3,550.86 3,067.71 

Total 5,110.26 5,215.09 

The Company has paid a sum of Rs, 3,550.89 Lakhs to Varron Aluminium Private Limited towards the 

Resolution Plan (RP) under the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP). The allotment of 

shares i¢ pending due to ongoing procedures with the NCLT and ROC, 

As per Ind AS 109 Para 2.1 (f), any forward contract between an acquirer and a selling shareholder to 

buy or sell an acquiree that will result in a business combination is within the scope of Ind ASLO3. 

Further, as per Ind AS 27 Para 10 (aj, the company has opted to account for investments in 

subsidiaries at cost. Hence, this Investment has been valued at cost. 
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Note 15 

Equity Share Capital 

[Ris in Lakhs} 

As at As at 

inital 31st March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 
A. Authorised Capital 

(i) Equity Share Capital 4475.00 4475.00 

4,46,00,000 shares ol As, 10 each (orevicns year 

4,46,00,000 equity shares of Rs, 1Oorach|) 

(ii) Preference Share Capital 

15000 Shares-of Rs. 100 each (previous year 15000 shares 

shares of Rs. 100 each} 

|8. Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital 

()} Equity Share Capital 2798.59 275B59 
2,79,85,895 shares of As. 10 eack (previous year 

2,79,85,895 shares of As. 10-each) 

Total 2798.59) 2798.59] 

The Company fas issued onhoone class of shares namely equity shares having a par value of As. 10 per 

share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per chare. 

Reconciliation of No. of Equity Shares 

CIAN —— 

Particulars Ag at Ag at 

Bist March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 
4. Opening Galance 279.86 279.86 

8. Shares issued - = 

C, Closing Balance 279.88 279,86 

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares {No.of shares in lakhs) 

As at Ag at 

Name of Shareholder 31st March,2024 31st March, 2023 Percentage Change 

Number of shares Percentage of | Numberaf | Percentage of during the year 

shareholding shares shareholding 
Chaitanya Constructions and Builders Pvt Ltd 2145 as 215 77 O.O%, 

Punt) Marketing Pyt Ltd 45.2 16.2% 45,2 16.2% O.0% 

Avinash Fuels Pyt, Lied, a4 26.2% 7313 26.1% O.0% 

Purti Contract Farming Pyt. Lod. 38.7 3.2% 38.7 13.8% O.0% 

Total 178.53 63.5%: 178.53 63.8% 0.0% 

Shares held by promoters a3 at 21st March 2024 

‘4 Change 

Promoter Name No, of shares of tetal shares | during the 
perled 

Sundartal Mahadeo Kharbikar 500 O.00% o% 

Nanda Shirish Harode 7500 O.03% 0% 

Kalpana Trilokchand Sorte 1,400 O.01% O% 
Dattu Balap Ralamkar 1,000 0.00% 4 

Uday Amrut Lambat 500 O.00%, O% 

Keshao Bhaskarrao Chandle 500 0.00% O% 

Pravin Warman Bakde 3,000 01% a 

Preetu Amrut Lambat 2,000 oo o% 

Sudher Shirihar! Voditel 1,000 00% om 

Anand Shankar Karat 1,03,500 O.a7% 1% 

Chattanya Constructions and Builders Pyi Ltd 21,50,000 7.68% Oo 

Purti Marketing Pyt Led 45,20,000 16.15% Li) 

Avinash Fuels Pyt. Ltd, 73,135,290 26.13% O%. 

Purti Contract Farming Pvt. Ltd, 38, 70,000 13.63% o% 

Greenedge Constructions Private Limited 8,634,541 3.095% o% 

MM) Activ Sci-Tech Communications Priate Limited 1,060,000 0.36% 0% 
Total 1,89,98;127 67.67% 

0 
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Shares held by promoters as at 31st March 2023 

% Change 

Promoter Name No. of shares % aftotal shares | during the 
period 

Pushpa Amrut Lambat 34,600.00 0.12% 0% 
Amrut Keshay Lambat 175,500.00 0.63% Oh 

Vijay Radheshyam Pandit 1,000.00 0,005 O% 

Alka Chandrabhan Sadawarti 2,500.00 O.01% OM 

Deodatta Dhananjay Bakde 2,500.00 0.01% os 

Dayaram Bhagwanji Narnaware 500.00) 0.00% O% 

Sundartai Mahadeo Kharbikar 500.00 0.00% Oo 

Nanda Shirish Harode 7,500.00 0.03% 0% 

Pandurang Dashrath Kalambkar 2,500.00 0.01% 0% 

Kalpana Trilokehand Sorte 1,800.00 0.01% O% 

Manda Keshavrao Sonkusare 1,000.00 G.00%. Os 

Pradeep Waman Bakde 3,500.00 0.01% of 

Babureo Rarriaji Bokde 1,000.00 0.00% Oh 

Bhaskar Ramaji Thakare 1,000.00 0.00% 0% 

Vijay Vishwanath Sorte 1,000.00 0.00%. 0% 

Raojbhal Manaji Patel 500.00 0.00% Oo 

Gunderao Gulabrao Kadu 500.00 0.00% O% 

Sunil Vishwanath Sorte 500.00 0.00% 0% 

Ravi Shriram Joshi 1,800.00 0.01% Of 

Ram Dinkar Pathak 1,500.00 0.01% 0% 

Shivani Rawi Joshi 2,300.00 0.01% 0% 

Dattu Balaji Kalamkar 1,000.00 0,00% Oh 

Dattu Pandurang Manusmare 1,000.00 0.00% OD 

Manararma Prabhakar Patil 3,000.00 0.01% on 

Uday Amrut Lambat 500.00 0.00% Os 

Nanda Kiranrao Deshpande 800.00 0.00% O% 

Keshao Bhaskarrao Chandle SO0.0h) 0.00% of 

Hira Ravi Mahajan 1,000.00 0.00%. 0% 

Pappusingh Jamaitsingh Bagga 1,000.00 0.00% o% 

Bhanu Rajan Mahajan 1,000.00 0.00% oo 

Rajan Dattatraya Mahajan 2,000.00 0.01% O% 

Kishore Amanmal Jashnanl 1,000.00 0.00% o% 

Ravi Dattatraya Mahajan 2,000.00 0.01% Oo 

Sumedha Ram Pathak 1,500.00 0.01% 0% 

Pravin Waman Bakde 3,000.00 0.01% On 

Sushil Tukaram Kohade 2,000.00 0.01%. OM 

Asha Deorao Bakde 3,500.00 0.01% 0% 

Jairam Moreshwar Telang 1,000.00 0,00% O% 

Mandeep Pappusingh Bagga 1,000.00 0.00%. 4 

Nanda Sonkusare 1,000.00 0.00% 0% 

Preetu Amrut Lambat 2,000.00 01% on 

Rajendra Awasthi 2,500.00 0.01% O% 

Sudher Shrihari Voditel 1,000.00 O00 Oo” 

Vikram Prabahkar Nene 1,000.00 0.00% on 

Prashant Suresh Joshi 100.00 0.00% 0% 

Chandrashekhar 5 Deolikar 4,500.00 0.02% On 
Nikhilchandra T Mendhekar 2,500.00 0.01% os 

Kanjibhai Harilal Wegad 1,000.00 0,005 O% 
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Shankar Gyandeo Sadawarti 1,100.00 0,00% Oo 

Megha Joshi 30,487.00 0.11% Oo 

Smita Vijay Joshi 500.00 0.00% ou 

Nitin Krishnakant Mudholkar 8,200.00 0.03% 0% 

Vijay Vithairao Joshi 2,000.00 0.01% On 

Arvind Waman Bakde 2,72,523.00 O.o7% On 

Salila Uday Kamat 1,54,000,00 0.55% 0% 

Shiv|i Gangadas Patel 500,00) 0.00% 0% 

Uday Shankar Kamat 3, 78,000.00 135% O% 

Anand Shankar Kamat 1,03,500,00 0.37% 0% 

Abhay Shrawan Parate 10,000.00 0.04% Om 

Bhaiya Kondbaji Pongde 500.00 0.00% o% 

Sunil Pedgaonkar 3,35, 700.00 1.21% O% 

Geeta Sunil Pedgaonkar 94,300.00 0.44% 0% 

Panjabrav L Ambhore O00) 0.00% Of 

Prakash Vinayak Bedekar 1,500.00 0.01% 0% 

Sangeeta Shankar Sadaweartl 1,595.00 0.01% Oo” 
Chaitanya Constructions and Builders Pvt Ltd 21,50,000.00 7.68% Of 

Purti Marketing Pvt Ltd 45,20,000.00 16.15% Oo 

Avinash Fuels Pvt. Ltd, 73,13,290,00 26:15% OM 

Purti Contract Farming Pyt. Ltd. 38, 70,000.00 13.83% OF 

Greenedge Constructions Private Limited $,63,531,00 3.09% 0% 

Market Missionaries (India) Pyt. Ltd. 1,00,000.00 0.36% 0% 

Total 2,05,01,226.00 73.26% 
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Note 16 

Other Equity (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars oe se 
31st March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 

4. Capital Reserve 

Opening Balance 468.56 468.56 

Closing Balance 468.56 468.56 

B. Capital Reserve created on account of common control 

transactions 

Opening Balance 177.06 177.06 

Closing Balance 177.06 177.06 

C. Securities Premium 

Opening Balance $21.93 321.93 

Closing Balance 321,93 321.93 

D. Revaluation Reserve 

Opening Balance 6,599.11 7,051.33 

Less: Unwinding Of Revaluation Surplus to Retained Earnings O74. 27 : 

Less: Transfer made during the year via OC! to retained ; 462 33 

earnings ; 

Closing Balance 6,024.89 6,599.11 

E. Retained Earnings 

Opening balance “2,046.22 “2,610.02 

Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year as per Statement of Profit and 505.06 24.83 

Loss 

Add: Unwinding of revaluation surplus 574.22 - 

Add : Unwinding of revaluation surplus(Deferred Tax) 117.58 = 

Add : Other Comprehensive income for the year as per 14.13 6AD 01 

Statement of Profit and Loss 

Less : Interest Element of 5D - -1.04 

Closing Balance -835.26 -2,046,22 

Total 6,157.19 5,520.44 

Nature and purpose of components of other equity 

Capital Reserve created on account of common control transactions 

Capital Reserve created on account of common control transactions is the gain on recognition of Merger 

of the company's erstwhile subsidiaries with the company during the financial year 2019-20, as per the 

requirements of Ind AS 103 Business Combination. 
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Note 17 

Borrowings - Non Current (Rs. in Lakhs) 

eareicul As at As at 

eee 31st March,2024 31st March,2023 

Non-Current Current Maturities Non-Current mation 

A. Term Loans 

Guaranteed by directors or others 

{i} From Banks « Secured 1,442.90 734.64 2,168.25 512.03 

C, Other Loans 

Intercorporate Deposits - Unsecured 1,467.66 460,50 2,853.41 

Total 2,910.56 1,195.14 5,021.64 §12.03 

Intercorporate Depasits Include amount payable to Khare and Tarkunde Infrastructure Pvt, Ltd, Such an amount was received 

a5 a performance security to form a joint venture for a housing infrastructure development project to be taken up based on 

the project's feasibility, However, both partes have backed off the agreement and the amount has been reclassified ‘as 

intercorporate deposit having a tenure of S years. The carrying ammount of the lability has been fair valued. 

Details of Security and Terms of Repayment 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Amount 

Outstanding as on|Terms af 

)Particulars S1st March 2024 =| Repayment Security 

Plant fa 

testable in 24-23) a Term Leans from Banks 234.54 Iby Monthly al } 
Debtors of the 

Installments ies 
Aluminium 

processing unit 

Repayable in 27-28] 

Term Loans from Banks 405.34 |by Monthly|Land 

Installments 

Repayable in 25-26 

Term Loans from Banks 427.40 thy Monthly] Land 

Installments 

Repayment in FY 2fjland & Building, 

Term Loans from Banks 1110.26 |28 by Monthly)Plant & Machinery 

Installments of the spices. unit 

Repayable in 28-29 

Other Loans 1927816 [by yearly- 

Installments 

The rate of interest for term loans from banks ranges from 11% p.a te 13.75% p.a 

Note 12 

Lease Liabilities - Non Current (Rs:-in Lakhs) 

As at As at 

Particulies 31st March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 

|Lease Liabilities - 655.85 

Total - 655.85 

The lease agreement was terminated this year, resulting in the derecagnition of the associated Lease 

Liabilities fram our financial statements. 
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Note 19 

Provisions - Non Current (Rs, In Lakhs) 

Particulars neat nae 
ist March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 

A. Provision for employee benefits 

Provision for Leave encashment 18.54 21.65 

Provision for Retirement gratuity 4737 46.87 

Provision for Bonus 271.20 36.22 

Provision for Ex Gratia 64.97 39.60 

Total 152.08 144.33 

Movement in Non Current Provisions 

As at 
Particul ga oti 31st March,2024 

A. Provision for Employee Benefits 

Balance as at lst April 2023 144.33 

Provisions made during the year 54.06 

Provisions utilised during the year 44.25 

Provisions reversed during the year 3.09 

Balance as at 31st March 2024 151.06 

Additional information about Provisions 

The Provision for Employee Benefits has been created for the liability of employee benefits payable 

beyond 12 months ta employees during their employment and post-retirement. The amount of outflows 

expected and its timing is.as per the actuarial repart. 

Note 20 

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars neat neat 
ist March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 

A. Deferred Tax Liabilities 

ti) ROU Asset - 133.53 

(i) Property Plant and Equipment 1777.81 1876.48 

Gross Deferred Tax Liabilities Total (I) 1777.81 2,010.01 

B. Deferred Tax Assets 

(I) Provision for Expenses AD, 78. 37,56 

(Ii) Provision for Statutory Dues Payable 7.39 14,37 

(li) Unused Tax Credits Losses 90,13 18.61 

liv) Liability For Rent 170.52 

Gross Deferred Tax Assets Total (il) 138.90 241.46 

Net Deferred Tax Liabilities Total (I - II) 1,638.91 1,768.55 
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Mowrnent in Deformed Tax Liability (Net) for the year onded 21st March 7024 

cy 
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Recognised in 
Recognised in Closing balance 

i pithy 
Particulars Opaning Bulance 25) ment of pectit f Recomnised | at 31st March 

at ist Apeil, 2029 com@rehensive [directly in equity " 
amd Lass. 2024 

income 

Tae effect of items constituting Deferred Taw Liabilities : 

fH) ROW Asset 133.53 “133,53 c 

(ii) Property Plant and Equipment Lee 1s.54 -i7.58 Lavra) 

Total (A) 2,010.01 -114-42 = 177781 

Tax effect of terms constituting Deferred Tax Assets: 

fi) Provision for Expenses a7. a? 4074 

[Al Provition for Statutary Dues Payable M437 “6.35 749 

[eo} Unosed Tas fredits! losses 12.61 7152 oh 413 

(iv) Lidbiligy For Rent 170.52 -170.52 : 

Total (6) 24.45 -102.55 oy 138.30 

Deford Tax Liabilities (Met) Total (4-8) 1,768.55 106 - 1638.91 

Mowoment in Drtomed Tas Liability (Met) for the poor onded dist March 7072 

enctny Recognised in . 
. Aecaognised in | Closing balance 

Opening Balance wt f other Recognised ie 
Particulars at ist Apeil, 2002 statement of profit Fe ivacsdide [dicodihy tw acuity at 31st March, 

and Lose : 202% 
income 

Tas affect of items constituting Deferred Tax Liabilities : 

fi) BOW Asset 166.41 32.88 133.53 

[ai) Property Plantand Equipment 1ag5.42 B64 LiP.Seé LAve aS 

Total [Aj 2151.83 or4,24 “Li7.58 200 

Tax elect of tems constituting Deferred Tax Assets: 

fi) Provision for Eqpenses 66.40 28158578 37.56 

(M) Provision for Statutory Ones Payable 75a S.B43949 - 14.37 

(iti) Unused Tax Credits! lasses 19.02: -0.41 5492 IBA 

(in| Liability For Rent 193,31 27 JASASE 17n52 

Total (Bi) 290,35 AS Aa7 SES 741.46 

Deformed Tax Wiabilitias (Mert) Total (4-3) 1260.87 25,25 1,768.55 

Mote 21 

Other Non Current Liabilities 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

As at Ae ae 
Particulars 

det March,2024 | 21st March, 2023 

A. Bich es from % 1e08.82 5739.00 

Testa’ 144,82 5739.00 
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Note 22 

Borrowings- Current 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars neat seat 
31st March,2024 31st March, 2023 

A, Loans Repayable on Demand 

Guaranteed by directors or others 

(i) From Banks 

(a) Cash Credit from Bank - Secured 1,309.64 1,510.35 

(b) Overdraft from Bank - Secured 5,172.35 6,070.08 

B. Loans from Related Parties 

C. Other Loans and Advances 

{i) Intercorporate Deposits 101.48 2,517.08 

D, Current Maturities of Long Term Debt (Refer Note ) 1,195.14 512.03 

Total 7778.61 10609.55 

Security 

1. Cash credit facility of Rs. 1,309.64 Lakhs from banks is secured by hypothecation of Plant & Machinery, Land & Building, 

Stock, Debtors of the Aluminium processing unit. 

2. Overdraft facility of As: 43.37 Lakhs from banks is secured by hypothecation of Land & Building, Plant & Machinery of the 

Spices unit 

3, Overdraft facility of Rs. 5,126.48 Lakhs from banks is secured by hypothecatlon of Plant & Machinery, Land & Bullding, 

Stock, Debtors of the Ol processing unit. 

Note 23 

Trade Payables - Current 
(Rs. in Lalchs) 

As at As at 

Pasticulars 31st March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 
A. Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small oss 4:79 

enterprises ; : 

B. Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 

enterprises and small enterprises 

(i) Bue to Related Parties 34.44 11.90 

(ii) Due to Others 11,663.99 9,763.12 

Total 11,703.98 9,773.23 
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“a, 

LL, 

(i) Details of Due to MSME 

CIA 

On the basis of the information and records available with management, details of dues to micro and small 

enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006 are as below: 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
31st March,2024 

As at 

31st March, 2023 

As at 

i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the 

year end, 

ii) Interest due thereon 

iii) Amount of interest paid in terms of section 16 of the 

MSMED Act, along with the amount of the payment made to 

the supplier beyond the appointed day during the accounting 

year. 

iv) Amount of interest due and payable far the period of delay 

in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the 

appointed day during the period) but without adding the 

interest specified under-the MSMED Act 

v) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end 

of the accounting year. 

vi) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even 

in succeeding years. 

0.55 

O.07 

(ii) Ageing Schedule 

fa) As at 31st March,2024 (Rs. in Lakhs} 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

More than 3 

Particulars Less than i Year | 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years Years Total 

MSME 0.55 0.55 

Others 771754 2448.61 281.14 1256.13 11703.43 

Disputed - MSME 

Disputed - Others 

Total 7,718.09 2,448.61 281.14 1,256.13 11703.98 

(b) As at 31st March,2023 (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

More than 3. 

Particulars Less than 1 Year | 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years Years Total 

MISME -1.79 - - = “1.75 

Others 5.54112 1,660.28 278.87 2,344,74 9775.02 

Disputed - MSME 0.00 

Disputed - Others - - - - 0.00 

Total 5,539.34 1,660.28 228.87 2,344.74 9773.23 
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CIA 

Note 24 

Other Financial Liabilities- Current (Rs. in Lakhs} 

As at As at 
Particul 
articulars Zist March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 

A. Accrued Expenses 39.55 52.24 

6. Payable to Staff and Associates 224.56 -29,41 

C. Payable to Preference Shareholders 9.90 9.90 

Total 274.01 32.73 

Note 25 

Other Current Liabilities (Rs. in Lakhs) 

As at As at 
icul 

sieiiainiali 31st March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 
A. Revenue received in Advance 8,350.79 3,065.38 

B. Other Advances 

(i) Advance against land sale agreement 250.00 300,00 

(ii) Advance from related parties 758.02 2,359.17 

c. Others 

(i) Statutory Dues payable 158.95 313.69 

(ii) Others 243.06 290.60 

Total 9,760.82 6,328.85 

Note 26 

Provisions- Current (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars esi ale 
31st Mareh,2024 31st March, 2023 

A. Provision for Employee Benefits 

{)) Provision for Leave encashment 1.82 O79 

(ii) Provision for Retirement gratuity 2.95 0.88 

B. Provision for Tax 

(i) Income Tax 84.22 25.25 

C. Others 

{i) Provision for GST Demand 9.23 9.23 

(ii) Provision for Audit Fees 49,51 46.34 

(iii) Provision for Income Tax Demand 3,19 - 

Total 150.91 £2.49 
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Movement in Current Provisions 

ieul As at 

janice 31st March,2024 
A. Provision for Employee Benefits 

Balance as at 1st April 2023 1.67 

Provisions made during the year 3.09 

Provisions utilised during the year 

Provisions reversed during the year 

Balance as at 31st March 2024 4.76 

B. Provision for Tax 

Balance as at 1st April 2023 25.25 

Provisions made during the year $4.22 

Provisions utilised during the year 25.25 

Provisions reversed during the year 

Balance as at 31st March 2024 84.22 

C, Others 

Balance as at 1st April 2023 55.57 

Provisions made during the year 17.01 

Provisions utilised during the year 10.65 

Provisions reversed during the year 

Balance as at 31st March 2024 61.93 

Additional Information about Provisions 

A. Provision for Employee Benefits 

The Provision for Employee Benefits has been created for the liability of employee 

benefits payable within 12 months, The amount of outflows expected and its timing is 

as per the actuarial report. 

B. Provision for Tax 

The Provision for Tax is created for the income tax liability expected to arise in the 

Assessment Year 2024-25, 

C. Others 

Other Provisions include the amount provided for GST and Income Tax demand. The 

company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately 

provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities 

where applicable, in its standalone financial statements. 
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Note 27 

Revenue from Operations 

: For the period ended | For the Period ended 

Facticun 31st March,2024 31st March, 2023 

4. Revenue from: 

(i) Sale of Products 16,8737 23,991.55 
(ii) Sale of Services 200 0 

8, Less: Discount 43 40.10 

Total 17,070.94 28,991.45 

Note 28 

Other Income 

. For the period ended | For the Period ended 

Particulars 2st March,2024 Bist March, 2023 

A, Interest Income 

(\Hnterest On Fixed Deposit 11.10 9.18 
(ljinterest on Security Deposit against rent 0,55 1.04 

(i)interest on MSER Deposit - 001 

livjinterest Income On Debentunes/ Investments Ged 

(v}interest Recelwed from loans and advances: O10 0.10 

B. Dividend Income O78 0.55 

C. Other non operating income 

(Foreign Exchange fluctuations (met) 0.02 2.78 

(iijAccounts Written back 40g.42 

(income from rent O85 0.60) 

(iv)Contract Settlement Oil . 5 ttl 

(vjincome from Scrap Sale : O29 

(wi)Gain on Reduction of Lease Term 148.12 : 

(viljTax Provision Written Back - 101.36 

(will}Other Recelpts 0,02 794 
(ix) Gain on fair valuation of Loan 5698.34 

Total 1,169.41 123.79 

Note 29 
Cost of material consumed 

Particulars For the period ended | For the Period ended 

31st March,2024 dist March, 2023 

4, Opening Stock 

(I) Faw Material (incluces packing material) 1,035.61 295,92 

(il) Consumables 3273.05 105.44 

(iii) Stores & Spares 4,734.50 4,251.67 

Total 6,092.96 3,656.03 

B. Add : Purchases 

(i) Raw Material (includes packing material) 1,050.08 13,067.24 

(ii) Consumables La 256.50 

(iH) Stores & Spares 945.82 2,435.09 

Total 1,996.42 16,353.83 

€. Less: Closing Stock 

(i) Raw Material (includes packing material) LOz7.22 1,035.61 

(ii) Consumables Taa2 324.48 

lif) Stores & Spares 5,353.02 4,303.56 

Total 6,464.06 §,663,.65 

Total 1,625.82 14,346.71 
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Note 30 

Construction Material Consumed 

articular For the period ended | For the Period ended 

3ist March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

Construction Material Consumed 571,02 185.66 

Total 571.02 185.66 

Note 31 

Purchase of Stock in Trade 

Particul For the period ended | For the Period ended 

ane Bist March,2024 31st March, 2023 

Purchase of stock In trade 9,395.05 10,425.26 

Less: Discount on purchases “0.765 “1.61 

Total 9,394,279 10,423.65 

Note 32 

Changes in inventory of Finished Goods, Work in Progress and Stock in Trade 

Particulars For the period ended | For the Period ended 

31st March,2024 31st March, 2023 

4. Finished Goods 

Opening Stock 3,114:52 4,552.66 

Closing Stack 4,517.89 3,114.52 

Net (increase)/ decrease 1,403.37 1,238.14 

B. Work-in-Progress 

Opening Stock 2,018.31 1,347.56 

Closing Stock 2,360.99 2018.41 

Net (increase}/ decrease “342.68 “670.75 

C. Stock-in-trade 

Opening Stock 5,722.58 4,102.42 

Closing Stock 2,274,60 5,722.50 

Net {increase}! decrease 3,447.59 -1,620,17 

Total 1,701.95 -1,052.77 

Note 33 

Employee Benefit Expenses 

Paiticulars For the period ended | For the Period ended 

dist March,2024 3st March, 2023 

Salaries and Wages 570,58 531.3) 

|Payment towards PF and other Furnes 68.29 55.50 

Staff Welfare Expenses 11.64 9.49 

Total 650.51 596.37 
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Hote 34 

Finance Cost 

Pavticul For the period ended | For the Period ended 

hinba tala ist March,2024 31st March, 2023 

A.Interest 

(i) Interest cost on financial liabilities measured at amortized cost 

(a) From Banks 
I) Interest on Overdraft 1,113.47 1,070.06 

I) Interest on Term Loan 300.24 223.34 

(1) Entorest on Unsecured Ioan 274.00 232.16 

IV) Interest on Vehicle Loan 1.49 5.46 

(ii)Iinterest On Lease Liabilities 42.79 Sh42 

8. Other Borrowing Costs 

{i) Processing Fours 471 19.8) 

Total 1736.71 1,762.26 

Note 35 

Other Exponses 

Particulars For the period ended | For the Period ended 

Slat March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

&. Power and Fuel 236,42 364.08 

8. Transportation Expense 74.11 70.64 

Cc. Legal & Professtonal Fees 113.67 9174 

D, Miscellaneous expenses 7id.46 141379 

Total 1196.51 1938.75 

Miscellaneous expanses include: 

artentais For the period ended | For the Period ended 

31st March, 2024 Sist March, 2023 

&. Payment to auedltors for 

(i) Statutory Audit Fees M85 12.75 

(iil) Cost Audit Fees 0.60 0.60 

Total 14.65 14.45 

Note 36 

Tax Expense 

The Major components of Income Tax Expense are; 

L. Amounts recognised in Profit or Loss 

Particulars For the poriod onded | For the Period ended 
31st March, 2024 dist March, 2023 

Profit and Loss Secthon 

A, Current Tax Expense 

Currant income Tax Charge 427 25.25 

Reversal of Provision for Tax relating to earlier years 25.25 

Total (A) 58.57 25.25 

B. Deferred Tax Expense 

Attributable ta: 

(0) Grigination and reversal of temporary differences 55.46 25.25 

(il) Recognition of previously unrecognised deductible temporary 157 

differences , 

Total (B) -12:05 25,25 

Total 46,51 50.51 
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Particulars Amount 

Profil Before tax a4 per etatement of Profit and loss 551.97 

Tax on the above @ 26% fi) 143,51 

Adjustments to reconcile 

Non deductible Expenses, 330,80 

Nan Taxable Inecerie 605.22 

Effects of adjustments (i) 7145 

Tax adjustments of previous year (uty -25.25 

Tax Expanse recognieed in books (4 ten 46.91 

Note 37 

Earnings per Share 

= plareoey] poem 
Profit after tax for the pear (In Lakhs) 505.05 24.64 

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares {In Lakhs) 279.86 279.66 

Basic and Diluted EPS 1.0 a] 

Basic EPS and Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profil for tive year atiributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of 

Equity sharns outstanding curing the yoar 

Note 38 

Additional Regulatory information pursuant to the requirement in Division lof Schedule ito the Companies Act2013 

(i) The company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the 
company for holding any Benami property. 

(i) The company does not have any transactions with companies struck off. 

(ii) The company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets 
or both during the current or previous year. 

liv) The company has nol traded orinvested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year. 

(tv) The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 

entities (Intannediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: 

{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or an 

behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to oron behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

(vi) The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) 
with the understanding (whether recorted in writing or othenwise) that the company shall: 

fa) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

{b) provide any quarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

(vii) The company has not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts thal has been 

surrendered or disclosed as Income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such 

45, search of survey orany other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1967 

(vii) The company has borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. The 
quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the company with banks and financial institutions are in 
agreement with the books of accounts. 

fiz) None of the entities in the company have been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
government or any government authority 

(x) The company has complied with the number of layers prescnbed under the Companies Act, 2013. 

(xi) The company has not entered inion any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or 

previous financial yaar. 
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Note 39 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Particulars For the period ended 31st) For the Period ended 

March,27024 31st March, 2023 

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

Revaluation of Fined Assets - Plantand Machinery 

Revaluation of Fixed Assets : Land 

Unwinding of Revaluation Surplus: Plant and Machinery - 420.63 

Urwinding of Revaluation Surplus : Building : 31.60 

Acturial gain on employee benefits 14:11 -29.80 

14.11 422.43 

(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified ta profit or loss 

{Deferred tax) 

On Revaluation of Plant and Machinery 

Land 

On Revaluation of Building 

On Unwinding of revaluation surplus: Plant and Machinery 2 109.36 

On Unwinding of revaluation surplus + Building . B22 

117.58 

Tatal 14.11 540,01 

Note 40 

Contingent Liabilities (to the extent not provided for . ( P (Rs. in Lakhs) 
As at 

Particulars 
31st March,2024 

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts in 

respect of: 

Income Tax Demand 150.55 

Total - 

The Company has ongoing disputes with Income Tax authorities in India. The disagreements concern 

Note 41 

Leases 

Leases as a Lessee 

All the leases where the company was a lessee were terminated during the financial year 

information about leases for which the company was a lessee is disclosed below: 

1) Amaunts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 

For the period For the Period 

Particulars ended 31st ended 3ist March, 

March,2024 2023 

Interest Expense on Lease Liabillties 42.79 91.42 

?) Total Cash Outflaws for Leases during F¥ 23-24 is Rs. 99.15 Lakhs. 

3) The company has not sub-leased any Right-of-use asset. Hence, income from sub-leasing Right-of-use assets recopnised in 

statement of profit and loss during FY 73-24 is Mil 
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B. Measurement of fair values 

Valuation techniques and significant \mebservable aepurts. 

The following tablet show the valuation techniques used in measuining Level 2 and bevel 3 fair values, ai well a4 he significant unobservable inputs used: 

Financial instruments measured at fair value 

Type Valuation technique 

Financial guarantees are measured at tee higher of: 

Financial Guarantee The amount of the loss allowance, and 

The amount initially recogrised less curnulative arvortisatioan 

Discounted Cash How Method: 

Security Daposit against Rent Investments The valuation mace considers the present value of contractual 

Rayments, discounted using appropnate discounting ratirs. 

1) Preference Shares 

Discounted Cash Flow Method: 

The Valuation model considers the Present Value ef expected cash 

flows from the inetruments 

Non Current investments 2) Equity Shares of Banks: 
Hold at Cost: 

The Equeity Shares of banks are held at cost. 

Held at FWTOCI: 

The company has opted te walum certain equity instniments al 

FYTOCI 

C. Transfers between Levels 

There hive been to transhers between tie bevel. 

Note on Financial Guarantee 

The Company has extended a corporate guarantee te Varron Aluminium Private Limited (VAPL) against the boan obligation to Bank 

amounting te Rs. 27,30,00,000 undertaken by VAPL. 

The company is acting a5 a guarantor for VAPL and hence is required to make payments only in the event of a default by them on the 

terms of the foan that is guaranteed by us. 

A financial guarantee contract is initially recognised at fair value. if the quarantes is sued to an unrelated party on a commercial 

basis, the initial fair value is Ukely to equal the premium received. fine premium is receled, the fair value must be determined using 

amethod that quantifies the economic benefitof the guarantee to the halder. 

However, according to the information provided by the lendes, the interest rate of the loan would have remained unchanged even if 

we had not provided the guarantee. Hence, the guarantee wasn't initially recognised. 

At the end of each subsequent reporting period, financial guarantees are measured at the higher of: 

(i) The smount of the loss-allowance, and 

(i) The amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation 

As per ind AS 109, the boss allowance on the financial puaranter contract will be determined using: 

Loss Allowance = Loan Amounts Probability of default 

According to the latest valuation report, the creditor's exposure to default is fully covered by the entity's available assets, Therefore, 

even if we assume a 100% probability of default, the likelihood of the guarantor facing a financial burden is negligible. This implies 

that, uincker lind AS 109, the carrying amount of the financal puarantes in the books would be zero. 
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Note 42 

Financial instruments —Fair values and risk management (continued) 

“The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments: 

1} Credit Risk 

ii) Liquidity Risk 

iii) Markel Risk” 

Risk Management Framework 

The Gompany’s board of directors have the overall responsibility for establishing and supervising the Company's risk 

management framework. They have formed the isk management commitiee, tasked with formulating and supervising 

the Company's risk management policies, and regularly reporting its activities to fhe board of directors. 

The Company's risk management policies aim to identify and assess the risks encountered by the Company, establish 

suitable risk limits and controls, and monitor both risks and compliance with these limits. These policies and systems 

undergo regular review to adapt to markel changes and the Company's operations. 

(i) Creditrisk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company Ifa counterparty to a financial instrument fails to mee! lls contractual 

obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivable from customers, loans advanced and cash and bank 

The Group ensures that sales of products ana made to customers with appropriate creditworthiness. 

The Company has issued financial guarantees fo bank in raspect of loan facilities availed by its: subsidiaries. In 

accordance with the policy of the Company, the Company has recognised these financial quarantees as lability at fair 

value (Refer note 42). Outstanding loans in the subsidiaries agains! the financial guarantee contracts given by the 

Company as at 31st March, 2024 is Rs. 27.30 Crores. 

Note 42 

Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued) 

(iii) Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial 

liabilities that are setiled by delivering cash or another financial asset, The Company's approach to managing liquidity isto 

ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal 

and stressed conditions, wilhoul incurring unacceptable losses orrisking damage to lhe Company's reputation. 

Exposure to liquidity risk 

The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities into relevant maturily groupings based on their contractual 

maturities for all non derivative financial liabilities. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include contractual 

interest payments. 

(Rx. in Lalehes) 

Contractual cash flows 

Bist March, 2028 Carrying sinount Total Ube 1 year 13 years 7S years |More than § years 

2910/56 2,520.56 2,244.80 665,76 

Non Current Borrowings and interest thereon 

Cutrent Borrowings and Interest therecn 7, 778,61 rears ead 7 PPR 

Trade Payables 11,703.58) 11,703.98 ILISLe1 

ebveer cairmerit Pirvasrvclal lets tithes, 274.01 274.04 2 A005 

(Tetal 22,667.15 22,667.15 217306 2,244.80 GGS,76 = 
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Contractual cash flaws 

Fist March 2023 Carrying anount 
a Total Upte 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years |More than 5 years 

Non Current Borrowings and interest thereon 7,680.26 26114 BSOq? 1,325.46 Ga. 80 i.) 

Current Borrowings and interest thereon 10,097.52 1.097 52 10,097.52 
Trade Payabtes Be Bi S772 23 Bra23 = 

Other current financlal (alilities. 2,886.14 2,886.14 288614 - 

Total #5,497.55 @5,615,02 23,607.35 1,325,565 6A? 80 1.30 

Financial instruments —Fair values and risk management (continued) 

iv. Market risk 

"Markel risk is the risk of loss of future eamings, or future cash flows arising oul of changes in Markel Conditions of 

Agriculture Industry, Healthcare Industry & Infrastructure Industry, which include changes in prices of Raw Maternal and 

commodity prices (indigencously procured as well as import). The objective of market isk management is to avoid 

excessive exposure to the fluctuations in market prices. 

The company i6 exposed to high nsk of changes in the prices of Crude and Soyabean oil. Due to their volatility, the prices 

may fluctuate significantly over short periods of time for this commodity. The prices of lhe Company's commodity 

generally fluctuate in line with global market conditions, Commodity price risk exposure is evaluated and managed 

through operating procedures and policies. The company is mitigating such risk by nol operating the oil refinery and 

undertaking Irading activities in oll, The exposure to markel isk is significantly reduced by this since the Operating losses 

under the of refinery under current market scenario are very high. As of March 31, 2024, the Group had not entered into 

any maternal derivative contracts to hedge exposure to fluctuations in commodity prices. 

v. Currency risk 

"The Company is exposed to currency risk on accountof its operating and financing activities. The functional currency of 

the Company is Indian Rupes. 

The Company has not taken derivative instruments to hedge the foreign currency fisk. Also, the Company continuously 

monitors the fluctuation in currency risk and ensures that the Company does nol have an adverse impact on account of 

fluctuation in exchange rates." 

Exposure to currency risk 

The currency profile of financial assets and financial liabilities as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 areas below: 

(Rs. in Lakhs} 

March 31, 2024 Total (In Rs} Euro 

Financial liabilities 

Trade Payables 13.55 0.15 

Total Exposure for liabilities 13.55: O15 

{&s. in Lakhs) 

Mareh 31, 2023 Total (In Rs) Eure usD 

Financial assets: 

Other Curront financial asset 25.14 O.44 

Net exposure for assets 25.14 - O.31 

Financial liabilities 

Other Current financial liabilittes 13.49 0.15 

Net exposure for liabilities 13.49 0.15 - 

Net exposure (Assets - Liabilities) 11.65 (0.15) 0.31 
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Sensitivity analysis 

A.reasonable possible strengthening / weakening of the respective foreign curencies with respect to functional currency 

of Group would result in increase or decrease in profitor loss as shown in table below, This analysis assumes thal all other 

variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. The following analysis has been worked out based on the 

exposures as of the date of statements of financial position. 

(As. In Lakhs) 

Strengthening s March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Effect on Profit or Loss (before tax) Weakening Va Strengthening Weakening | Strengthening] Weakening 

EvRo 1% o.14 (0.44) O13 (0,43) 

USD 1% z (G.25 O.25 

0,14 (0.14) (0.12)] 0.12 

Note 42 

Financial instruments —Falr values and risk management (continued) 

Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is: the risk that the Tair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 

changes in market interest rates. 

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk thal the future cash flows of floating interest bearing instruments will fluctuate 

because of fluctuations in the market interest rates. 

The Company primarily enters into fixectrate instruments which ensures that 80-90% of its interest rate risk exposure is. at 

afixed rate. 

The Company's exposure to markel risk for changes in Interest rales primarily relales to overdrafts and cash credits from 

banks... 

For details of the Company's long-term loans and borrowings, including interest rate profiles, refer to Note of lhese 

financial statements. 

Exposure to Interest Rate Risk 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Carrying Amount Zist March,2024 | ist March, 2023 

Fixed-rate instruments 

Financial assets - measured at amartiged cost 
{i} Other nan-current financial aset 163.01 153,01 

Total 163.01 153.01 

Financial liabilities - measured at amortised cost 
(i) Non Current Borrowings 1,442.90 173,40 

(ii) Current Borrowings 1,296,62 2,517.08 

Total 2,739.52 2,690.48 

Variable-rate instruments 

Financial liabilities - measured at amortised cost 
|i} Non Current Borrowings 2,506.86 

(ii) Current Borrowings 6,461.99 7,580.44 

Total 6,481.99 10,087.30 

Interest rate sensitivity -fimed rate instruments 

The Group's fixed-rate deposits and loans with banks are canied al amortised cost They are therefore nol subject to 

interest rale risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neltharthe carrying amount nor the future cash flow will fluctuate because 

of a change in market interest rales. 
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Interest rate sensitivity - variable rate instruments 

A.reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased/ decreased 

profit or loss by amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other Variables remain constant This calculation 

also assumes that the change occurs al the balance sheet date and has been calculated based on risk exposures 

outstanding as al that date. The period end balances are nol necessanily representative of the average debt outstanding 

during the period. 

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments 
(Rs. in Lakhs 

(Cash flow sensitivity (met) Profit or loss 

increase 100 bps decrease 
For the period ended Jist March,2024 
Vanable-rate instruments (64.82) 64.62 
Cash flow sensitivity (net) (64.82) 64.82 

For the Period ended 31st March, 2023 
Vanable-rate instruments. (Loca?) LOo.a? 
Cash flow sensitivity (met) (100.87) 100.87 

The Group has follewing exposure to Interest Rates as at 31st March 2024: 

Particulars Fearing Ag iat Ag at 
Fined Sist March 2024 Ailst March, 2023 

fon Current Borrowings 

(a) Loar from banks List| 1442450 173-40 

{b) Loansdrom banks Ftonting - 2,506.86 

Cunront Borrowings 

a] Current Loans jincluded current maturities) acd {PSB 2,517 ba 

6} Qverdratts and Cash Credits from bank Floating 6,489.95 7, 580,44 

Total 9.271.50 12,777.78 

Note 43 

Employee benefits 

For the period ended Jist |For the Period ended 31st 

Sr.No. | Particulars March, 2024 March, 2023 

1 Ew gratia 6a 97 39.60 

z ‘Gratuity 50.42 4775 

a Leave enicashimert 20.36 724 

4 Bonus 21,20 cles 

Tatal 156.84 146.00 

As per Indian Accounting standard 19 “Employee Benefits", the disclosure as defined in the accounting standard are 

given below 

The status of gratuity plan as required under ind AS-19 : 

The Company operates a defined benef plan (ihe Gratuity plan) covering eligible employees, which provides a lump-sum 

payment to vested employees al ratirament, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on 

ihe respective employea's salary and the tenure ofemployment. 

A) Defined Contribution Plan 

B) Defined Benefit Obligation 
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As at As at 

Particulars Bist March, 2024 3ist March, 2023 

I) Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of Define Benefit 

Obligation 

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations at the beginning of 
47,75 31.36 

the year 

Current Service Cost 7.10 7.40 

Interest Cost 3.34 2.15 

Past Service Cost + - 

Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) loss arising from: 

Change in Demographic Assumptians 0.00 0.00 

Change in Financial Assumptions Lili 0.65 

Experience variance (7.62) 7.69 

Actual Benefits Paid (i.e, Actual experiences assumptions) 1.36 - 0.20 

A775 
Present Value of Defined Benefits Obligation at the end of the year ane 

li) Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of the Falr value 

of Plan Assets 

Fair Value of Plan assets at the beginning of the Year 0 i] 

Investment income 0 0 

Return on plan asset excluding amount recognised in net interest 

expenses - = 

Contributions * * 

Fair Value of Plan assets at the end of the Year i oO 

lil. Reconciliation of the Present value of defined benefit obligation 

and Fair value of plan assets 

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations at the end of the Year a seni 

Fair Value of Plan-assets at the end of the Year 0.00 0.00 

Net (Liability) recognized in balance sheet as at the end of the year 30.32 atts 

lv) Gratuity Cost for the year 

Current Service Cost 710 7.40 

Interest Cost 43.44 245 

Past Service Cost 

Net Gratuity cost recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 10.44 9.55 

v) Other Comprehensive Income 

Actuarial (Gains) Losses 

- Changes in demographic Assumptions - 

- Changes in financial Assumptions 111 -0.65. 

- Experience adjustments - 7,62 7.69 

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other 

comprehensive Income +6.50 7.04 

vi) Actuarial Assumptions 

Discount Rate [per annum) 6.95% 720% 

Expected annual Increase in Salary Cost 10.00% 10.00% 

Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives 

Mortality Mortality (2012-14) Ut Mortality (2072-14) Ult 

Employee attrition rate (past service] PS: 0 to 5 years 715% PS: 0 to 5 years 15% 

PS: 5 to 10 years 5% PS: 5 to 10 years 3% 

PS: 10 to 15 years 31% PS: 10 to 15 years :1% 
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vii) Sensitivity Analysis 
Significant achuarial assumphons for the detemnination of the defined benefl obligation are discount rate, expectedsalary increase and 

morality, The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possibie changes of the assumptions ocoumng=at 

fhe end.of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant The results of sensilivily analysis is given below: 

Increase / Decrease in defined benefit obligation impact 
Particulars. Sensitivity Level Aint Acar 

dist March, 2024 ist March, 223 

Discount Rate LE Increase 46.14 ~ 43.78 

1% Decrease 55.26 52.42 

Salary Growth Rate 1% Increase S365 5.1.06 

1% Decrease 46.61 44.45 

vill] Effect of Plan on Entity's Future Cash Flows. 

Maturity Profile of Deflned Benefit Obligation 

Weighted average duration (based on discounted cashHows} 

JExpected: cash flows over the newt (valued on undiscounted basis}: Amount 

Aa at As ot 

dist March, 2024 dist March, 2023 

ist folowing year 295 2,69 

2nd following year aay ABS 

ard following year 5.03 $50 

4th following year 5.46 4.40 

Sth following year 146 5.07 

Years 6 to.10 12,64 4175 

Hote 44 

Retoted party transactions 

A. Listof related parties and relationship 
The Management has identified the following entities and individuals &s relaied parties of the Group for the year enced March 31, 202d and March 

31, 2023 for the purpees: of mporting 25 por ind AS 24- Related Party Dischesune which are 25 under 

(ij Entities having significant influence 

The following entities has significant influence over the Company 

Marna Type Piace of incorporation Ownership interest 

Bist March,2024 Fist March, 2023 

Chaitanya Constructions & Builders Pyt Ltd Body Corporate India 7.6a8 eat | 

Avinash Fuels Private Lemited Body Corporate India 26.13% 26,13% 

MM Activ Sci-Tach Communications Private Lirvted Body Corporate Inclia 0.35% 2.35% 

Greenedge Constructions Private Limated Body Corporate lndla 308%. 4.02%. 

Purtl Marketing Private Limited Body Corporate Ineia 16.15% 16.15% 

Purti Contract Farming Private Limited Body Corporate India 1183", 12.83% 

(ii) Subsidtaries, joint ventures and aidociates 
interest in subsidianes, joint ventures and associates arp pot out below; 

Marea Type Place of incorporation Ownership interest 

3st March, 2024 Flat Manch, 2023 

Clan Agro Lemited (Foreign Subsldiary| Body Corporate Rusia LOOK 1a0h, 
ING Express Private Limited Body Corporate India ou Gt 

(ii) Key ramnagemont porsonnct 
Mr. Nilthil Gadkari, Managing Director 

Mr. Stment Pande, Chief Exentive Officer 

Mr Naku! Bhat, Chie! Finawial Offheer 

Mri. Madihuiala Dave, Company Secretary 2 Complkence officer 

{lvl Entities controlled or jointly controlled by KhMP ar Relatives of RMP 

[Nama Type Place of incorporation 

Avenzer Electricals & Inirastricture Pet Lid Body Corporate Inctias 

Wir. Sarang Gadkari Individual India 

MANAS OOWER VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED Boch Corporate Indie 

Vidarbha Roaltors Pyt Led Body Corporate Initia 

Purl Enterprises Fartnershig Firm invtis 
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B, Transactions with related partios 

i) Key management personnel compensation 

CIAN 

(Rs. in Lakhs} 

Particulars. 31st March, 2024 21st March, 2023 

Short-term employee benefits 

Post-retirerent benefits 

Other long-term benefits 

118.82 118.20 

(ii) The nature wise transactions with the above related parties are as followrs: 

For the year 2023-24 

Nature of Transactions Subsidiaries 

Key 

management 

personnel 

(KMP) & 
Relatives of 
KMP 

Entities controlled 

or jointly 

controlled by KMIP 

or Relatives of 

KMIP 

Entitleshaving 

significant 

influence 

Sales of goods (finished or untinished); 

Receiving of services 

Providing of services 

Investment in Equity 

Imprest account payments 

[iptest account receipts 

Inter corporate deposits taken 

Inter corporate deposits repald 

Advance against purchases/ services 

Advance Received against Sale 

Loans & Advances given 

Purchase of store & Spare parts 
Accounts payable written off 

Purchase of poods {finished or unfinished}: 

0.25 

1941 

146,09 

For the year 2022-23 (Rs. in Lakhs) 
Nature of Transactions Subsidiaries Key management 

personnel (KMIP) & 

Relatives of KMP 

Entities having 

significant influence 

Entities controlled 

or jointly controlled 

by KMP or Relatives 

of KMP 

Sates of goods {finshed or unfinished |; 

Recelving of services 

Providing of services 

Investment in Equity 

Imprett account payments 

imprest account receipts 

Inter corporate deposits taken 

Inter corporate deposits repaid 

Advance against purchases! services 

Accounts payable written off 

Purchase of goods {finished or unfinished}; 

55.53 

Note 45 

Capital Management 

“The Company's objectives when managing capital is: 

(to maintain astrong capita) base and healthy capital ratios so.astomainiain the investor, creditor and market confidence, 

(ilo sustain fulure development of ihe business, and 

(if) to provide adequate metum to shanehoalcdears fhiqagh continuing grwih 

The Company's overall strategy remains unchanged from previous year" 

The Company determines the capital requirements based on annaal business anc bong-torm operational plans! strategies, encompassing 

capital and eirategic investments. These financial needsare fulfilled through.a blend of equity and bong-berm borrowing. The Gompany tracks its. 

capital and long-term dott using the debl-to-equity ratio (Refer Note 46), 

To meet its debt obligations, the Company has Adequate Gash and Bank balances. The Company monilors ls capital by scrutiny of these 

balances and regular assessment of any debi requirements. 
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CIAN 

Note 47 Segment Reporting 

*A. (General Information 

(a) Factors used to identify the entity's reportable segments, including the basis of organisation 

Based on (he criteria mentioned in Ind-As-108-"Operaling Segment, the Company has identified its reportable 

segments, as follows: 

«Segment Agro Products 

*Segment-2, Healthcare 

+ Segment-3, Infrastructure 

Unallocable - Expenses which are commen among the segments and could not be allocated are categorised under 

unallocable, 

The Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM") evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources based on 

ananalysis of vanous performance indicators by operating segments. The CODM reviews revenue and gross profitas the 

performance indicator forall of the operating segments." 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Sr. Particulars For the period ended For the Period ended 

No. 31st March,2024 31st March, 2023 

(Audited) (Audited 
1) Segment Revenue(Net sale/income from operation) 

Seement-fero Division 15,045.99 21,640.74 

Segment-Healthcare Division 253.73 1,499.07 

Segment-infrastructure Division LFFhd? 5,851.63 

Total 17,070.94 28,991.45 

Less: Inter segment Revenue = * 

Add: Other Income 1,169.41 123.79 

Net sales/Income From Operations 18,240.35 29,115.24 

2) Segment Results (Profit}(+)/ Loss (-) before tax and interest 

from Each segment) 

Sepment-Agra Division 664.83 (390.77) 

Segment-Healthcare Division 1,655.75 1,532.45 

Segment-Intrastructure Division” (353,41) 2351 

Total 1,967.17 1,374.20 

Less: 

(i) Interest 1,415.20 1,298.85 

(ii) Other Un-allocable Expenditure 

(li) Un-allacable income 

Total profit after interest before tax 551.97 75.34 

3} Capital Employed (Segment assets — Segment Liabilities) 

Sepment-Agro Division {1,197.81) (1,856.29) 

Segment-Healthcare Division 3,869.12 2,213.37 

Seement-infrastructure Division (2,539.01) (1,435.74) 

Un-allocated 2,798.59 2,798.59 
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C. Reconciliationof information on reportable segments.to ind AS measures: 

CIAN 

(Rs. in Lakhs} 
Nature of transaction For the period ended 

3ist March,2024 

For the Period ended 

ist March, 2023 

Particulars 
21st March,2024 

i) Revenues 

Total revenue for reportable segments 18,740.35 29,115.24 

Revenue for other segments 

Total Revenue 18,240.35 29,115.24 

ii})Profit/Loss before tax 

Profit/Loss before tax for reportable segments §51,57 75,34 

Profit/Loss before tax for other segments : = 

Profit/Loss before tax as per Financial Statements 551.97 75.34 

iii) Assets 
Total assets for reportable segments 43,474.90 46,736.15 

Assets for other segments - - 

Unallocated aniounts 2,798.59 2,798,559 

Total assets 46,273.39 49,534.74 

iv) | Liabilities 

Total liabilities for reportable segments 40,543,591 45,016.23 

Liabilities for other segments 

Unallocated amounts = = 

Total liabilities 40,543.91 45,016.23 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

For the period ended. For the Period ended 

31st March, 2023 

A. Revenues from extemal customers attributed to the country of 

domicile and attributed to all foreign countries from which the company 

derives revenues 

Revenue from the Country of Domicile- India 18,185.67 259,060,56 

Revenue from foreign countries 64.68 54.68 

Total 18,240.35 29,115.24 

B. Details of non current asset 

Non Current asset in the Country of Domicile - India 13,432.24 14,687.59 

Non Current asset in Foreign Countries 7 z 

Total 13,432.24 14,687.59 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

To, 

The Members 

CLAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

1. We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of CLAN Agro Industries & 

infrastructure Limited (hereinafter refered to as the “Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (Holding 

Company and is subsidiaries together referred to as the “the Group") which comprise the Consolidated 

Balance Sheel as al 3ist March 2024, and the consolidated statement of profil and loss (including other 

comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equily and consolidated statement of cash 

fiows for the year then ended, and the notes to consolidated financial statements, including Material 

Accounting Policies and other explanatory information (hereinafler referred to as “Consolidated Financial 

Statements"). 

2. Inowr opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to ws, the aforesaid 

Consolidaled Financial Statements give the Information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") in the 

manner so required and give a tre and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 

accepted in India, including Ind AS, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2024, 

and its consolidated profil & loss, consolidated other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equily 

and consolidated cash flows forthe year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

3. We conducted our audtt in. aceordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of 

the Companies Act, 2073. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are 

independent of the Company with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated 

financial slalemenis in terms of Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the 

rolevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 

othical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We belleve that the audit 

evidence oblained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated 

financial stalements, 

Emphasis of Matter 

4. Wedraw attention io 

a. Note No 4 'Non-CGurrent Investments’ where the Company has Valued investment in equily shares of 

bank at cost. 

b. Note No. 9'Current Investments wherg the Investes Company has determined the numberof shares 

thal can be issued agains! the Optionally Convertible Debentures (OCDs), based on the latest 

valuation report of the Investea company Managementis of the opinion that such valuation represents 

the fair value of invesiment in OCDs of the Investee Company. 
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opinion is not modified in respect of the above. 

Key Audit Matters 

5, Key audll matters (KAM) are those matters thal, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 

audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 

context of our auditof the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and 

we donot provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Sr. | Description of Key semstetcae te ca ae How the matter was 
No. Audit Matter significance in the audit addressed in the audit 

A. The Company We identified revenue Assessed the objectivity 

engages in recognition of Infrastructure and competence of the 

Infrastructure contracts where the percentage Company's Internal 
contracts, wherein, of completion is used as a key specialist involved in 

revenue is audit matter since: estimating work performed. 
recognized using * there is an inherenl risk 

ihe percentage of around the accuracy of Conducted a reassessmenl 
completion revenues recognised of the revenue recognized, 
computed as per considering the customised using the work completion 
the output method, and complex nature of these slinalspetiitinesiease 
the percentage of contracts . 

progress for 

determining the : application of revenue Obtain, work completion 

amount of revenue recognition accounting aialentani veteielael 
lo recognize is standard (Ind AS 115, specialists. 

assessed based Revenue from Contracts with 

en seereys customers) is complex and Tracked costs incurred 
conducted by involves a number of key during the construction 

independent Judgments and estimates in process to ensure they align 

surveyor of work mainly identifying with the revenue 

performed. performance obligations. recognized. 

B. Fair Valuation of During the reporting period, thea We have verified the 

financial liability company undertook a correctness of the events 
reclassification of the 

penormance security previously 

received from Khare Tarkunde 

Pvt. Lid. This reclassification was 

executed in accordance with the 

mast recent agreement belween 

the parties, and the amount was 

transferred fo the category of 

loan payable. 

As per Ind AS 109 this liability 

needs to be fair valued and since 

determination of fair value is 

based on a high degree of 

judgement and input that is net 

directly observable in the market. 

Accordingly, it has bean 

considered as a key audil matter. 

and reviewed the 

assumplions pertaining to 

discount rates. 

Examined the forecasted 

cash flows meticulously to 

ensure the accurate 

determination of fair value, 

We have also ensured the 

compliance with the 

recognition and disclosure 

requirements of the standard. 
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Key Audit Matters (KAM) 

Other Information 

6, The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information, The 

other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company's Annual raport, bul does not 

include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will nat 

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

in connection with our audit.of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other 

information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in 

the aucil or otherwise appears to be materially misstaled. 

Management's and Board of Director's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

7, The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 

134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the preparation and presentation of these Consolidated 

Financial Staiemenis that give a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profiifloss 

and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of 

the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian 

Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2074_ The respective Management and Board of Directors of the company are responsible 

for maintenance of adequate acoouniing records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safequanding 

the assels of the company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other imequilarities; the selection and 

application of approprale accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, thal were 

operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 

preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 

from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, which has been used for the purpose of preparation 

of the consolidated financial staterneants by the Management and Board of Directors of lhe company, as 

aforesaid, 

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of tha 

company are responsible for assessing lhe Company's abilily to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 

applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going concem basis of accounting unless the 

respective Board of Dinectors either intends to liquidate the Company or to coase operations, or has no realistic 

alternative bul to doso. 

The respective Board of Directors of the company are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial 

reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to oblain reasonable assurance aboul whether the consolidated financial stalements a5 a 

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and lo issue an auditor's neport that 

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is nota guarantee that an audit 

conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstaltament when il exists. Misstalements 

can arise from fraud or error and are considered maternal if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
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reasonably be expected fo influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis. of these consolidated 

financial statements. 

As part of an audit in aceordance wilh SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

a. Identify and assess the fisks of material misstatement of the Consolidaied Financal Statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 

obtain auditevidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

delecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulling from error, as 

fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overide of 

internal control. 

b. Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in onder to design audit procedures that 

are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(l)ofthe Companies Act 2013, we ane also 

responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial 

controls with reference lo Consolidated Financial Statements in place and the operaling effectiveness 

of such controls. 

Cc. Evaluale the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

eslimates and related disclosures made by Management and Board of Directors. 

d. Concude on the appropriateness of Management and Board of Directors use of the going concem 

basis of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit 

evidence obtained, whether a matenal uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

significant doubt on the appropriateness of these assumption. If we conclude thal a material 

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in 

the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, 

fullure events of condilions may cause the Company to cease lo continue as a going concern. 

a. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the conzolidated financial statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner thalachieves fair presentation, 

§. Wecommunicale with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audil findings, including any significant deficiencies in intemal control thal we 

identify during our audit. 

We also provide those changed with governance with a statement thal we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicale with them all relationships and other matters thal 

may reasonably be thought to bear on ourindependence, and where applicable, related safequands. 

From ihe matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matiers thal were of 

most significance In the audit of the consolidaled financial slatements of the curren! penod and are therefore 

the key audit matters. We describe these malters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation preciudes 

public disclosure about the matter orwhen, in extremely rane circumstances, we determine thata mattor should 
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nol be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences. of doing so would reasonably be 

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Other Matter 

10. (a) We did not audit the financial slatements of INBD Express Private Limited (Indian subsidiary) whose 

financial statements reflect total assets of Rs.20.90 Lakhs as al 24th July 2023, lolal revenues was Nil and net 

cash outfiows amounting to Rs.0.27 Lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated 

financial slalements, 

The consolidated financial statements also include the Group's share of net Loss of Rs. 0.14 Lakhs for the year 

ended 31st March, 2024, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of INBD Express 

Private Limited, whose financial statements have nol been audited by us, These financial statements other 

auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated 

financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect ofthis subsidiary 

and ourreportin terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, insofaras il relates to the aforesaid 

subsidiary, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. 

{b) We did not audit the financial statements of LLC Cian Agro Limited (Foreign subsidiary) whose financial 

statements reflect total assets of Rs.1.35 Lakhs as at 31st March 2024, total revenues was Nil and net cash 

outflows amounting to Rs.12.95 Lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated 

financial statements. The consolidated financial statements also include the Group's share of net loss of Rs. 

14.45 Lakhs for the year ended 31st March, 2024, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in 

respect of LLC Cian Agro Limited, whose financial statements are unaudited. These financial statements have 

been fumished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as 

it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary our report in terms of sub- 

sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Actinso far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary, is based solely on 

such unaudited financial statements. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to 

us by the Management, these financial statements are not material to the Group. 

(C) The company is presently engaged in the following disputes with statutory authorities. The company 

anticipates favorable outcomesin all of these disputes, with the exception of the demand for Rs. 3.19 lakhs, for 

ber pel lg in 
Amount 7 la 

Goods and Senice Goods and Appellate Tribunal FY 17-18,18-19, 19-20 13021 
Tax Act, 2017 Service Tax 

Income Tae Income Tax Commissioner of AY 2079-20 35.67 
Act 1967 Income Tax (Appeals) 

Income Tax Income Tax Commissioner of AY-202 1-22 65.67 
Act1861 Income Tax (Appeals) 

Income Tax Income Tax Commissioner of AY-2015-16 3.19 
Act,1961 Penalty Income Tax (Appeals) 

(d) The revenue recognition on account of sales of the organic manure during this year is notably substantial. 

We have reviewed the reconded prices against ihe prevailing market rates. 
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Our opinion is not modified in respectofithe same. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

11. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the Order") issued by the Central Government 

of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure.A* a statement on the matters speciied 

in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

12. Ay Asrequined by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 

balief were nocessary forthe purpose of our audit ofthe aforesaid consolidated financial stataments. 

b. In qur opinion proper books of account as required by law relating io preparation of the aforesaid 

consolidated financial statements have bean kept by the Company so far as itappears from ourexamination of 

those books. 

¢. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other 

comprehensive income), consolidated stalament of changes In equity and the consolidated statement of cash 

flows deall with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained forthe purpose 

of preparation of the consolidated financial statements. 

a. in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 

specihed undersection 133 ofthe Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

6, On the basis of written representations received from the directors of the company as on 31s! March, 2024 

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors {5 disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from 

being appointed asa director in tens of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls wilh reference to financial statements of the 

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, referto ourseparate Report in “Annexure B". 

B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 

acconding to the explanations given tous: 

i. The Company does nol have any pending litigations which would impant on its financial 

position other than.as mentioned in para 10(a) related to GST and Income tax. 

ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including 

derivative contracts during the yearended 31 March 2024, 

ill, There were no amounts which were required to be transfered to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Gampany, and its subsidiaries incorporated in India during the year 

ended 31 March 2024. 

iv. (a) The management of the company and Ils subsidiaries incorporated in India whose 

financial statements have been audited under the acl, have represented thal, to the best of 

their knowledge and belief as disclosed In the Note 38(v) no funds have been advanced ar 

loaned or invested (either from borrowed funcdsor share premium orany other sources or kind 

of funds) by the company to or inany other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 

(intermedianes"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

Intermediary shall directly or indirectly hand or invest in other persons or entities identified in 

any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide 
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(b) The management of the company. and its subsidianes inconponated in india whose financial statements have been 

audited under the act, have represented that to the best of their knowledge and belief as disclosed in the Note 38(vij 

no funds have been received by the company from any parson(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding 

Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, thal the company shall directly or 

indirectly, fend or invest in olber persons ‘or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") of provide any quaraniee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Benelicianes; 

(c) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropnale in the circumstances, nothing has 

come to our notice that has caused us to baliove that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11/8), 

as provided under (i) and (ii) above, contain any material misstatement. 

v. The company, its subsidiaries has not dectared or paid any dividend during the year, hence no there is no 

contravention of the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

vi. The reporting under Rule 11(9) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is applicable from 1 April 

2024. 

Based on ourexamination which included test checks, and communication done, except forthe instances mantionad 

below, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies has used accounting softwere for maintaining its books of 

account, which has a feature of recording audit trail (edithog) facility and the same has operated throughoutthe year 

for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective software: 

* There is no frontend facility available to disable or enable the audit logs; this function is controlled exclusively 

through the database system. 

+ The system is designed without an automatic mechanism to send alerts to higher authorities regarding the 

disabling of the audit brail, 

. Management does not have the right to. access audi trail logs; only the oracle database System User can view 

orcheck such activities using nalive oracle tools. 

Further, audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated throughoutthe year forthe respective accounting 

software, we did nol come across any inslance of ihe audil trail feature baing tampered with. 

B)  Withrespectto the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of 

section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

in our opinion and according fo the Information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid during the 

cument year by the Holding Company to tts directors is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act, 

The remuneration paid to any director by the Holding Company ts notin excess of the limil laid down under Section 

197 of (he Act. The subsidiary companies incorporated in india have not paid any remuneration to its directors during 

the year. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not preseribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are 

required to be commented upon by us. 

For P. G. Joshi & Co., 

Chartered Accountants 

FRA: 104416W 

CA Ashutosh Joshi 

Partner 

M. No.: 038193 

Place > Nagpur 

Date : 29-05-2024 

UDIN : 24038 193BKCBPY 6866 
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“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report 

Referred to in paragraph 11 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement’ of 

our report of even date to the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 

31st March, 2024 

In terms of the information and explanalions sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account and 

reconds examined by usin the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that: 

(cl) Qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors In the Companies (Audilors Report) Order (CARO) 

reports of the companies Included in the consolidated financial statements are: 

Sr. Name Of CIN ietiog Comee (Clause number 
No. | Company idem ¥ Venture | of the CARO 

report which is. 
qualified or is 
adverse 

1. Gian Agro Industries & 1L15142MH1985PLC037493 Holding Gompany Clause Ill (a), 
Infrastructure Private Vil(a), VIl(b), XPV 
Limited 

2 Cian Agro LLG Subsidiary Company 

3. en ala Private UGSO00OMH2Z021PTC366149 | Subsidiary Company 
i 

For P. G. Joshi & Co., 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 104476W 

CA Ashutosh Joshi 

Pariner 

M. No.: 038193 

Place = Nagpur 

Date : 29-05-2024 

UDIN : 2403819SBKCBPY8866 
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report 

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated financial 

statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act 

(Referred to in paragraph 12(f) under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement’ of 
our report of even date fo the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31"March, 2024) 

Opinion 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial staternents of CLAN Agro Industries & Infrastructures 

Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company") as of and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have 

audited the intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company and such 

companies incorporated in india under the Companies Act 2013, which are its subsidiary companies, as of that date, 

In our opinion, the Holding Company and such companies inconporated in India which are its subsidiary companhes, 

have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial stalements and such 

intemal financial controls were operating effectively as al31 March 2024, based on the intemal financial controls with 

reference to financial stalaments criteria established by such companies considering the essential components of 

such intemal controls stated in the Guidance Nolte on Awdil of Intemal Financal Controls Over Financial Reporting 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note"), 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
1. The Company's management |s responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial controls based on the 

intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by ihe Company considering lhe essential components of 

intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence io company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 

prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 

timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

2. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls over financial reporting based 

on our audit. We conducted our audil in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls 

Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by IGAl and deamed to be 

prescnbed under section 143(10) of the Gompanies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial 

controls, both applicable to an audit of Intemal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 

plan and perionn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether adequate intemal financial controls over 

financial roporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectivaly in all material respects. 

Our audit involves. performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 

system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 

reporting included obtaining an understanding of intemal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk 

that a malerdal weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal control 

based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the 

risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whetherdue to fraud or error. 
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4. Webelieve that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis forour audit 

opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. However, properly documented 

processes/ policies for recording af purchase, Sales, Manufacturing activity, inventory, payroll statutory compliances 

elc., were nol available for our verification. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

5. Acompany's intemal financial control over financial reporting is. a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements for extemal 

purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s intemal financial control over 

financial reporting includes those policies and procedures thal (1) pertain to the maintenance of records thal, in 

reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and disposilions of the assets of the company; (2) 

provide reasonable assurance thal transactions ane recorded as necessary io penmil preparation of Consolidated 

Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepied accounting principles, and that receipts and 

expenditures of tha company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of 

the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a maternal effect on the Consolidated 

Financial Statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

6. Because-of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possihility of 

collusion or improper management overide of controls, maternal misslatements due to error or fraud may occur and 

fol be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting to fulure 

penods are subject to the risk that the intemal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 

because of changes in conditions, of thatthe degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 
7. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate intemal financial controls system over 

financial reporiing except ior the following material weaknesses identified: 

a. Attention is drawn to the non-maintains of properly documented processes/ policies for recording of purchase, 

Sales, Manufacturing activity, inventory including its valuation, Loans and Investment activities etc. 

b. Tracking of processes to confirm that these controls are in line with the company's policy, was nol possible in 

absence of such documentation. 

However, our opinion in not qualified on the above matters. 

Such intemal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31stMarch, 2024 which 

however, need furlher strengthening, based on the intemal control over financial reporting crileria established by the 

Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audil of Internal 

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For P. G, Joshi & Co., 
Chartered Accountants 

FRAN: 144 16W 

Place : Nagpur CA Ashutosh Joshi 

Date : 29-05-2024 Partner 

UDIN : 24038193BKCBPYS866 M. No.: 038193 
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CIAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Ltd. 
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

As at As at 
rertoiers Hote No, 31st March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023 

L ASSETS 

(1) Non-current assets 
fa) Property, Plant ane Equepnont 21 1027015 14,130.02 

(b) Right of Wee Assets 22 - S134 

(0) Cagatad Work-in-Prognesss . . 

(di) Gawochaall = : 

(a) Other inlangile assets 4 Lay 6.08 

(1) inlangible aseelu under development - - 

(ig) Francia Asses: 

(G) vestment 4 V4 32 33622 

(8) Lean - - 

(a) Offer nen-ourrent financial asses 5 1e0LoF 170.08 

(h) Geferrad Tax Annes (net) 

(i) Other Non-cunent assets ta] 2,300.00 256 pe 

Total non-current assets 1426.40 14,971.51 

(2) Current Assets 

(a) Irerentory 7 15,077.53 16487 

(b) Financial Assets 
(i) Investments a 6,504.08 6,380.50 

i) Trade Receivable B 4,832.26 4,609 26 

(it) Gash and cash equivalents 10 SRT 41.85 
(iv) Bank Balances other than (ill) abowe - - 

tv) Loans : : 
(1) Others. 17 187.89 Peg Bi] 

(ec) Currant Tax Assets (Met) 12 108.02 S069 

(a) Ofhor comer! asst 13 5,138.07 52M 28 

Total current aeents HA26.63 33,519.74 

TOTAL ASSETS: 44,753.03 48,250 25 

As at As at 

Particulars NoteNo. | 31stMarch, 2024 | 31st March, 2023 
i. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

(1) Expuity 
(a) Exquity share capil 4 2.7.50 2750 
(b) Other equity 16 6,124.54 5408.66 

(¢) Mon Controlling interes = 053 

Total equity 6,022.93 B207.7e 

(2) Mon conrant liabilities. 

(a) Financial liabilities 

- Borrowings 16 2,910.56 5/0064 

=ecroe Lintiity 7 : 655.85 

(b) Proveons 18 182.08 144.33 

(ec) Deferred tax liatvlites (Net) 18 1,650.84 1, 7OH.55 

fd) Offer mom current Hable 20 1404, 82 6,739.00 

Total non-current liabilities 6,106.37 93,220.37 
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CIAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Ltd. 

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

As at As at 

rertcunre Note No. | 31stMarch, 2024 | 31st March, 2023 
(2) Current liabilities: 

(at) Fircaricical Renbilitiees: 

(i) Borrowings: 21 77 10,210.02 
(ii) Trade Payables Pa] = = 

Tokai cuisiaaneing dises of micro enterprises sind srrnall erberpriaess 0.55 “7a 

Total outstanding duet of creditors olfeer than mecro enterprises 11,730.05 ‘O7A1A2 

and small enlerprees: 

(if) Other firnzarecdeal Heatailrtiews za 274.0 az 
(eo) O8her current Rebilibes 24 OFTTag 6.40.55 

(dt) Provisions: 25 15.44 40 

Total Convent liabilities 29,723.72 26,11 

‘Tota lintsilitien 35,830.10 40,103.47 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 44,753.03 0,491.25 

Format.of the above statement has been modified to include only the heads applicable to the Company. 

Significant sooounting policies 1 

Notes to the financial statements: 2-45 

The notes referred to above form-an integral part of ther financial stabernents, 

Jayloumar Varma Ramesh Himte Suneet Pande 
Director Director Chief Ceecutive Officer 

DIM : CMS CANCE rat PAN ADP 256 

Place ; Nagpur 

Date : 29/05/2024 

As per our attached report of even date 

For and on behall of 

For OAM Agro industries & infrastructure Lindited 

PG. Joshi & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

FRA naa ey 

Naku! Bhat Madhubala Dave Ashutosh Joshi 
Chie! Finance Officer Company Searctary Partner 
PANSBGSPBH375N Mem Mo ; Fi2218 Mem No : 038193 
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CIAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Ltd. 

Consolidated Profit and Loss for the period ended 31st March, 2024 
(Rs. in Lakhs} 

As at As at 
Particulars F Note No 31st March, 2024 | 34st March, 2023 

IL Pievere from Operations 26 170704 28 008 6 
IL. Cither imeceree a7 4, 17002 42 36 

WL. Teta trveeveres (bei) 18,200.96 2014171 

IM. 
(Cost of Malenal Consumed 28 1,625.02 621 
‘Conetrechon maternal consumed zi 671.02 To 
Purchase of Stock in trace 40 8,304.28 TO423.65 
(Changes. in inventory of Finished Goods, Work in Progress and yu 1701.85 (Sey 
Stock in Trade 
Employee Bonalfits Expenses a2 (658.94 GM.B2 
Finance costs 33 13S 12 35 

Depreciation, Deplehon, Amortisation 21223 a1. MiG.o7 
(Other Eppnaes E | 1,203.50 116.68 

Talal Expenses (IV) 17,704 17 20,056.97 

V. Profilifioss) before Exceptional tems and Tax Sok. 70 BLTS 

Vi. Exceptional thems “ a 

VIL Profiles) before Tax S379 BTS 

Vill, Tat eorpernse = 4 
1. Current Tae fhe aaa 
2, Deferred Tax (12.05) 25.25 
3. Ta Agguetmonts.of previous yoor {25.25) 

I, Profiti{loss) fer the period (Wi-Vill) 40.88 09 

3. Other comprehensive income a 
(i) Roms thai-will nol be reclassafied bo panoftor foes 17.69 470.44 
(8) Income: tae: relating to terms feat will not be reclassified to - 117_SB 
proht or logs. 

17.69 538.02 

1, Total comprehensive incon: for the pernod SOT .57 aria 

Net Profit Attributable to ; 
(a) Owners of the Company 400,47 27 45 

(bh) Non-Contreliing Interest (0.53) B44 
Other Comprehensive Income atiritutable to ; 
(a) Owners of [he Company 17.89 aed 
{b) Non-Gontroliing Interest . : 
Total Comprehennive income attributable to : 

(a) Owners of the Coenpany AMA BRAT 
(bh) Men-Cortnalfing Interest! (0.53) a44 

SOL Eamings per equity share 6 
1, Bans 1.75 O12 
2. Diluted 1.75 O42 

Format of the abowe statement hat been modified to indude only the heads opplicabie to the Company. 

Significant accounting policies 1 As per our attached neport of even date 
Motes to the financial statements 6 For and on bahalf' of 

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements. For CLAN Apro Industries & infrastructure Limited 

P.G, boshi & Co, 

Chattered Accountants 

PRN Lae 

Jaylumar Varma Ramesh Himte Suneet Pande Nakul Bhat Madhubala Dave Ashutosh Joshi 
Director Director Chief Execute Officer = Chief Finance Officer Company Secretary Partner 

DIN = 00489792 DIN211274a2 PAN : AMDPPRA2SG PANSGSPRGS7oN Mem Mo; FI22 08 Mem No : 038797 

Place : Nagpur 

Date : 29/05/2024 
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CiAN Agro Industries & infrastructure Ltd. 
Statement of Gash flows for the period ended 31st March, 20274 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

eNiubien For the period ended | For the period ended| 
31stMarch, 2024 | 31st March, 2023 

A (Cash Flow from Operating Activities. 
Profit Ather Tet aor st ar1.84 

and : 
Deherrieel Tat “T2065. A232 
Achunal gain on employoo benoliis: “14.11 25.00 
(Current Trax 66.07 25.61 

Sees an Attn niin sat 
Finance costs 1,736.73 1,765.80 
Non-Cash fem 3.48 “LTS 
Interse! Choment of Fae Valuation of Security Deposit 0.55 -1.04 
(Ganv/Loss From Fores O41 O38 
Provisions made Ta 4027 
Internet intone “114 BAR 
Prepaid rent written off 0.49 - 
Ditetend imoonme “0.78 0.65) 
Accounts. Willem bok 06.42 oF 
GaivLoes From Sain ore nets Ea Plant andl Exquigerinend 2.57 . 
‘Gan Lias from Terminale of “4B Ag 
Gain On Sale Of Subsidiary 081 
Loss on Far Valualion of Investnnmnt 181.51 
Gain on Far Valuation of Loan 88 

Operating Profit / (Logs) before Working Capital changes 2,113.46 2,718.93 

Working ae adjusiman 
Increase) / Decrease in inventory 1,350 04 3,488.70 
increase) / Decrease in Trade Recelvables TT oo 921.90 

/ Deceaee in Other financial assets 2058 A675 

Incrnase) | Deora in Chur sects 544.37 1, 186,65: 
Inte Deciuapelia char Payables 2,480, 14 2,174 04 

Increases | (Decrease) in Clteer financial leabilities 24128 1,220.01 
! (Dernaae) in Provisions. 22272 “160.13 

Inceasn | (Docs) in Other livtwlifires. 0608 2,142.06 

Cash generated | (used) from operations: 6,512.75 3,664.57 
Income tax (paid)! refunds (ned) = = 

Net cash flow from | (used in) operating achvilios GS12.7S 3,664.51 

B (Cash Flow from Activities 
Audition to Property, Plant and Equipment oo. TB? 
Additions a Sane Work in Progress 

Invesinend inshann capital of Subir S70 
Investment in thon capital of Olher Enbifies: " 26.52 

oan! Deponil nocaived - ; 
incor - - 
Income: Oe 0.55, 

Current investment in OCD oo 4,493.50 
Sate of Investment in = 
Net Cash Flow fronm/(used) in investing Activities a0 6,061.41 

LH (aah Flow from Financing Activities 
(Lowrey 420.13, 73 
Overdraft (00 fecstity - 1,653.83 
Reeperyrreend of |escaser fecabbility: 289, 151 “2B9.72 ri ~1,655.54 “1, oFa.51 
(Cash proceeds from leans and other shorl-tonn borrowings 201295 2,002.08 

Net Cash Flow fronmv{used) in Financing Activities: “5,035.17 2230.44 

o Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,055.37 33,51 

Gash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 7,538.59 a34 
Bank Balance 
Cash and cash equivabents af the end of the pear Aad WBS 
Bank Balance 
Net increade in Cash and Cash equivalents 1,095.37 33.51 

Jaykumar Varma Ramesh Himte Suneet Pande Nakul Bhat 
Director Director Chief ecutive Officer Chief Finance Officer Company Secretary 

DIN: OMaSTos DINO 112742 PAN : AZDPPR429G PAN-RGSPRGITIN Mom No : FL2218 

Place : Nagpur 
Bate : 79/05/2024 

iH 

As per our attached report of ever date 
For and on bohalf of 
For CAN Apro industrics & infrastrectune Limited 

PG. dosh! & Go, 

Chartered Accountants 
FAN TO 1ewW 

Madhubala Dave Ashutosh Joshi 
Partner 
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Note 1: Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Corporate information 

IAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Lid. (referred to as “CIAN" or “The Company”) including its Subsidiaries, and 
interests in Joint ventures, Associates and Limited Liability Partnerships (collectively referred to as.“ihe Group") was 

incorporated on 13th Day of Seplember 1985 under the name of Uimred Agro Complex Lid. llwas renamed to its present 

name in the year 2015. The Company is engaged in Agriculture, Healthcare and Infrastructure Division. It is listed on the 

BSE Limited in India. The Company is primarily engaged in three divisions — Agro, Healthcare and Infrastructure. 

Asal 316i March 2024, LLC CLAN Agro Limited, together with entilies controlled by il, has the ability to. control the Group. 

The consolidated financial slatement was approved for issue in acconmtance with a resolution of the director on 29th May. 

2024. 

Material Accounting Policy 

Basis for Preparation 

The Consolidated Group's consolidated financial stalements have been prepared in acconiance with Indian Accounting 

Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) read with section 133 of 

Companies Act, 2013 and presentation requirements of Division | of schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS 

compliant Schedule II), and as olher pronouncements of ICAL, provisions of the Companies Actand Rules and guidelines 

issued by SEBI as applicable. 

The Group's consolidated financial statements are presented in INR (Rs.) which & also the parent company's functional 

currency and all values are rounded to the nearestiakhs, exceptotherwise indicated. 

The Group's consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain assets 

and abilities thatare measured al fair values, as explained in the accounting policies below 

The Financial Statement of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are draw up to same reporting dale as thal of 

the Group. When the end of the reporting period of the parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, 

for consolidation purpose, additional financial information as of the same date as the consolidated financial statements of 

the parent io enable the parent to consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary, unhess it is impactable todo so, 

in the financial statements of the current financial year, additional disclosures were incorporated to ensure the true and fair 

presentation of data. Furthermore, to uphold consistency and improve comparability, figures from prior years were 

reclassified. 

1 Basis of Consolidation 

Subsidiaries are all entities that are controlled by the Company. Control exists when company is exposed to or has the 

abilily to affect those retums through power over the entity. In assessing control potential voting nights are considered only 

ifthe rights are subslantive. The financial stalementol subsidiaries are included In these consolidated financial statements 

from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. For the purpose of preparing these consolidated 

financial stalements, the accounting policies of subsidianes have been changed where necessary to align them with the 

policies adopted by lhe company, 

The results of subsidiaries acquired, or sold, during the year are consolidated from the effective date of acquisilion and up 

to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. 
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The financial statements of the Group companies are consolidated and all intercompany tminsactions, balances, inoome 

and expenses are eliminated in fullon consolidation, 

Assels and liabilities of entities with functional cummency other than the functional currency of the Company have been 

translated using exchange rales prevailing on the balance sheel dale. Statement of profit and loss of such entities has 

been translated using average exchange rales. Translation adjustments have been reporled as foreign currency 

transialion reserve in [he statement of changes in equity. 

. Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing subsidiaries 

Changes in the Company's interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity 

transactions. The canying amount of the Company's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the 

changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries, Any difference bebween the amount by which the non-controlling 

interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed 

to shaneholders of the Company. 

When the Group losses control of a subsidiary, again or joss is recognised in profit or loss. and is calculated as the 

difference between 

(0) the aggregate of the fairvaiue of the consideration received and the fairvalue of any retained interest and 

(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non- 

controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that-subsidiary are 

accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (Le. reckassified to 

profit or loss or transfered to another category of equity.as specified/penmitted by applicable Ind.AS) 

fl. Classification of Assets and Liabilities as Current and Non—Current 

The Group's present assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification. 

Anassetis classified as current when itis expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating 

cycle or held primarily forthe purpose of trading. All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is classified as current when it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, it is held primarily for the 

purpose of trading, or there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of liability for at least twelve months after the 

reporting period, or thera is no unconditional right to defer the setiiement of the lability for at least Wwelve months after the 

reporting poriod, The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-currant. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as noan-current asset and fabilities. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash 

equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operaling cydle. 

fi. Use of Estimates and Judgement 

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires management of Group to make estimates, 

judgements and assumplions thal affect the reported amount of assets, liabililies, revenue, expenses and conlingent 

liabilities and accompanying disclosures pertaining to the year, Actual results may differ from such estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revishon in accounting estimates is 

recognized prospectively and material revision, including its impact on Group's consolidated financial statements, is 

reported inthe notes to accounts in the year of incorponation of revision. 

Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies thal have the most significant affect on the carrying 

amounts of assets and abilities and in respect of assumptions and estimates an uncertainties areas follows: - 

. Determination of the estimated useful ives ofintangible assets and property, plant and equipment. 

. Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations. Present value of the gratuity and leave encashmeant 

obligation is determined using actuarial valuations, An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that 

may differ from actual developments in the fulure. 

. Reoognition and measurement.of provision on trade receivable which are have been time barred during the financial year: 

* In estimating the fair value offinancial assets and financial liabilities. 

. Recognition of deferred tax assets. 
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MN. Measurement of fair values 

The Group measures certain financial instruments al fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price thal would be 

received to sell an assel or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants al the 

méasurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous markel to which the Group has access al thal 

date. The fair value of a liability also refbects its non-performance risk. The Group regularly reviews significant 

unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. if the third-party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is 

used lo meastire fair values, then the Group assesses lhe evidence oblained from the third parties to support the 

conclusion thal these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the bevel in the fair value hierarchy in which the 

valualions should be classified, 

While measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the Group uses observable markot data as faras possible. Fairvalues 

are categorised into different bevels ina lair value hierarchy based on the inputs-used in the valuation technique as follows: 

. Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

= Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the assets or lability, either 

directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) 

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liability thatare not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) 

Certain accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non- financial 

assets and liabilities, When quoted price in active market for an instrument is available, the Group measures the fair value 

of the Instrument using that price. A market is regarded as-active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with 

sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. 

if there are no quoted prices in an active market, then the Group uses @ valuation technique thal maximises the use of 

relevant observable inputs and minimises the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all 

of the factors thal market participants would lake Into a6counl in pricing a transaction. 

The best estimate of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction price —j.o. the 

fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Group determines that the fair value on initial recognition differs from 

the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or 

liability nor based ona valuation technique for which any unobservable inputs are judged to be insignificant in relation to 

the measurement, then the financial instrument is initially measured al fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between 

the fair value on initial recognition and the transaction price. 

Subsequently that difference is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, Other comprehensive income or retained 

earings as appropriale basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by 

observable market data or the transaction is closed out. 

V. Cashflow 

The statement of cash flows has been prepared under indirect method, whereby profit or loss is acjusbed forthe effects of 

transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and 

items of income of expense associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing 

and financing activities of he Group are segregated, 

Forthe purpose of presentation inthe cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalent would include other bank balance. 

Vi. Foreign Currency Transaction 

Monetary items: Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at their respective exchange rates at the date the 

transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities damonised in foreign currencies at exchange rates 

al the reporting dale. Exchange differences arising on setthement or translation of monetary lems are recognized in 

statementof profitand loss.on foreign currency transaction. 

Non-Monetary item: Non- Monetary item thatare measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated 

using the exchange rates atthe date of initial transaction. 
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Vi. Summary of Material Accounting Policy 

4. Property, Plant and Equipment 
a) = Initial Recognition and Measurement 

Property, Plant and Equipment are recognized at Cosi. Cost includes freight, duties, taxes (other than those recoverable 

by the entity)and other expenses directly incidental to acquisition, bringing the asset to the location and installation. Such 

costs also include borrowing coal if the recognition criteria are mel 

Spare parts which meet the definition of Property, Plant and Equipmentare capitalized as Property, Plant and Equipment. 

In other cases, the spare parts are inventoried on procurement! and charged to Statement of Profit and Loss on 

consumption. 

b) 3 «6Subsequent Expenditure 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a sepanite asset, as appropnale, only 

when itis probable that future economic benefits assockated with the item will low to the Groupand the costof the item can 

be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are changed to the Statement of Profit and Loss dunng the period 

in which they are incurred. 

The method of subsequent measurementfor all classes of assets are given as follows: 

Method of Subsequent Measurement Classes of Assets 

Cost Model Office Equipment, Computer, Electrical 

{le cost lass accumulated depreciation and Installations, Lab Equipment, Vehicles, 

impairment loss) Cylinder, Furniture & Fixture 

Revaluation Model Land, Building, Plantand Machinery 

(i.e. cost plus revaluation gain/(loss) less (Revaluation is done in every 3 year) 

accumulated depreciation and impainmant lass) 

c) Depreciation 

Depreciation has been provided on straight line method in terms of expacted life span of assets as referred toin Schedule Il 

of the Companies Act, 2013. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed al the end 

of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective 

basis 

The range offapproximate useful fife of the Property, Plant and Equipment are as follows: 

Group of PPE Useful Life (in Years) 

1. Plant and machinery 6-25 

2. Computer hardware +5 

3. Furmiture and fixtures 5-10 

4, Office equipment 5-10) 

5. Building 10-44 

6. Vehicle 5 

f. Electrical Installation 10 

8. Lab equipment 10 
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For PPE where the entity has chosen the revaluation model, the accumulaled depreciation is offset agains! the revalued 

amount. 

As per Ind AS 16 the amountof revaluation surplus arising on revaluation of PPE shall be transferred to retained earings 

alther- 

* atthe end of each year during the life of the asset or 

. may involve transferring the whole of the surplus when the asset is retined or disposed of. 

Group has opted for second option of transferring the whole of the surplus when the asset is retired or disposed of. 

2. Intangible Asset 

Inlangite assets with finile useful lives [hal are acquired separalely are camed al cost less accumulated amortization and 

any accumulated impainnent losses, ifany. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-ine basis over their estimated useful 

lives in the statementof profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset 

The Group has intangible asset in the nature of Computer software having useful life of 3 yoars. 

3. Financial Instrument 

A Financial Instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial assel of one entity and a financial liability or equity 

instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabililies are initially measured al fair value. Transaction costs 

thal are directly altrbutable to the acquisilion or issue of financial assets and financial abilities (other than financial al fair 

value through profit of loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial labililies, as 

appropiate, on initial recognition, 

a) Financial Asset 

* — Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through 

profit or loss, transaction costs thal are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial 

assets thal require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place 

(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, |.e., the date thal the Group commils to purchase or sell lhe asset. 

* Subsequent measurement 

Subsequent measurement is deflermined with reference to the classification of the respective financial agsels, Based on 

the business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset, 

the Group classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive 

income or fair value through profitand loss. 

i. Debt instruments at amortised cost 

A‘debt insiument is measured at the amorised cost if both the follewing conditions are met 

The assetis held within a business model whose objectiveis 

- To hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and 

- Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 

interes! (SPP 1) on the principal amount outstanding. 

Afier initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured al amortised cost using the effective interest 

rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium and fees or costs that are 

an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation !s included in finance income in the Statement of Profil and Loss. The 

losses arising from impairment aro recognised in the Statement of Profitand Loss. 

ii. Debtinstruments at Fair value through Other Comprehensive income (FVOCI) 

A debt instrument is measured al the fair valve through other comprehensive inconve if both the following conditions ane met 
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The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by bath 

- Collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets 

- Contractual tems of the assel give rise on specified dates to cash flows thal are SPP! on the principal amount 

outstanding, 

After initial measurement, these assels are subsequently measured al fair value, any changes in value of debt instrument 

are recognised through other comprehensive income. 

Balance in olher comprehensive Income in relation to fair valuation reserve will be reclassified to profit and boss on sale of 

such debt instrument 

fii, Debt instruments at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) 

Fair value through profitand loss is a residual category for dabt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the 

erilena for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. After initial measurement, any fair 

value changes including any interest income, foreign exchange gain and losses, impainnent loss and ober net gains and 

losses are recognised inthe Statement of Profitand Loss. 

This instrument is eilherinvesiment in equity share of other entity orderivalive financial assel. 

Investment in equity share can be shown al FYTOCI under irrevocable option (i.e. can'l show investment in equity al 

FYTPL in future). In case of investment in equily share shown al FVOCI under imevocable option, fair valuation reserve on 

sale of such investmentwill be transferred to retained earning directly. 

* impairment of Financial Asset 

Expected creditlosses are recognized forall financial assets subsequent to initial necognition other than financial assets in 

FYTPL category. For financial assets other than trade receivables, as per ind AS 109, the Group recognises 12 month 

expected credil losses for all originated or acquired financial assets if at the reporting date the eredil risk of the financial 

assel has not increased significantly since its initial recognition, The expected credit losses are measured as lifetime 

expected credil losses if the credit risk on financial assel increases significantly since its initial recognition. The Group's 

trade receivables do not contain significant financing component and loss allowance on Irade receivables is measured al 

an amount equal to life time expected losses i.e. expected cash shortfall, The impairment losses and reversals are 

recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

a Derecognition of financial assets 

The Group derecognizes-a financial asset when the contractual nights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it 

transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party or when it 

has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the 

asset On derecognition of a financial assel in ils entirely, lhe difference between the assef's carrying amount and the sum 

of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other 

comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, is recognised in statement of profit and loss if such gain or loss would 

have otherwise been recognised inthe stalement of profit and loss on disposal of thal financial assel 

b) = - Financial Liability 

. initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

Financial liabilities ane recognised initially at fair value and, in the of loans and borrowings and payables, net of 

directly attributable transaction costs. 

* Subsequent measurement 

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amorised cost using the EIR (Effective Interest Rale) method or are 

measured atfairvales through profiland loss with changes in fair value being recognised inthe Statementof Profitand Loss. 
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i. Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost atthe 

end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liebililies thal are subsequently measured at 

amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of 

costs of an assctis included in the ‘Finance costs' line item in the statement of profitand loss. The effective interest method 

is a method of calculating the amortised cos! of a financial lability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant 

period, The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and 

costs paid or received thal form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or 

discounts) through the expected life of the financial liabilily, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying 

amounton initial recognition. 

ji. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit orloss (FVTPL) 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities 

designated upon initial recognition as FVTRL. Financial liabilities are dassified as held for trading if these are incurred for 

the purpose of rapurchasing inthe near tenn, Financial llabililies at PYTPL are stated al fair value, wilh any gains or losses 

arising on remeasureament recognised in statamant of profit orloss, 

. Derecognition of financial liabilities 

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or 

have expired. An exchange with a lender of debl instruments with substantially different lens is accounted for as an 

extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial 

modification of the terms of an existing financial liability is accounted for as an extinguishment of the orginal financial 

liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability 

derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the statement of profil and loss. In case of 

derecognition of financial liabilities relating to promoters’ contribution, the difference between the carrying amount of the 

financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in olhber equity. 

. Financial guarantee contracts 

Financial quarantes contracts issued by the Group are (hose contracts thal require a payment to be made to reimburse the 

holder fora loss itincurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms ofa 

debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value through profit or loss, 

adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liahility is 

measured at the higher ofthe amount of loss allowance determined as per impainment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the 

amountrecognised less cumulative amortisation. 

4. ~~ Inventory 

Inventories comprises of raw materials, stock-in-progress, finished goods and consumable stores. Inventories are valued 

al cost or estimated net realizable whichever is lower, aller providing for obsolescence and olher losses, where considered 

necessary. The cost of inventories comprises of all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other cost incurred in bringing 

inventories to their present location and condition. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for 

inventories less all estimated cosis necessary to make the sale. 

5. Leases 

Group recognizes a right-oluse asset and a lease liability al the lease commencement date. 

Right-of-use asset (ROU): 

The right-oFuse asset is initially measured al cost. Cost comprises of the initial amount of the lease lability adjusted for any 

lease payments made at or before the commencement date, any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee, an estimate of 

costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset orto restore the underlying asset or the site on which itis located less 

any lease incentives received, Afier the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the right-oFise assel applying cost 

modei, which is Cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Right-of-use asset is 

depreciated using straightline method from the commencement date to the earlier of end of the useful life of the ROU 

asselorthe end of tha lease tenn. 
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Lease liability: 

Lease lability is inibally measured at the present value of lease payments that are not paid af the commencement date. 

Discounting is done using tha implicitinterest rate in the lease, if thal rate cannol be readily determined, then using Group's 

incremental borrowing rate. Incramental borrowing rate is determined based on entity's borrowing rate adjusted for terms 

of the lease and type of the asset leased. 

Subsequently, lease liability is measured al amortised cost using the effective interest method. Lease liability is rme- 

measured when there is a change .in the lease term, a change in ils assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, 

é@xtension orlennination option of a revised in-substance fixed lease payment. 

When the lease liability is re-measured comesponding adjusimentis made to the carrying amount of the nght-of-use asset. 

Ifthe carrying amount of the right-of-use assel has been reduced to zero itwill be recormted in statement of profil and loss. 

Right-o-use asset is presented as a separate category under “non-current assets" and lease liabilitias are presented 

under “Financial liabilities" in the balance sheet. 

6 Business combinations 

The Group accounts for its business combinalions under acquisition method of accounting. Acquisition rélated costs are 

recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss as incurred. The acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and 

contingent liabilities that meet the condition for recognition are recognised al their fair values at the acquisition date. 

Purchase consideration paid in excess of the fair value of nel assets acquired Is recognised as goodwill. Where the fair 

value of identifiable assets and labililies exceed the cost of acquisition, after feassessing the fair values of the nel assets 

and contingent liabilities, the excess is recognised as capital reserve. The interest of non-controlling shareholders is 

initially measured either al fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of (he acquinee's identifiabbe 

net assets. Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests al 

initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity of subsidiaries. Business 

combinalions arising from transfers of interests in entities thal are under common control are accounted at historical cost. 

The difference between any cansidenation given and the aggregate historical carrying amounts of assets and liabilities of 

the acquired entity is recorded in shareholders’ equity. 

7. Contract Asset/Liability: 

Contract assets are recognised when there are excess of revenues camed over billings on contracts. Contract assets are 

classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and 

only passage of lime is required, as per contractual ferns. Unearned and deferred revenue (“contract liability") is 

recognised when there are billings in excess ofrevenues. 

6. Income Tax and Deferred Tax 

1. income-tax Assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation 

authorities: The tax rates and tex laws used to compute the amount are those thal are enacted or substantively 

enacted, by the end of reporting period. 

2. Current Tax items are recognimed in correlation to the undertying transaction either in the Statement of Profit and 

Loss, olher comprehensive income or directly in equity. 

3. Deferred taxis provided using the Balance Sheet method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets 

and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date, 

4. Deferred tax llabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for 

all deductible temporary diffarances, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unwsed tax losses. 

5. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that itis probable that taxable profit will be available against which 

the deductible temporary differences, and the cary forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be 

ullised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that 

itis no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to bo 

ulilized. 
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6. Unrecognized defened tax assets are reassessed al each reporting dale and are recognized to the extent that il 

has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recoverad. 

7. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured al the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the assel 

is realized or the lability is settled, based on tax rales and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted 

atthe reporting date. 

8 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset ifa legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax 

assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to (he same laxable entity and the same taxation 

authority. 

§.Cash and Cash Equivalent 

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other shorter highly liquid 

investment with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to know amounts of cash and which 

are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in values. 

10. Revenue Recognition 

1. "As per provision of IND AS 115 -‘Revenue from Contracts with Cusiomer’, revenue is recognised on transfer of 

control of goods or services to a customer al an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group is 

expected to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance 

obligation is measured al the amount of transaction price (neal of vanable consideration) allocated to thal 

performance obligation, The transaction price of goods sold, and services rendered is net of variable consideration 

on account of discounts offered by the Group as part of the contractual obligation. Revenue (net of variable 

consideration) is recognised only to the extent thal it is highly probable thal the amount will not be subject to 

significant uncertainty regarding the amount of consideration that will be derived from the sale of goods. The 

performance obligation in case of sale of goods is satisfied ata point in time'Le., when the maternal is shipped to the 

customer or on delivery to the customer, as may be specified in the contract. Sales are net of retums, trade 

discounts, rebates and sales taxes / Goods and Service Tax (GST). 

2, Construction Contract Revenue is recognised over time as lhe services are provided by aulpul method as par Ind 

AS 115, the percentage of progress for determining the amount of revenue to recognise is assessed based on 

surveys conducted by independent surveyor of work performed. 

3. Security deposit interest income Is recorded using the effective interest rate (ER), which is the rate that discounts 

the estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instruments or a shorter 

period, where appropriate, to [he net carrying amountof the financial assets. Other Interest income is recognized as 

and when received at actual rate, interest income is included in other income in the Statement of Profitand Loss. 

4. Other income have been recognized on accrual basis in the Group's consolidated financial statements. 

11. Employee Benefits 

a) Short-Term Employee benefits 

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as shorl-term employee 

benefils. Benefits such as salaries, performance incentives, elc., are recognized as an expense al the undiscounted 

amount in the Statement of Profiland Loss of the yearin which the employee renders the related service. 

b) PostEmployment Benefits 

= Defined Benefit Plans 

The Group's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the 

amount of future benefit that employees have eamed in the current and prior periods, after discounting the same. The 

calculation of defined benefil obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit crecit 

method. Re-measurement of the net defined benefit bability, which comprise actuanal gains and losses are recognized 
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immediately in Olher Comprehensive Income (OC). Net interesl expense (income).on the nel defined liability (assets) is 

computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure the nat defined liability (asset). Net interest expense and olher 

expenses nolated to defined benefit plans are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. When the banefits of a plan are 

changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulling change in benefil thal relates to past service or the gain or loss on 

curtailment is recognized immediately in Statement of Profil and Loss. The Group recognizes gains and losses on the 

seliiement of a defined benefit plan when the selttiementoccurs. 

. Defined Contribution Plans 

Payments made to a defined contribution plan such as Provident Fund maintained with Regional Provident Fund Office 

ane charged a3 an expense inthe Statement of Profit and Loss as they fall due. 

12. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities 

Provisions ane recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a fresullol a pasl event itis probable thal an outflow 

of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and when a reliable estimate of the 

amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle 

the present obligation al the Balance Sheet dale. The expenses relating to a provision is presented in the Stalement of 

Profit and Loss netofany reimbursement. 

The Group uses significant judgements to assess contingent llabilities, Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there isa 

possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non- 

occurence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group.or a present obligation that 

arises from past events where il is either not probable that.an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or 

aroliable estimate of the amount cannot ba made. 

13. Earmings Per Share 

Basic Earnings per share Is calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the 

weighted average numberof equities shares outstanding during the period. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earings per share, the net profit forthe period attributed to equity shareholders and 

the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential 

equily shares, 
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Note 2.2 

Right of Use Asset is. in Lakhs) 

As at As at 
Deseri srietion 31st March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 

A.cost 

Opening balance $60.51 960.51 

Additions - - 

Deletions 451.37 - 

Closing Balance (I) 509.13 960.51 

B. Accumulated Amortisation 

Opening Balance 446.94 320.48 

Amortization during the year 62.20 176.46 

Closing balance (I!) 509,13 446.54 

C.Net Carrying Amount [I-Il) §13:57 

1, The lease agreements were terminated this year, resulting in the derecognition of the associated 

Right of Use assets from our financial statements. 

Note 3 

Other Intangible Asset (Rs.in Lakhs) 

As at As at 
Descriptl pak atc 31st March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 

A.Cost 

Opening balance 37,33 40.71 

Additions 

Belations - ‘ 

Closing Balance (I) 37.33 40.71 

8. Accumulated Amortisation 

Opening Balance 30.35 26.74 

Amortization during the year 5.12 6.82 

Disposals = O17 

Closing balance [U) 35,46 33.73 

C.Net Carrying Amount (I-11) 1.87 6.98 

1, The carrying amount of the intangible asset decreased to its residual value during the year, resulting in the asset being 

amortized only over three quarters. 

Note 4 

Non-Curnent Investments (As. in Lakhs] 

Particulars 
Ags at As at 

31st March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 

A. Investment in Equity instruments 

(i) Other unquoted Equity instruments (Valued at cost) 

{a) INBD Express Private Limited 

(b)Yavatmal Urban Co. Op. Bank 

(c) Samruddhi Urban Co.Op; Bank 

id) Wardha Napari Sahakari Bank 

le) Nagour Naerik Sahakari Bank 

(f}-dJankalyan Sahakari Bank Lid 

{eg} TSB Bank Ltd. 

ih) Akola Urban Co.Op. Bank 

0.01 

17.50 17.50 

2.96 2.96 

10.00 10.00 

2.87 Pati 

5.07 5.07 

0.20 6.20 

27 be 27.62 
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(ii) Other unquoted Equity Instruments (Valued at fair value through OCl) 

Manas Agro Industries & Infrastucture Ltd. 5.64 5.64 

B. Investment in Preference share (Valued at fair value through profit or loss) 

Manas Agro Industries & Infrastucture Ltd. 102.45 264.436 

Total 174.32 336.22 

Particulars 31st March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 

-Agerepate book value of quoted investments 

- Ageregate market yalue of quoted investments 

- Ageregate carrying value of unquoted Investments 

- Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments 

174,32 336,22 

1, INBO Express Private Limited was divested from our investment portfolio this year. 

2. The investment in unquoted equity instruments of Banks have been made for obtaining loans or cash credits limited as 

applicable, the above investments ‘are valued at cost. 

Note 5 

Other Financial Assets-Non-Current 
(fts, in Lakhs] 

Particulars fei Sain 
31st March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 

A. Security Deposit 17.07 17.07 

B. Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity 

Fixed Deposits 163.01 153.01 

Total 180.07 170.08 

L. The Security Deposits ane tor accessing utilities and have an indefinite lite, hence it is impracticable to determine their fair value, 

Note 6 

Other Non-Current Assets 

Particulars oo Asa 
31st March,2024 | dist March, 2023 

A. Capital Advances 2,800,00 2,800.00 

B. Other Advances 

Prepaid Expenses 5.64 

Total 2,200.00 2,805.64 

L. The Capital Advance is against the acquisition of the office area 

2 The fate agreements were terminated this year, resulting in the derécagnitian of the Prepaid Rent ascets from our financial statements. 

Note 7 

Inventories (As. in Lakhs} 

. As at As at 

indian 31st March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 
A. Raw Materials (Including Packing Materials} 1,027,232 1,035.61 

B. Work-in-progess 2,360.99 2,018.31 

C. Finished Goods 4,517.89 3,114.52 

DB. Stock-in-trade 2,274.50 5,722.58 

E. Stores and spares 5,ao6,02 4,724.30 

F. Others 

Consumables 78.82 323.05 

Total 15,617.53 16,948.37 
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L Valuation Techrique: inventory is valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value (NRV). Throughout the year, the company conducted 

inspections to identify any material discrepancies that could result ina significant decline in WAV, Ne-such discrepancies were found during the 

year. While conducting the year-end inventory valuation process the company evaluated the net realizable value only for [tems inactive for the 

past three years, 

2, The Work-in-progress amount includes the oost of land & development costs with respect to the projects. 

3. For inventory pledged assecurity, refer Note No. 16. 

Note & 

Investments -Current (As. in Lakhs] 

As at As at 

31st March,2024 | ist March, 2023 
Particulars 

A, Investment in Debentures or bonds 

Optionally Convertible Debentures of Manas Power Ventures Pvt. Ltd. 6,394.08 6,393.50 

Total 6,394.08 6,393.50 

The Company had invested in 639.35 Lakh Optionally Convertible Debentiies (O0Ds) of the face value of AS 10 each and carrying a coupan rate 

of 0.01% pa. issued by Manas Power Ventures Pvt. Ltd, such OCDs are convertible inte a fixed number of equity shares at the option of the 

company and the company expects. to opt for the option during the upcoming financial year, 

Pursuant to the terms. of the agreement, the number of shares to be issued in exchange for the Optional Converteble Debt (OCD) is determined 

with reference tothe issuer's most recent valuation report. 45a consequence, the carrying amount of this investment ceflacts the fair value of 

the instruments. 

Note 9 

Trade Receivables-Current (As. in lakhs} 

As at As at 

Bist March,2024 | 3ist March, 2023 
Particulars 

A. Trade Receivables - Considered Good Unsecured 

ii} Due from Related Party 1,350,31 1,272.96 

(li) ue from Others 2,481.95 3,319.20 

B. Trade Receivables - Considered Good Secured 

(i) Que from Others. - 17,10 

Total 3,832.26 4,609.26 

The above reflected balance of debters include debtors having outstanding balances exceeding three years. While legal action to collect these 

debts. may be hindered by statutes of limitations (time-barred), the company maintains a pesitive autlook on their recoverability based on 

historical payment behavieur and therefore has refrained fram recognizing any peavisiens for them. 

Trade Recelvables Agoing Schedule aq at Fst March 2024 

oi ding ferinllrwing perinds ine due dateot payment 

Partai More than F 

Leet than 4 monthe f meneni - i yur L-2 yaara i3 yom yaar Total 

Undigpated Irene recervables. considered pood 54032 4R5,78 L31L48 403.03 L350.65 3,532.26 

Unidiatesd Trae Roorivailas = a hich Hee significarth ited ieee i crentie righ 

Undignotied Trade Fomioiias = creda mpadied 

PC eporied Trecke Hecei ahi lord der ted poet - ‘ - 

[Dispotesd Trade Receiwaboes — which have significant increase is credit nek : : 

Dispeted trade Becerwabies — credit impaired = “ = “ . z 

Total S81 42 a05.78 L314 102.05 1,451.05 SEE. 26 

Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule as at Sst hiarch 2025 

Quistarading totale! ods from due debe of 
Particulars | [ thin 3 

ew ihan months |i oeenths- 1 year a years 1-3 years yearn Tatal 

Undated Treads recenables ~ conmidered pood Lia 148.51 1aLay 142-359 Peek Far. AG09 06 
Undienchest Trac Resnsivoties —whicn hove slgniticant increase mi cradit nk = = : 

irrigated Trae Aecetwetties — cred ft omparee - - - 

pirepater’ Trade epriva tiesto dered poet 

[lieptin! Tried: Receiver = aehich bate dignifieaeit inermsecin ber cranlit rak 

PDinpoted Trade Receivables = crodit ieee 

Lisi 1653.70) 148,51 1487} 142,35) 2532.78) 4609.26) 
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Note 10 

Cash and Cash Equivalents iRs: in Lakhs} 

As at As at 

Particulars 31st March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 
A, Balances with Banks 

In Curent Accounts 25.103 29.56 

B. Cash on hand 13,74 12.25 

Total 38.77 Aes 

Note 11 

Other Financial Assets-Current 
[tim Lakhel 

As at As at 
Particul ea 31st March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 

A. Others 

Other Loans and advances 182.16. 211.70 

Security Deposit Receivable 15,73 10.05 

Total 197.89 221.79 

The security deposit receivable represents the amount still receivable from parties whose fease agreements have been 

terminated. 

Nete 12 

Current Tax Assets (Net) 
(As. in Lakhs] 

As at As at 
Particul — 31st March,2024 | 34st March, 2023 

A. Income Tax 

Tax Deducted at Source Receivable 44.98 62.18 

Tax Collected at Source Receivable 24,06 26.10 

Refund Receivable - Previous years 38.58 « 

MAT Credit 2.42 

Total 108.02 90.69 

Note 13 

Other Currant Assets 
(Asin Lakhs) 

As at As at 
Particul arheulars 31st March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 

A. Advances other than Capital Advances 

(i) Advance to Suppliers 1,287.40 1L744,70 

(ii) Advance to Related Party 137.87 367,00 

(iii) Advance to Directors 169.66 - 

B. Others 

(i) Statutory Dues ~B:F2 28.62 

(il) Prepaid Expenses 1.00 7.49 

(ii) Varron Aluminium Pyt. Ltd, 3,550.86 3,066.57 

Total 5,138.07 5,214,238 

The Company has paid a sum of Rs, 3,550.89 Lakhs to Varron Aluminium Private Limited towards the Resalution Plan (RP) 

under the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIR), The allotment of shares is pending due to ongoing procedures 

with the NCLT and ROC 

As per ind AS 109 Para 2.1 (f), any forward contract between an acquirer and @ selling shareholder to buy or sell an 

acquiree that will result in a business combination is:within the scope of ind AS103. Further, as per Ind 45 27 Para 10 {a}, 

the company has-opted to account for investments in subsidiaries at oost. Hence, this Investment has been valued at cost. 
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Note 14 

Equity Share Capital [Rs. In Lakhs) 

As at As at 

dhe 31st March,2024 3st March, 2023 
A. Authorised Capital 

(i) Equity Share Capital 4475.00 4475.00 
4,46,00,000 shares of As. 10 each (previous year 

4,46,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each] 

(ii) Preference Share Capital 

15000 Shares of Rs, 100 each (previous year 15000 shares 

shares of Rs. 100 each) 

8. Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital 

(i) Equity Share Capital 2798.59 2798.59 

2,79,85,895 shares of Rs. 10 each (previous year 

2,79,85,895 shares of As, 10 each) 

Total 2796.59 2798.59 

The Company has issued only one class of shares namely equity shares having a par value.of Rs, 10 per share, Each 

Reconciliation of No. of Equity Shares 

Particulars Agat As at 

31st March,2024 31st March, 2023 

A. Opening Balance 279.86 279.86 

8. Shares Issued é * 

C, Closing Balance 279.86 279.86 

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shanes [Novo shares in lakhs! 

As at As at 

Fst March, 2024 Bist March, 2023 Porcentage Char 

Mare st spe neler Number of shares | Percentage of | Number of shares | Percentage of during ihe co 

shareholding tharehalding 
Chaitanya Constructions and Builders Prt Lid 215 hh #15 7h O08 

Purti Marketing Pvt Lid 45.2 16.27% 45.2 16.2% 00 

Avinash Fuels Pvt. bid Wa.13 26.1% peo & | 26.1% 0.0% 

Purti Contract Fanning Pyt. Lid, qa7 138% a7 FER O.0% 

Total 176.53 6.8% 17833 63,8% 0% 

Shares held by promoters as at 31st March 2024 

Promoter Name No. of shares 94 of total shares % Chango during 
the period 

Surdartal Mahadeo Kharbikar 500 O00 Of 

Nanda. Shirish Harode 7,500 0.03% os 

Kalpana Trilokchand Sorte 1,800 0.01% o* 

Batty Batajl Ralamkar 1,000 6.00% Of 

Uday Amrut Lambat 500 0.00% Of 

Keshao Bhaskarrao Chandie 500 6.00% On 

Pravin Wamamn Bakde 3,000 0.01% Os. 

Preetu Amrut Lambat 2,000 0.00% OM 

Sudher Shriharl Voditel 1,000 6.00% Os 

Anand Shankar Kamat 103,500 O.37% ie. 

Chaitanya Constructions and Builders Pyt Ltd 21,560,000 7.68% One 

Purti Marketing Pvt Ltd 45,20,000 16,15% Oe 

Avinash Fuels Pyt. Lid, 73,13,290 26.13% ots 

Purti Contract Farming Pt, Ltd. 38, 70,000 13,84% 0% 

Greenedge Constructions Private Limited 4,643,541 2.09% O% 

MM Activ Sci-Tech Communications Private Limited 1,006,000 O36: Os 

Total 1,85,38,121 67.67% 
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Promoter Name No. of shares % of total shares Change during 
the period 

Pushpa Amrut Lambat 34,600 0.12% Ou 

Amrut Keshav Lambat 1,75,500 0.63% Oe 

Vijay Radheshyam Pandit 1,000 0.00%, O% 

Alka Chandrabhan Sadawarti 2,500 O.01% O%G 

Deodatta Dhananjay Bakde 2,500 0.01% 6 

Dayaram Bhagwanji Narnaware 500 0.00% Ou 

Sundartai Mahadeo Kharbikar 500 0.00% Oo”; 

Nanda-Shirish Harode 7,500 0.03% 0% 

Fandurang Dashrath Kalamkar 2,500 0.01% O% 

Kalpana Trilokehand Sorte 1,800 0.01% O% 

Manda Keshavrao Sonkusare 1,000 0.0035 0% 

Pradeep Waman Bake 3,500 0.07% o% 

Baburao Ramaji Bokde 1,000 0.00% 0% 

Bhaskar Ramaji Thakare 1,000 0.00% Os 

Vijay Vishwanath Sorte 1,000 0.00% O% 

Raojibhai Manaji Patel 500 0.00% Oo% 

Gunderao Gulabrao Kadu 500 0.00% o% 
Sunil Vishwanath Sorte 500 0.00% Ou 

Ravi Shriram Joshi 1,800 0.01% O% 

Ram Binkar Pathak 1,500 0.01% Ou 

Shivani Ravi Joshi 2,300 0.01% OK 

Battu Balaji Kalambkar 1,000 0.00% on 

Dattu Pandurang Manusmare 1,000 0.003% 0% 

Manorama Prabhakar Patil 3,000 0.01% O% 

Uday Amrut Larnbat 500 0.00% O% 

Nanda Kiranrao Deshpande B00 0.00% 0% 

Keshao Bhaskarrac Chandle 500 0.00% 1% 

Hira Ravi Mahajan 1,000 0.00% Oo 

Papousingh Jamaitsingh Bagge 1,000 0.00% O% 

Bhanu Rajan Mahajan 1,000 0.00% 06 

Rajan Dattatraya Mahajan 2,000 0.01% 0% 

Kishore Amanmal Jashnani 1,000 0.0086 Ome 

Ravi Dattatraya Mahajan 2,000 0.01% 0% 

Sumedha Ram Pathak 1,500 0.019 0% 

Pravin Waman Bakde 3,000 0.01% 0% 

Sushil Tukaram Kohade 2,000 0.01% ou 
Asha Deorao Bakde 3,500 0.01%: O56 

Jairam Moreshwar Telang 1,000 0.00%: O% 

Mandeep Pappusingh Bagga 1,000 0.00% Ou 

Nanda Sonkusare 1,000 0.00% Oe 

Preety Amrut Lambat 2,000 0.01% O% 

Rajendra Awasthi 2,500: 0.0135 0% 

Sudher Shriharl Voditel 1,000 0.00% ts 

Vikram Prabahkar Nene 1,000 0.00% O% 

Prashant Suresh Joshi 100 0.00% 0% 

Chandrashekhar § Deolikar 4,500 0.025 0% 

Nikhilchandra T Mendhekar 2,500 0.01% 0% 

Kanjibhal Harilal Wegad 1,000 0.00% 0% 
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Kanjibhai Harilal Wegad 1,000 0.00% 0% 

Shankar Gyandeo Sadawarti 1,100 0.00% 0% 

Megha Joshi 30,487 O.11% O% 

Smita Vijay Joshi $00 0.00% Oh 

Nitin Krishnakant Mudholkar 8,200 O.03% 06 

Vilay Vithalrao Joshi 2,000 0.01% Ot 

Arvind Waman Bakde 2,172,523 O97 Oe 

Salila Uday Kamat 1,54,000 0.55%) O% 

Shivji Gangadas Pate] 500 O00 O% 

Uday Shankar Kamat 3,786,000 L35% O56 

Anand Shankar Kamat 1,03,500 0.37% ox 

Abhay Shrawan Parate 10,000 0.04% Oo” 

Bhalya Kondbaji Pongde 500 0.00%, o% 

Sunil Pedgaonkar 3,359,700 1.21% O%G 

Geeta Sunil Pedgaonkar O41. 300 0.34% 0% 

Panjabray LAmbhore 100 0.00% 0% 

Prakash Vinayak Bedekar 1,500 0.01% 0% 

Sangeeta Shankar Sadawarti 1,595 0.01% O% 

Chaitanya Constructions and Builders Pvt Ltd 21,50,000 7.48% Oe 

Purti Marketing Pyt Ltd 45,270,000 16.15% O% 

Avinash Fuels Pwt. Ltd. 73,153,290 26.13% 0% 

Purti Contract Farming Pvt. Ltd, 38,700,000 13.83% o% 

Greenedge Constructions Private Limited $,63,531 3.00% 0% 

MM Activ Sci-Tech Communications Private Limited 1,00,000 0.36% De 

Total 2,05,01,226 73.26% 
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Note 15 

Other Equity (RS. in Lakhs} 

Particulars eae Aust 
31st March,2024 31st March, 2023 

A, Capital Reserve 

Opening Balance 468.56 463.56 

Closing Balance 468.56 468.56 

8, Capital Reserve created on account of common control 

transactions 

Opening Balance 177.06 177.06 

Closing Balance 177.06 177.06 

C. Securities Premium 

Opening Balance 321,93 321.93 

Closing Balance 321.593 321.93 

D. Revaluation Reserve 

Opening Balance 6,599.11 7,051.33 

Less: Unwinding Of Revaluation Surplus to Retained Earnings 574.22 - 

Less: Transfer made during the year via OC) to retained asap 

earnings 
: 

Clasing Balance 6,024.89 6,599.11 

E. Retained Earnings 

Opening balance ~2,065,98 -2,632.40 

Add : Profit/(loss) for the year Statement of Profit and Rony (Loss) for he year at per Staten 490.42 27,45 
Loss 

Add : Unwinding of revaluation surplus 57422 - 

Add : Unwinding of revaluation sunplus|Deferred Tax) 117.58 - 

Add : Other Comprehensive income for the year as per 
14.14 0.01 

Statement of Profit and Loss * 

Less : Interest Element of $0 = -Lo4 

Closing Balance -869.67 -2,065.98 

F. Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 

Opening Balance -2.02 0.26 

Add/lless) : Transfer made during the period 3.58 -1,75 

Closing balance 1.56 -2.02 

Total 6,124.34 5,498.66 
Nature and purpose of components of other equity 

Capital Reserve created on account of common control transactions 

Capital Reserve created an account of common control transactions is the gain on recognition of Merger of the 

company's erstwhile subsidiaries with the company during the financial year 2019-20, as per the requirements of Ind 

AS 103 Business Combination. 
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Note 16 

Borrowings-Non Current [Rs: in Laks) 

As at As at 

316t March 4 h,2023 bareirsiare ist March,202 3st March,20 

Non-Current Current Maturities] Non-Current Currant 
Maturities 

A, Term Loans 

Guaranteed by directors or others 

(i) From Banks - Secured 1,442,909 734.64 1,656.20 512.03 

B. Other Loans 

Intercorporate Deposits - Unsecured 1,467.66 460.50 2.854341 - 

Total 7,510.56 1195.14 4,509.61 512.03 

[ntercorporate Deposits include amount payabie ta Khare and Tarkunde Pyt, kote. Such an anmaunt was received 195 performance securiky to 

form a joint venture for a howsing infrastructure development propect to be taken up based.on the project's feasibility, However, both parties 

have backed off the agreement and the amount has been reclassified as intercorporate deposit having a tenure of 5 years. The carrying 

amaunt of the liability has boon fair valued 

Detalls of Security and Terms of Repayment (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Amount T = 

Particulars Outstanding as on Security 
Repayment 

3ist March 2024 

Plant & 

- Machinery, Land 

Bepayadie Wn 2A25:| a guliding. Stock, 
Term Loans from Barks 234.54 by Mbonthiy Fbnes ie bhp 

Installments fee 
ALUrrviriiuerry 

processing unit 

Repayable in 27-28 

Term Loans from Banks 405.34 by Monthly Land 

Installments 

Repayable in 25-26 

Term Loans from Banks 427.40 by Monthly Land 

Installments 

Repayment in FY oe “ Culling, 

i Pe I Term Loares from Banks 1110:26 27-28 by Monthly Machinery of the 

Installments 
spices unit 

Repayable in 28-29 

Other Loans 1928.16 by yearly 

Installments 

The rate of interest for term loans from banks ranges from 11% p.ato 13.75% pa 

Note 17 

Lease Liabilities-Non Current 
(As. in Lakhs) 

Particulars mae meet 
Bist March,2024 | 3ist March, 2023 

Lease Liabilities = 655.85. 

Total “ 655.85. 

The lease agreement was terminated this year, resulting in the derecognition of the associated Lease 

Liabilities fram our financial statements, 
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Note 18 

Provisions-Non Current 

(Rs, in Lakhs) 

Particulars ata frat 
31st March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 

A. Provision for employee benefits 

Provision for Leave encashment 18,54 21.65 

Provision for Retirement gratuity 4737 46.87 

Provision for Bonus 21,20 36,22 

Prowision for Ex Gratia 64.97 39.60 

Total 152.08 144.33 

Movement in Non Current Provisions 

As at 
Particul arrears 31st March,2024 

A. Provision for Employee Benefits 

Balance as at lst April 2023 144,33 

Provisions made during the year 54.06 

Provisions utilised during the year 4q.25 

Provisions reversed during the year 3.09 

Balance as. at 31st March 2024 151,06 

Additional Information about Provisions 

The Provision for Employee Benefits has been created for the liability of employee 

benefits payable beyond 12 months to employees during their employment and 

post-retirement: The amount of outflows expected and its timing is as per the 

actuarial report. 

Note 19 

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) (Rs. in Lakhs) 

As at Ags at 
Particula arteulars 31st March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 

A. Deferred Tax Liabilities 

(i) ROU Asset ‘ 133.53 
(ii) Property Plant and Equipment Lar? el 1,876.48 

Gross Deferred Tax Liabilities Total (i) L777 61 2,010.01 

\8. Deferred Tax Assets 

(i) Provision for Expenses 40.78 37,96 

(il) Provision for Statutory Ques Payable 7.99 14.57 

(iii) Unused Tax Credits’ Losses 90.13 18.61 

(iv) Liability For Rert = 170.52 

Gross Deferred Tax Assets Total (Il) 138.90 241.46 

jfiet Deferred Tax Liabilities Total (I - Il) 1638.91 1768.55 
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Movement in Deferred Tax Lighility (Net) for the year ended 31st March 2024 

Recognised in Clas 
‘Opening Balance | Recogniped in — Recognised bala ra a 

Particulars as at ist April, statement of Kenia directly in sd Risch 

Pure profit and Loss redici equity ata 

Taa effect of items constituting Deferred Tas Liabilities 

(AW Asset 133.53. -133:53 : : 

(i) Property Plant and Equaprment 1,276.48 TE.SL -117 58 1777 .B1 

Total (All 2,010.01 “114,62 : Lita 

Tas effect of items constituting Deferred Tax Assets: 

[i] Mrovisson for Expearnes Si ae 40,78 
(8) Proviseor for Statutory Cues Poyable 14,57 -§, 28 759 

fil) Unused Tax Credits! Losses 18.61 FLS2 90.13 

(iv) Liability For Ment 1152 -170.52 - 

Total {B) 241.46 7102. i - = 136.90 

Deferred Tax Labilities (Net) Total (A-B) 1768.55 “12.06 = = L656,51 

Movement in Deferred Tax Linbility (Met) for the year ended 314i March 2023 

Re Clos 
Opening Balance | Recognised in ty 1 | guieinanitiina Npritsiting i 

Particulars as at lst April, statement of ei bien dineetly in dat Marct 

D022 nd bos i 
penis . income my 2023 

Tax affect of items constituting Deferred Taw Liaebelities : 
(i) AU Ase Lit. 41 “H2, - 153.543 

hi) Property Plant and Equaprent 1985.42) 4.64 . “117, 58] 1,476.48 

Total (Ad 2151.89) 242d] “117.5 2,010.01 

Tas effect of lems constituting Deferred Tax Assets: 
fi) Proviman for Expenics 64,1) 24.14 a7-46 

Lip} Breviceon for Statutory Dues Payable 7.54 6.84 - 137 

(ii) Unwed Tay Credits! Losses 19.02 0,41) aac 

(hv) Liabilthy Foe ent 195.31 ee, - 170.52 

Total {3)) 200.969 45,50) 24146 

| 
Deferred Tax Liabilities [Met] Tatal (A-By 1560, 87] 25.25] L6R.55 

Note 20 

Other Nor Caunrert Lladilithes {Rs naka) 

Aa at Aid att 
Particulars. 

dist March, 024 | Fist March, 2023 

A. Advances from Customers 1404.47) 5735.00 

Tetal 1404.82) Bee | 

Note 21 

Borrowings-Curront {Rs im Lakhs) 

Particulars eat ae r 3st March,2024 | tist March, 2023 

4. Loans Repayable on Gemand 

Guaranteed by directors an others 
(i} From Bands 

{a} Cash Credit fom Bane « Secured 1308.64 151035 

(6) Gwerdradt from Bank » Secured 6g 172-455 E,07i08 

8. Loans from Aelated Partios 

(COther koans and Advances. 
(I) Intercorporste Deposits - Untecured 105.20 251815 

DO. Current Maturities of Long Term Debt [Refer Mote 16] 1195.14 51203 

Total TTe2.33) 1610.63) 
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Security 

1. Cash credit facility of Rs. 1,309.64 Lakhs from banks is secured by hypothecation of Plant & Machinery, Land & Building, 

Stock, Debtors of the Aluminium processing unit. 

2. Overdratt facility of Rs. 43.87 Lakhs from banks is secured by hypothecation of Land & Building, Plant & Machinery of the 

Spices unit. 

3, Qverdratt facility of Rs. 5,198.48 Lakhs from banks is secured by hypothecation of Plant & Machinery, Land & Building, Stock, 

Debtors of the 01 processing unit. 

Note 22 

Trade Payables 
(Fis. ins Lakhs] 

As at As at 

Parsiculors 3st March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 

A. Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 05s 479 

enterprises - 

)B. Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 

enterprises and small enterprises 

(!] Que to Related Parties 34,44 11.90 

(i) Que to Others 11,656.51 9,769.92 

Total 11,731.50) 9,780.03) 

() Details of Due to MIME 
On the basis of the information and records available with management, details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under 

the MSMED Aci, 2006 ane as below: 

([Rs—in Lakhs) 

As-at As at a 
call 31st March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 

i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the 

year end. ou 

Interest due thereon 

WjAmountof interest paid in terms of section 16 of the MSMED 

Act, along with the amount of the payment made to the 

supplier beyond the appointed day during the atcounting year 

Arnount of interest dueand payable tor the perod of delay 

In making payment (which have been paid but beyond the 

appointed day during the period) but without adding the 

interest specified under the MSMED Act. 

iWAmount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end 

of the accounting year, nor 
vjAmount of further interest remaining due and payable even 

in suceemeding years. 

(ii) Ageing Schedule 

(a) Asat 31st March2024 (Rs. in Lakhs} 

Outstanding for fallawing periods from due date of payment 

More than 3 

Partleulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Years Total 

MSME 0.55 0.55 

Others 7,705,006 2861 781.14 1,256.13 117305 

Disputed - MSM€WE 

Disputed - Others 

Total 7,745.61 2448-61 fBL 14 1.256,13 L1731.50 
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(b) As-at 31st March,2023 (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Mare than 3 

Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Years Total 

MSME 179 1,79 

Others 5 AT a2 1,660,268 e2o.07 2,344,74 STELLA? 

Disputed - MSME 0.00 

Disputed - Others : 0.00 

Total 5,546.14 1,4601,28 178.87 2344.74 S700 

Note 23 

Other Financial Liabilities-Current (Rs. in Lakhs) 

As at As at 
Particulars abides 31st March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 

A. Accrued Expenses 39.55 52.24 

B. Payable to Staff and Associates 224.56 29.41 

C. Payable to Preference Shareholders 9.50 9.90 

Tatal 274.01 32.73 

Note 24 

Other Current Liabilities (Rs. in Lakhs) 

As at As at 
Particulars 
cilaaias 31st March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 

A. Revenue received in Advance $,367,39 3,085.41 

B. Other Advances 

(i) Advance against land sale agreement 250,00 300.00 

(ii) Advance from related parties 758,02 2,359.17 

C. Others 

(i) Statutory Dues payable 158,95 313.69 

(ii) Others 243,06 291.05 

Total 9,777.42 6,349.33 

Note 275 

Provisions- Current (Rs. in Lakhs) 

As at As at 
Particulars 

31st March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 

A. Provision for Employee Benefits 

(i) Provision for Leave encashment L&? 0.749 

{ii} Provision for Retirement gratuity 2.95 0.88 

B, Provision for Tax 

(i) Income Tax 84.22 27.78 
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Cc. Others 

{i) GST Demand 9:23 9,23 

(i) Provision for Audit Fees 49.51 46.34 

(iii) Other Provisions 7.568 6.37 

(iv) Provision for Income Tax Demand 3.19 - 

Total 158.48 91.40 

Movement in Current Provisions 

; As at 

Particulars 31st March,2024 

A. Provision for Employee Benefits 

Balance as at ist April 2023 1.67 

Provisions made during the year 3.09 

Provisions utilised during the year 

Provisions reversed during the year 

Balance as at 31st March 2024 4.76 

|B. Provision for Tax 

Balance as at Ist April 2023 2778 

Provisions made during the year 84.22 

Provisions utilised during the year 27.78 

Provisions reversed during the year 

Balance as at 3ist March 2024 a4.22 

C. Others 

Balance as at ist April 2023 61.95 

Provisions made during the year 18.20 

Provisions utilised during the year 10.66 

Provisions reversed during the year 

Balance as at 31st March 2024 69.49 

Additional Information about Provisions 

A. Provision for Employee Benefits 

The Provision for Employee Benefits has been created for the liability of employee benefits payable within 12 

months. The amount of outflows expected and its timing is as per the actuarial report. 

B. Provision for Tax 

The Provision for Tax is created for the income tax liability expected to arise in the Assessment Year 2024-25, 

Cc. Others 

Other Provisions include the amount provided for GST and Income Tax demand. The company has reviewed all 

its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and 

disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in its standalone financial statements. 
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Note 26 

Revenue from Operations 

Parleuiar For the period ended For the Period ended 

31st March,2024 3ist March, 2023 

A, Revenue from: 

(i) Sale of Products 16,871.37 26,999.56 

(li) Sale of Services 200,00 0 

|. Lece: Discount 40.43) 1.10 

|Tatal 17,070.94 26,999.46 

Note 27 

Other Income 

Far the period ended For the Period ended 
Particul sicaidil 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

A. interest income 
(Hinterest On Fixed Deposit 11.10 5.18 

[lijinterest on Security Deposit against nent 0.55 1G 

(lil/interest on MSEB Deposit . 0.04 
{ivJinterest Income On Debentures/investments 0.64 - 

{v)interest Received from loans and advances. G10 0.10 

)B. Dividend Income O78 0.55 

(C. Other non operating income 

{i)Foreign Exchange fiuctuations (met) “0,02 341 
(lijAccounts Written back 408.42 - 

(if)/income from rent 0.85 0.60 

{iv)Contract Settlement Oil 5.50 
(v)lnceme from Serap Sale - o29 

{vijGain on Reduction of Lease Term 148,12 - 

(vilfTax Provision Written Back . 101.36 

(vill) Gain from Sale of Subsidiary O61 

{ix) Consultancy Charges “ 19.00 

{x] Other Receipts G.02 7.94 

(si) Gain on falr valuation of Loan 598,84 

Total 1,170.02 142.26 

Note 28 

(Cost of material consumed 

Particulars Forthe period ended | Forthe Period ended 

Fist March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

A. Opening Shock 

(i) Raw Material (includes packing material) 1,035.61 298.92 

(Ul) Consumables 423,05 105.44 

(li) Stores & Spares 4,734.30 3,251.67 

Total 6,092.96 3,656.03 

\B. Add : Purchases 

(i) Raw Material (includes packing material) 1,050.08 13,662.24 

{li} Consumabhes 1,02 256.50 

(iii) Stores & Spores 945,82 2,435.09 

Total 1,996.92 16,353.83 

C. Less: Chasing Stock 

(i) Raw Material [includes packing material) LjO2?.22 1,035.61 

{ii} Consumables 7B,B2 d24.48 

(iii) Stores & Spares 5,358.02 4,303.56 
Total 6,464.06 5,663.65 

Tatal 1625.82 14, 346,21 
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Construction Material Consumed 
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Particulars 
For the period ended 

Aalst March,2024 

For the Period ended 

Fist March, 2023 

Construction Material Consumed 71.02 185.66 

Total 571.02 185.66 

Note 30 

Purchase of Stock in Trade 

payelculaik For the period ended For the Period ended 

Bist March,2024 3ist March, 2023 

Purchase of stock in trade 9,395,05 10,425.26 

Less: Discount on purchases O96 -1.61 

Total 9,394.29 10,423.65 

Note 31 

Changes in inventory of Finished Goods, Work in Progress and Stock in Trade 

Particul For the period ended For the Period ended 

isis 31st March,2024 31st March, 2023 

A. Finished Goods 

Opening Stock 3,114.52 4,352.66 

Closing Stock 4,517.89. 3,114.52 

Net (increase)/ decrease -1,403.37 1,238.14 

B. Work-in-Progress 

Opening Stack 2,018.31 1,347.56 
Closing Stock 2,460,599 2,018.31 

Net (increase)/ decrease -342.68 -670.75 

C. Stock-in-trade 

Opening Stock 5,722.58 4,102.42 

Closing Stock 2,274.60 5,722.58 

Net (increase) decrease 3,447.99 -1,620.17 

Total 1,701.95 1,052.77 

Note 32 

Employee Benefit Expenses 

Particulats For the period ended For the Period ended 

- ist March,2024 31st March, 2023 

Salaries and Wages 579.02 Ba7.79 

Payment towards PF and other Funds 68.29 57.54 

Staff Welfare Expenses 11.64 9.49 

Total 658.95 604.82 

ANNUAL REPORT 2023-2024



zy 
CI4N Agro Industries & Infrastructure Lid. C H] A ne 

Note 33 

Finance Cost 

Particulars For the period ended For the Period ended 

31st March,2024 31st March, 2023 

AInterest 

(i) Interest cost on financial liabilities measured at amortized cost 

(a) From Banks 

I) Interest on Overdraft 1,113.47 1,070.06 

Ii) Interest on Term Loan 300,24 223.34 

IN) Interest on Unsecured loan 274.03 352.26 

iV) Interest on Vehicle Loan 1.49 5.46 

(interest On Lease Liabilitios 42.79 91.42 

B. Other Borrowing Gosts. 

(i) Processing Fees 471 19.82 

Total 1,736.73 1,762.35 

Note 24 
Other Expenses 

Particulars For the period ended For the Period ended 

Jet March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

4. Power and Fuel 236.60) 363.41 

C, Transportation Expense 74.41 70.64 

E. Legal & Professional Fees 113.67 SL74 
F. Miscellaneous expenses 779.13 1421.20 

Tori 1203.50) 1946.98) 

Miscellaneous expenses include: 

waitin For the period ended For the Period ended 

Sist March,2024 3ist March, 2023 

A. Payment to auditors for; 

(I) Statutory Audit Fees 14.05 13.00 
(ii) Cost Audit Fees 0.60) 0.60 

Total 14,6 13.60 

Note 35 

Income Tax 

The Major components of Income Tax Exponse are: 

L Antounts recognised in Profit or Loss 

Fatticuiars For the period ended For the Period ended 

31st March,2024 31st March, 2023 

Profit and Loss Section 

A, Current Tax Expense 

Current Income Tax Charge $4.22 25.61 

Reversal of Provision for Tax relating to earlier year: “25.25 : 
Total (4) 5a.97 25.61 

B. Deferred Tan Expense 

Attributable ta: 
(i) Origination and reversal of temporary difference: 59.46) 25.25 

(ii) Recognition of previousiy unrecognised deductible temporary re 

differences | — 
Total (B} “12.05 25.25 

Total 46.91 50.86] 
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Particulars Amount 

Profit Before tax as per statement of Profit and loss 

Standalone 551.97 

Tax on the above @ 26% 143.51 

Profit/(Loss) of the subsidiary -15.18] 

Tax on above . 

Total tax on book profits {t) 143.51) 

Adjustments to reconcile 

Non deductible Expenses 330.80 

Non Taxable Income 605.22 

Effect of adjustments (tu) ALS 
Tax adjustments of previous year (ut) “25,25 

Tax Expense recognised in books (e+) 46.91 

Note 35 

Earnings per Share 

For the period ended For the Period ended 
Particul ae 31st March,2024 31st March, 2023 

Basic and Diluted EPS 

Profit after tax for the year (In Lakhs) 489.88 33.89 

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares {In Lakhs) 279.86) 279,86 

Total 1.75 0.12 

Basle EPS and Dauted EPS umwunts are caleulated by dividing the profit for the year attributable io equity holders by the weighted average number af Equity 

shanesqutstanding during the yaar 

Note 37 

Other Comprehensive Income 

; For the period ended 3ist | For the Period ended 31st 
Rartientoes Maret, 2024 Mareh, 2023 

(i) ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or log: 

Unwinding of Revaluation Surplus; Plant and Machinery 470,64 

Unwinding: of Revaliation Surplus > Buliding 31,60) 

Acturial gaincon employee benefits 14.11 75.40) 

ECTR in respect of foreign Subsidalry 3.58) -1.99] 

17.69 420.44] 

(I) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified te profit or loss 

(Deferred tax) 

On Unwinding of revaluation purplus: Plant and Machinery 105.3 

On Unwinding of revaluation surplus : Bullelimg “eH 

117.58] 
| 

Total 17.65] 538.02] 
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Note 38 

Additional Regulatory information pursuantto the requirement in Division I of Schedule Ml to the Companies Act2013 

(i) The Group does not have any Benami properly, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the 

‘Group for holding any Benami property. 

(ii)  TheGroup does not have any transactions with companies struck off. 

(ii) The group has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or 

both during the current or previous year. 

(iv) The Group has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year. 

(¥) The Group has not advanced or loaned of invested funds to any other person(s) of entity(ies), including foreign 

entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding thal the Intermediary shall: 

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whalsoever by orion behalf 

ofthe company (Witimalte Benelicianes) or 

(b) provide any quarantee, security of the like to. oron behalf of the Ultimate Beneficianes 

(vi) The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign antities (Funding Party) with 

the understanding (whether recorded in writing or othenwvise) that the Group shall: 

(a) directly or indirectly jend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 

ofthe Funding Partly (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries 

(vil) The Group has nol any such Iransaction which is not recorded In the books of accounts thal has been sumendered or 

disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Aci, 1961 (such as, search or 

survey orany other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

(vii) The group has borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. The 

Quarterly retums or statements of current assels filed by the group with banks and financial institutions are in 

agreemont with the books of accounts. 

(ix) None of the entities in the group have been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 

govemment orany government authority. 

(x) The group hes complied with the number of layers presoribed under the Companies Act, 2012. 

(a) The group has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous 

financial year. 
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Note 39 

Contingent Liabilities (to the extent not provided for) 

(Rs. in Lakhs} 

As at 
Particulars 31st March,2024 

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts 

in respect of: 

Income Tax Demand 150.55 

Total - 

The Company has ongoing disputes with Income Tax authorities in India. The disagreements concern 

the tax handling of specific expenses asserted for deduction, penalties arising fram non-compliance 

and deposits for TDS (Tax Deducted at Source). Contingent liability in respect of tax demands 

received from direct tax authorities in India and other jurisdictions is Rs.150.55 lakhs as at March 31, 

2024. These demand orders are being contested by the company based on the management 

evaluation and advice of tay consultants. The company anticipates a favourable outcome in the 

dispute and, accordingly, has not recognized any provision. 

Note 40 

Leases 

Leases as a Lessee 

All the leases where the company was.a lessee were terminated in the during the financial year. 

Infermation about leases for which the company was a lessee is disclosed below; 

1) Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 

For the period For the Period 

Particulars ended 31st ended 31st March, 

March,2024 20235 

Interest Expense on Lease Liabilities 42.79 91.42 

ClIAN —— 

2) Total Cash Outflows for Leases during F¥ 23-24 is Rs, 99.15 Lakhs. 

3) The company has not sub-leased any Right-of-use asset. Hence, income from sub-leasing Right-of-use assets 

recognised in statement of profit and loss during F¥ 23-24 is NIL. 
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B. Measurement of fair values 

Valuation techniques and significant undbservable iimputi 

Tha following tables show the valuateon techniques. used in measuring Level 2 and bevel 9 fair values, a¢ well as the significant unobservable inputs used: 

Financial instruments measured at fair value 

Type Valuation technique 

Financial guarantess are measured at the higher off 

Financial Guaranter The amaunt of the fess allowance, and 

The amount initially recognised less cumulative amarticatbon 

Discounted Cash Flaw Method: 

The valiatian model conser: the present value of contractual 

Pectcity Deposit against Nant Invetments payments, discounted usiny appropriate discounting rates, 

1) Preference Shares 

Discounted Cash Flow tlethod: 

The Valuation model consiters the Present Value of expected 

cashflows from the instruments. 

2) Equity Shares of Banks: 
Held at Cost: 

The Equity Shares of banks are hele at cost. 

Heid at FWTOC: 

The company hat opted to value certabn equity imetrurments at 

TOC, 

|Non Current investments. 

C. Transfers between Levels 

There hove been to translers between tie bevels. 

Note on Financial Guarantee 

The Company has extended a corporate guarantee te Varron Aluminium Private Limited (VAPL) against the boan obligation to Bank 

anvounting to Rs. 27.30,00,000 undertaken by VAPL 

The company is acting a5 a guarantor for VAPL and henoe is required to make payrnents ordy in the event of a default by them on the 

tenms of the loan that k puaranteed by us. 

A financial guarantee contract is initially recognised at fair value. ifthe guarantee is issued to an unrelated party on a. commercial 

basis, the Initial fair value is likely to equal the premium received. Ifo premium received, the fair value must be determined using 

amethed that quantifies the eoonomic benefitof the guarantee to the holder, 

However, according to the information provided by the lender, the interest rate of the loan would have remained unchanged even if 

we had not provided the guarantee. Hence, the guarantee wasn't initially recognised. 

Atthe endof each subsequent reporting poriod, financial guarantees are measured at the higher of; 

(i) The amount of the lovsallowance, and 

(ii) The amount initially mscognised less cumulative amortisation 

As per ind AS 109, the loss allowance on the financial puarantee contract will be determined using: 

Loss Allowance = Loan Amount x Probability of default 

According to the latest valuation report, the creditor's exposure to default is fully covered bythe entity's available assets. Therefore, 

even if we assume a 100% probability of default, the likelihood of the guarantor facing a financial burden is negligible. This implies 

that, under ind AS 109, the carrying ameunt.of the financial guarantee in the books would be zero. 
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Note 41 

Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued) 

“The Company has exposure to lhe following risks afising from financial insinuments: 

{} Cradit Risk 

ii) Liquidity Risk 

iii) Market Risk® 

Risk Management Framework 

The Company's board of directors have the overall responsibility for establishing and supervising the Company's risk 

management framework. They have formed the risk management committee, tasked with formulating and supervising 

the Company's sk management policies, and regularly reporting its activities to the board of directors. 

The Company's risk management policies aim to identify and assess the risks encountered by the Company, establish 

suitable risk limits and controls, and monitor both risks and compliance with these limits. These policies and systems 

undergo regular review lo adapt to market changes and the Company's operations. 

(i) Credit risk 

Credit risk ts the risk of financial logs to the Company Ifa counterparty toa financial instrument fails to meet its contractual 

obligations, and arises principally from the Company's recelvable from customers, loans advanced and cash and bank 

deposits kept with banks. 

The Group ensures that sales of products are made to customers with appropriate creditwornhiness. 

The Company has isaued financial guarantees to bank in respect of loan facilities availed by ils subsidiaries. in 

accordance with the policy of tha Company, the Company has racognised these financial quarantoes as liability at fair 

value (Refer note 41 ). Outstanding loans in the subsidianes against the financial quarantee contracts given by the 

Company a5 al 31st March, 2024 is Rs 27.30 Crores. 

Note 47 

Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued) 

(iil) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk thal the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial 

liabiliies thal are setted by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity isto 

onsure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meat its liabilities whan they are due, under both normal 

and siressed conditions, withoul incurring unacceptable tosses or nsking damage lo the Company's reputation. 

Exposure to liquidity risk 

The lable below analyses the Group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual 

maturities for all non derivative financial liabilities. The amounts are gross and undiscounled, and include contractual 

interest payments. 

Fs. im lak 
(Comtrectual cath flows. 

7078 i 
[pas limba eaTretT A oKaT| Total Upto 1 year 1.4 years 3-3 years felore than 5 years 

Non Current Borrawengs and interes Lah 56 hah Redd 80 Gi5.76 

Etre eet 

Corrent Gorriwinga and iihetesst thereon Pad 7,782.43 7 fa233. 

Trade Payables 279155 11,151.62 11,153.61 

Other current financial Saketities 4. FMD 774.01 

Total 220839: 22,118.50 1s.207.94 244.50 665.75 
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5 Contractual cash flows 
Ust March 2073 Cannyi es er Total Ute 1 year 14 years Ea years More than 5 year 

Nor Current Borrowings acd interest 2,680.20 2BAl.1 ey Laz e280 1 
[thereon 
Current Deerowings and interes! thestemn 10,058.59 1608.53 1040.59 
Trade Parables 970 AF mre 03] 3,780.03] 

Other cueren4 fearciql labilities TShh.14 2aS6.14 Leah. 

Total 25,445.02 25,625085 ‘723,615.23 1305.56 ‘Ba2.20 1.50 

Note Financial instruments —Fair values and risk management (continued) 

iv. Market risk 

“Market risk is the risk of loss of future eamings, or future cash flows arising out of changes in Markel Conditions of Agriculture 

Industry, Healthcare Industry & infrastructure industry, which inclode changes in pices of Raw Maternal and commodity prices 

{indiganeousty procured as well as import). The objective of market risk management is to avoid excessive exposure to the 

fluctuations in market prices. 

The company is exposed to high risk of changes in the prices of Crude and Soyabean oll. Due to their volatility, the prices may 

fluUctiate significantly over short periods: of time for this commodity, The prices of the Company's commodity generally fluctuate in 

line with global market conditions. Gommodity price nk exposure is evaluated and managed through operating procedures and 

policies. The company is mitigating such risk by nol operating the ol refinery and undertaking trading activities in oil. The exposure 

to market risk is significantly reduced by this since the Operating losses uncer the oll refinery under current markel scenano are 

very high, As. of March 31,2024, the Group had not entered into any material derivative contracts to hedge exposure to fluctuations 

In commodity prices. 

v. Currency risk 

"The Company is exposed tp currency fisk on account of its operating and financing activities. The funchonal currency of the 

Company is incian Rupee. 

The Gompany has not taken derivative instruments to hedge the foreign currency risk. Also, the Company continuously monitors 

the fluctuation in qurency risk and ensures thal the Company does not have an adverse impact on account of fluctuation in 

exchange rates.” 

Exposure to currency risk 

The cumency profile offinancial assets and financial tabilities as al March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are as below: 

(Rs. in Lakin} 

[March 31, 2024 Total (In Ra} Euro 

Financial liabilitias 
Trade Payables 13.55 0.15 

Total Exposure for liabilities 13.55 0.15 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

[March 31, 2023 Total (In Rs) Eure Usb 

Financial assets: 

Other Current financial asget 25,14 - O34 

|Net exposure for assets 25.14 - 0.31 

Financial liabilities 

ther Currest financial llabdities L349 G15 

|Met exposure for abilities 13.49 15 + 

| 
|Net exposure (Assets - Liabilities) 11.65 (0.15) 0.74 

Sensitivity analysis 

A reasonable possible strengthening / weakening of the respective foresgn currencies with respect to functional currency of .Group ‘ us 
{Rs. in Lakhs] 

Strengthening! March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
Effect on Profit or Loss (before tax) Weakening 4 Strengthening Weakening Strengthening | Waoakening 

FULD T ol (aay 13 (0.134 
US 1% — (0.25) O25 

o.14 (0.14) (O.12) O12 
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Inherost nale nish is the nek thatthe far vakeo orfubure cash Bows of a financial insinument will fluchusto because of changes in markot inierest rales. 

Cash flow inberee nate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of floating inlorest bearing inatruments will fichuate because of fluctuations in the 

market iniores! rates. 

The Ganuany primarily enters tole fieed-raie ingress which ensures thal A0-90) of fis inleres! mln igh expo eure tale ied rate, 

The Gompany's-cxqpoeune to marbet risk for changes in interest mates pomarniy relates to overdrafts. and cesh crodits irom banks. 

For details of the Company's bong- berm loans. and borrowings, including interest rale profiles, referio Note of these Gnancal staiements. 

Exposure to Interes| Rate Bish 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Carrying Amount 3ist March,2024 | 319i March, 2029 

(Fixed-rate instruments: 

Financial assets - measured at amortised cost 

{i) Other pen-current financial aseet 163,01 153.01 

Total 143.01 153.01 

Financial Uabilities - measured at amortized cost 

10 Non Curent: Borrowings: 1442.90 173.4) 

(Hi) Current Borrowings 1,256.62 2,518.15 

Total a, fa ot 2,69 1,55 

VWariable-rate mstroments 

Financial Uabilities - measured at.amortized cost 

Mor Current Borrowings 2,506.86 

ii] Current Borrowings 6,481.99 7, SOB aa 

Total 6,481,590 10,015.30 

Interest rabe-sonsitivity = fined rate instruments 

The Group's fesed rate Joan. and deposits with banks ane canted atamortiged cost They ane therefore not subject to interest rae nek as defined in Ind 

AS 107, since nediher the canying ameunt nor the bulure cash tow will fuchuale because of a change in market interest rales. 

Interest rate sensitivity - vanatie rate instruments 

Areasonably possible change of 100 basis paoinis in interest rales al ihe reporiing date would have increased! decreased profit or loss by amounts 
shown below. This analysis assumes that all olhor variaublos, nema constant This coimufation also assumes that the change-occurs al the bakunce 

sheet date and has been calculated based on risk exposures outstanding as at thatdate. The penod end balonces.are not necessanily representative 
of the average debt outstanding during the period. 

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments 

(Ra. in Lakhs) 
Cash flow sensitivity (met) Profit or loss 

100 bps increase | 100 bps decrease 

For the period ended Dist March,2024 

Vartable-rate instruments 64.52 te a2) 

(Cash flow sensitivity (net) 4.82 (64 a2] 

Por the Period ended Fist March, 20.23 

Vartable-rate instrumants (lH OLB) Lh, 025.90 

Cagh flow sensitivity (net) (ERLO2B SKF) LA 28 SM) 

The Group hes-following exposure to Interest Rates as at dist March 2024: 

[Particulars [Fiuating/ Fixed | alst March, 2028 Ast March, 2023) 
Kom Clannent Beorrerea rigs 

ta) Loans from banks. Fond 1,442 90 i73.40 

Floating 2/505 Bi 

Current Barrcearin gs 

ajtument Loans (includes current matures | Foed irag62 2,578.15. 

b}Swerdrafts end cosh credet Pecilitves Floating GAnLo9 7,50 ad 

Tartal P2250 L2,706,05 
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Note 42 

Employee benefits 

SrNo, | Particulars 
Forthe Periodended |For the Period ended 

3ist Mar,2024 31st March, 2023 

1 Ex gratia 64.97 39,60 

2 Gratuity 50.32 47,75 
E] Leave encashment 20.36 2244 

4 Bonus 21,20 36:22 

Total 156.84 146.00 

As per indian Accounting standard 19 “Employee Benefits”, the disclosure as defined in the accounting standard are given below 

The status of gratuity plan as required under Ind AS-19: 

The Company operales a defined benefil plan (lhe Gratuity plan) covering eligible employees, which provides a lump sum 

payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or tenminalion of employment, of an amount based on the 

fespective employee's salary and the tenure of employment. 

A) Defined Contribution Plan 

B) Defined Benefit Obligation 

As at As at 

Particulars 31st March, 2024 Blst March, 2023 

i) Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of Define 

Benefit Obligatian 

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations at the beginning 47.75 31.36 

of the year 

Current Service Cost mii 7.40 

Interest Cost 3,34 215 

Past Service Cost - - 

Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from: 

Change in Demographic Assumptions 0.00) 0,00 

Change in Financial Assumptions 111 “0,65 

Expenence vanance (7.62) 7.69 

Actual Benefits Paid (ie. Acbual experiences assumptions) “1.36 0.20 

Present Value of Defined Benefits Obligation at the end of the spas ay.75 

year 

li} Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of the Fair 

value of Plan Assets 

Fair Value of Plan assets at the beginning of the Year it) 0 

Investment Income it) 0 

Return on plan asset excliding amount recognised in net 

interest expenses T . 
Contributions . 
Fair Value of Plan assets at the end of the Year Oo o 

iii) Reconciliation of the Present value of defined benefit 

obligation and Fair value of plan assets 

aa Value of Defined Benefit Obligations at the end of the 50.32 47.75 

Fair Value of Plan assets at the end of the Year 0.00 0.00 

Net (Liability) recognized in balance sheet as at the end of the 
50.32 47.75 

yar 

iv) Gratuity Cost for the year 

Current Service Cost 7.10 7.40 

Interest Gost 3.34 2.15 

Past Service Cost = 5 
Net Gratuity cost recognised in the Statement of Profit and 

Loss 10.44 5.55 
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v) Other Comprehensive Income 

Actuarial (Gains}/ Losses 

- Changes in demographic Assumptions 

- Changes in financial Assumptions 1.11 -0,.65 

- Experience adjustments -7 62 7.69) 

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other 

comprehensive income “6.50 7.04 

vi) Actuarial Assumptions 

Discount Rate (per annum) 6.95% 7.055% 

Expected annual increase in Salary Cost 10.00% 10.00% 

Mortality 

Indian Assured Lives 

Mortality (2012-14) Ult 

Indian Assured Lives 

Mortality (2012-14) 

Ut 

Employee attrition rate (past service) PS: Oto 5 years :15% 

PS; 5 to 10 years 5% 

PS: 10 to 15 years :1% 

PS: 0 to 5 years (15% 

PS:5 to 10 years 75% 

PS; 10 to 15 years :1% 

vii) Sensitivity Analysis 
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary 

increase and mortality, The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of 

the assumptions occurring at the and of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant The results of 

sensitivily analysis is given below: 

Increase / Decrease In defined benefit 

obligation impact 
Particulars Sensitivity Level ree Pare 

Bist March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023 

Discount Rate 1% Increase 46.13 43.78 

1h Decrease 55.26 52.42 

Salary Growth Rate 1h Increase 53.65 41.05 

1% Decrease 46.81 44.45 

viii) Effect of Plan on Entity's Future Cash Flows 

Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation 

Weighted average duration (based on discounted cashflows} 

[bec cash flows over the next (valued on undiscounted Amount 

basis): As at As at 

31st March, 2024 Zist March, 2023 

ist following year 2.95 2.69 

2nd following year 3.87 4.88 

ard following year 5.03 9.50 

4th following year 5.46 4.40 

Sth following year L46 5.07 

Years 6 to 10 12.64 1.75 
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Nate 43 

Related party transactions 

A. Listof melated parties and relationship 

The Management has identified the following entities and individuals as related 

parties of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 for 

the purpose of reporting-as per Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosure which are as 

under:- 

(i) Entities having significant influence 
The following entities has significant influence over the Company 

Name Type Place of Ownership interest 

incorporation| 3ist March, 2024 | Jist March, 2023 

Chaitanya Constructions & Builders Pyt Ltd Body India 7.68% 7.68% 

Corporate 

Awinash Fuels Private Limited Body India 26.15% 26.13% 

Corporate 

MM Activ Sci-Tech Communications Private Limited |Botly Jindia 0.35% 0.35% 

Corporate 

Greenedge Constructions Private Limited Body \netia 3.08%. 3.08% 

Corporate 

Purti Marketing Private Limited Body India 16.15% 16.15% 

Corporate 

Purti Contract Farming Private Limited Body Inelia 13.83% 13.83% 

Corporate 

(ii)/Subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates 

Interest in-subsidiaries, jolt wenturesand associates areset out below: 

Name Type Place of Ownership interest 

incorporation| 31st March,2024 | 31st March, 2023 

Cian Agro Limited (Foreign Subsidiary) Body Russia 100% 100% 

Corporate 

INBD Express Private Limited Body India 0% 60% 

Corporate 

(iii) Key management personnal 

Mr. Nikhil Gadkeri, Managing Director 

Mr. Suneet Pande, Chief Executive Oficer 

Mr. Nakul Bhat, Chief Financial Officer 

Mrs. Madhubala Dave, Company Secretary & Compliance officer 

(iv) Entities controlled or jointly controlled by KMP or Relatives of KMP 

Name Type Place of 

incorporation 

Avenger Electricals & infrastructure Pyt, Ltd. Body India 

Corporate 

Mr. Sarang Gadkar| Individual [ricleas 

Manas Power Ventures Private Limited Boocty Inelia 

Corporate 

Vidarbha Realters Pyt Ltd Body India 

Corporate 

Purti Enterprises Bocty Ince 

Corporate 
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B. Transactions with related parties 

a) Key management personnel compensation (Rs. in Lakhs} 

Particulars 3ist March, | 31st March, 

2024 2023 

Short-term employee benefits 118.22 118.20 
Post-retinement benefits 

Other long-term benefits 

(ii) The nature wise transactions with the above related parties are as follows: 

For the year 2023 24 

asi ia Entities controlled 

detaniak Entithleshaving ar jolntly 

|Nature of Transactions Subsidiaries fail é significant controlled by KMIP 

influence or Relatives of 
Relatives of KMP 

KMIP 

Sales of goods {finished or unfinished}: - 3237.87 719.41 

Purchase of goods (finished or unfinished); - - 1,534.19 - 

Receiving of services - 38.94 - - 

Providing of services . . 0.345 

Investment in Equity - - - - 

IMprest account payments O25 28.04 

Imprest account receipts - 29.41 

Inter corporate deposits taken - - 

Inter corporate deposits repaid 

Advance against purchases! sennces LO8T.24 

Advance Recelved against Sale 365.02 

Loans & Advances given 146.09 

Purchase of store & Spare parts 0.68, 

Accounts payable written off 

(il) The nature wise transactions with the above related parties are as follows: 

For the year 2022-23 (Rs. in Lakhs) 

alae . Entities controlled 

Entities havingjor jointly 

Nature of Transactions Subsidiaries a & significant controlled by KMP 

Influence or Relatives of 
Relatives of KMe 

KMP 

Sales of poods (finished or unfinished); 98.89 - 

Purchase of goods [finished or unfinished}; - - 0.83 

Receiving of services 77.88 - - 
Providing of services - - - O71 

Investment in Equity - = = = 

imprest account payments - 74.01 - - 

Imiprest account receipts - To5.11 - - 

Inter corporate deposits taken - - - 1,900.00 

Inter corporate deposits repaid - 1,900.00 

Advance against purchasess services 65.00 

Accounts payable written off 
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Note 44 

Capital Management 

“The Company's objectives when managing capital is: 

(ilo meintaina strong capital base and heallhy capital ratios so as to maintain the investor, creditor and market confidence, 

(i) to sustain future development of the business, and 

(iil) to provide adequate retumio shareholders through continuing growth. 

The Company's: overall strategy remains unchanged from previous year.” 

The Company determines the capital requirements based on annual business and long-term operational plans! strategies, 

encompassing capilal and stralegic investments. These financial needs are fulfilled through a blend of equity and long-term 

borrowing. The Company tracks its capital and long-term debt using the debl-to-equity ratio (Refer nole 45). 

To meet its debt obligations, the Company has Adequate Cash and Bank balances. The Company monitors ils capital by scrutiny of 

these balances and reqular assessment of any debl requiraments. 
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Note 39 Sepment Reporting 

A.General Information 

(a] Factors used to identify the entity's reportable segments, including the bast of organisation 

Based on the chteria as mentioned in Inds 108 Operating Segment”, the Company has identified its reportable segreents, as follows 

«© Sapment-1 Agra Products 

= Sepment-2, Healthcare 

« Semmemt-3, Infrae ucture 

Wnallocable Expenses which are common among the segments and could not be allocated.ace categorised under unallocable 

The Chief Operating Beeblen Maker (“COOM") evaluates the Company's perbormance and allecotes resources based on 4n analysis ol various 

performance indicators by operating segments. The CODM reviews revenue and pross profit as the performance indecator for all of the operating 

Legiments 

CIAN 

(Rs.in Lakhs) 

Sr. Particulars For the Period ended For the Period ended 

No. Diat Mar, 2024 Jict March, 2023 

{audited (Audited) 

i)Segment Aevenue(Net sale/income from operation) 

Seerment-Agro Diveshon 1404559 2Lbg75 

Seerment-Healthcare Divivices 253.749 1,499.07 

Segment-Infrastructure Division L722 §,651:63 

Total 17,070.34 28,959.46 

Lest: Inter segment Revenue - - 

Add: Other Income 1170.02 142.26 

Net sales/income From Operations 18,740.56 29,141.71 

2) Segment Aosuits (Profit}(+)/ Loss (-) bofore tax and interest from Each segment) 

Segrmant- Agro -Divisien 650.58 (397.82) 

Segrment-Healtheare Diivesicet 1,655.75 1,532,45 

Segmmentinfrastructure Oivision® (354,13) 248.97 

Total 1,951.99 1,383.60 

Less: 

(i) Interest 1,415,270 1,298.85 
(it) Other Un-allocable Expenditure 

(lip Un-atlocatie incor E 

Total profit after interest before tax 536.79 4,75 

3) Capital Employed (Segment assets — Segment Liabilities) 

Segreent-Agro Divekon (1230.65) (Lara 35] 

Segrment-Healthoare Giveshemn 3,869.12 2,213.37. 

Segrnent-intrastructure. Division (2,579.01) (L434.09| 

Unallocated 2,798:59 2,798.59 

C) Aeconcibation of information on reportable segmerits to ind 45 measures; 

(Rs. in Lakhs] 

Mature of transection For the Period anded For the Period ended 

Tist Mar 2024 Bist March, 2024 

jj) Revenues 

Total mevonie for reportable segments 15. 240.96 22414171 

Revenue for other segments - 

Total Revenue 18.240.96. 29,141.71 

Ul) Profit/loss before tax 

Profit/Loss before tax for reportable segments 536.79 84.75 

Profit! loss before tas for other segments - - 

Profit/loss before tax as per Financial Statements 436.79 o4.75 

fil) ) Assets 

Total assets for repertable segments 43,497 36 46,752.15 

Asaete for other segment - - 

Unallocated amounts 2,798.59 2,798.59 

Total assets 46,295.95 49,550.74 

bv) | Liabilities 
Total liabittties for reportable segments 40.599. 41 4502212 

Liabilities for other sepmrerits 

Unallocated amounts . 

Total llabilities 40,599.91 45,022.12 
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(Fs, in Lakhs} 

i jars For the Period ended For the Period ended 

31st Mar 2024 Bist March,2023 

4. Revenwes from external customers attributed te the country of domicile and attribubed-te 

all foreign countries fram which the company derives revenues 

Revenue fron the Caw ntry ef Baoricile: India 18_186.25 25,079.03 

Revenue trom foreign countries 5 8 62.9 

Total 18,240.96 29,141.71 

JE. Details of mon current asset 

Non Current asset bn the Country of Dombecile - Inedia 13,476.40 ‘14,808.22 

Non Current asset bn Foreign Countries - - 

Total 13,426.40 14,808.22 
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CIAN AGRO INDUSTRIES & INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED 

Registered Office: 4" Floor, Gupta Tower, Science College Road, Civil Lines, Nagpur — 440001, Maharashtra. 

FOR KIND ATTENTION OF SHAREHOLDERS 

Dear Shareholder(s), 

As per the provisions of Section 88 of the Companies Act, 2013 read wilh Companies (Management & Administration) 

Rules, 2014, the Company needs to update its “Register of Members’ to incorporate certain new details, a6 are required 

under the said provisions. Further, as per the “Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance’ iniliated by the Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs (MCA), vide ils Circular No. 17/2011 dated 21/04/2011, the Company proposes to send all the notices, 

documents including Annual Report in electronic form to its members, 

We, therefore request you lo furnish the following details for updation of Register of Members and enable the Company to 

send all communication to you through electronic mode: 

Registered Folio No/DP ID & Client ID 

Name of the Member 

Father's / Mother's / Spouse's Nama 

Address (Registered Office Address in case the Member is a Body Corporate} 

PAN or CIN (In case of Body Corporate) 

UIN (Aadhar Numisor) 

Occupation 

Residential Status 

Nationality 

Incase member is a minor, name of the guardian 

Date of birth of the Member 

Place: 

Date: 

Signature of the Member 

Kindly submit the above detalls duly filledin and signed at the appropriate place to the Registrar & Share Transfer 

Agents of the Company viz. “Bigshare Services Pvt Lid”, office at Office No. 56-2, Gth Floor, Pinnacle Business 

Park, next to Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (East) Mumbai — 400093, Maharashtra. 

Thanking You, For CLAN Agro Industries & infrastructure Limited 

Jaykumar Varma 

Director 
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